AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 14, 2017
2:00 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:
¢ Provide reliable water supplies
e Ensure high quality drinking water
¢ Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life
e Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff
¢ Insure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long term needs.

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

3. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within
the jurisdictional authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments,
must be recognized by the Board President, and speak from the podium. Comments must
be directed only to the Board. The public should address the Board members during the
public meetings as President, Vice President, or Director, followed by the Board member’s
individual last name. The Board will hear communications on matters not on the agenda,
but no action will be taken.

No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive
conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the President, of that person's
privilege of address.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes -
1. Regular Meeting of January 10, 2017
2. Special Board Meeting of January 30, 2017

B. Financial Reports
1. Early Pays — February 2017
2. December 2016 Month End Payable Activity Report
3. December 2016 Month End Revenue and Expense Summary Report
4. Auburn Lake Trails Zone and CDS Summary

C. Mid-Term Budget and Investment Review

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, February 14, 2017 Page 1 of 4



D. Surplus Equipment

Discussion — Staff has identified a vehicle that is no longer in use and unable to pass a
smog check. This vehicle should be declared as surplus.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board declare said
vehicle as surplus and direct Staff to dispose of it through an auction or through other
appropriate action.

5. Approve and Execute Employment Agreement with New General Manager

Discussion ~ After an extensive search, the Board has announced the hiring of Steve
Palmer as the new General Manager.

Possible Board Action — Approve and execute Employment Agreement.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT
BOARD REPORTS
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

© © N o

OPERATIONS MANAGER’S REPORT
10. FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

A. Finance Committee Minutes of January 24, 2017 Meeting.
B. Finance Committee Agenda — February 21, Meeting

11. ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF 2016 AUDIT REPORT

Discussion — The District received on January 30, 2017, the final signed copy of the
Financial Statements along with the Final Management Report from Fechter & Company.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board acknowledge receipt
of the report and direct Staff to distribute appropriately for review and development of action
plan for addressing identified deficiencies.

12. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT — SIREN & ASSOCIATES

Discussion — The District has contracted with Siren & Associates since 2006 to assist the
District with regulatory compliance for both the Public Water and Onsite Wastewater
Management Zone reporting. The District has received a proposal from Siren & Associates
for the period beginning February 12, 2017, through February 12, 2018, for a total contact
amount not to exceed $34,906.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board approve this
Professional Services Agreement with Siren & Associates.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, February 14, 2017 Page 2 of 4



13. CalPERS DISCOUNT RATE CHANGE

Discussion — The District has received notification from CalPERS of recent changes to the
discount rate assumption and the impact of these changes on required employer and
member contributions.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board acknowledge receipt
of this notification and direct Staff to provide the Board with an analysis of how this change
will impact the District’s budget at a forthcoming Board meeting.

14. TRAINING ON BEST PRACTICES IN PENSION AND BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION

Discussion — Given the relevance of pension issues faced by the District, Director Wadle
requested Board approval to attend training on Best Practices in Pension and Benefits
Administration offered by the Government Finance Officers Association on March 21-22,
2017, in Reno, Nevada. Staff has learned that this class has been cancelled.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board direct Staff to identify
similar training opportunities for Board Members and Staff to attend.

15.  WATER RIGHTS

Discussion — At the Board meeting of January 10, 2017, the Board directed Staff to add
this item to the Board’s agenda.

Possible Board Action — It is Staff's recommendation that the Board receive and file
information provided and direct Staff to schedule a Water Rights Workshop in the near
future.

16. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM DEAN LACEY TO SPLIT IRRIGATION WATER SERVICE

Discussion — During the regular Board meeting of January 10, 2017, the Board deferred
action on this request from Dean Lacey, an irrigation customer, pending a closer review of
the current Irrigation Ordinance.

Possible Board Action — Staff is neutral on this matter recommendation and awaits
direction from the Board.

17. ACWA SPRING CONFERENCE

Discussion — The ACWA Spring Conference is scheduled for May 9-12, 2017, in
Monterey, California. The registration deadline is

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board approve attendance
by Staff and interested Board members and direct Staff to follow registration requirements.

18. FINANCIAL ASISTANCE FOR GDPUD CUSTOMERS IN HARDSHIP CASES
Discussion - District Staff was directed by the Board at its meeting of January 10, 2017, to
search options for providing financial assistance to GDPUD customers who are
experiencing financial hardship in paying their water bills.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board receive the findings
and direct Staff accordingly.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, February 14, 2017 Page 3 of 4



19. AUBURN LAKE TRAILS WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT — CHANGE ORDER
AUTHORITY

Discussion — Construction activities are about to begin on the Auburn Lake Trails Water
Treatment Plant Project. Elements of construction will move rapidly. Inasmuch as the
Board regularly on a monthly basis, there is a benefit to authorizing Staff (General Manager)
to approve change orders during construction. This is a common practice within the
construction industry.

Possible Board Action — Authorize General Manager to approve and process Change
Orders on the ALT Project, with Meyers & Sons Construction, for a total amount not to
exceed $10,000.

20. ALT TREATMENT PLANT UPDATE
Discussion — This constitutes this month’s update on the ALT Treatment Plant Project.

Possible Board Action — It is Staff's recommendation that the Board receive and file this
report.

21. PSOMAS CONTRACT - ENGINEERING SUPPORT DURING CONSTRUCTION OF ALT
WATER TREATMENT PLANT

22. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO FUTURE MEETING
AGENDAS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR RESEARCH TO BE COMPLETED
BY STAFF — Opportunity for Board members to discuss matters of interest to them and
provide input for future meetings as well as report on their District-related meeting
attendance.

23. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT - Next regular meeting March 14, 2017, at
2:00 PM, at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact
Darrell Creeks by telephone at 530-333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made
as early as possible and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting. In
accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda was posted on the District’s
bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main Street,
Georgetown, California, on February 10, 2017.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, February 14,2017 Page 4 of 4



CONFORMED AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA

TUESDAY, JANUARY 10, 2017
2:00 P.M.

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:
¢ Provide reliable water supplies
¢ Ensure high quality drinking water
¢ Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life
e Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff
e Insure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long term needs.

1. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The meeting was called to order at 2:00 pm. Directors present: David Halpin, Jesse
Hanschild, Carl Hoelscher, Lon Uso and Dane Wadle. Staff present: Interim General
Manager Darrell Creeks, Office Manager Diane Schroeder, Project Manager George
Sanders, Interim Operations Manager Marty Ceirante and Meeting Recorder Gloria
Omania. Legal Counsel: Robin Baran of Churchwell White.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Director Uso indicated he would like to pull Item #11 from the agenda per his conversation
with Legal Counsel Barbara Brenner.

Motion by Director Hoelscher to withdraw Item #11 from the agenda adopt the
balance of the agenda. Second by Director Hanschild.

Public Comment: None

The motion passed unanimously.

3. PUBLIC FORUM - Any member of the public may address the Board on any matter within
the jurisdictional authority of the District. Public members desiring to provide comments,
must be recognized by the Board President, and speak from the podium. Comments must
be directed only to the Board. The public should address the Board members during the
public meetings as President, Vice President, or Director, followed by the Board member’s
individual last name. The Board will hear communications on matters not on the agenda,
but no action will be taken.

No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive
conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the President, of that person's privilege
of address.

No public comment.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 1 of 8



4. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes
1. Regular Meeting of December 13, 2016
2. Special Meeting of December 15, 2016

B. Financial Reports
1. Early Pays — January 2017
2. November 2016 Month End Cash Disbursements Report
3. November 2016 Month End Payable Activity Report

C. Mid-Year Budget and Investment Review

Discussion — The District’s Annual Calendar of agenda items for the month of January
includes a mid-year budget and investment review. These items will be addressed at
the regular Board Meeting in February.

Possible Board Action — It is Staff’'s recommendation that these items be placed on
the February 14, 2017, regular Board meeting agenda.

D. Update on General Manager Selection Process

Discussion — The Interim General Manager has been contacted by three of the
candidates for a meeting and tour of the District facilities.

Possible Action — Receive and file.

E. Consider Attendance by Staff and Directors to Spring Conferences
Discussion — Directors and Staff have traditionally attended the Spring Conferences of
the Association of California Water Agencies, and the California-Nevada Section of the

American Water Works Association.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board discuss and
determine attendance at these Spring Conferences and direct Staff to make necessary
arrangements.

Motion by Director Hoelscher to approve the Consent Calendar. Second by Director
Hanschild.

Public Comment: None.

The motion passed unanimously.

5. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 2017-01 AUTHORIZING THE CHANGE OF SIGNATORY
AUTHORITY FOR ACCOUNTS ESTABLISHED WITH EL DORADO SAVINGS BANK

Discussion — This Resolution is a requirement of El Dorado Savings Bank, which has
provided banking services for the District since around 2002.

Office Manager Diane Schroeder stated the bank requires a Resolution by the Board to
change the signers on the accounts.

Possible Board Action: It is Staff's recommendation that the Board adopt Resolution
2017-01.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 2 of 8



Motion by Director Hoelscher to adopt Resolution 2017-01. Second by Director
Halpin.

Public Comment: None

The motion passed unanimously.

6. PRESIDENT’S REPORT
Director Uso stated that the District is making progress. Wants
7. BOARD REPORTS

Director Wadle reported that he met with a representative of Mountain Counties to establish
a working relationship.

8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Darrell Creeks expanded on his written report with the following additional points and
comments from others:

e District Staff has received some calls from customers about the Supplemental Charge
and hardship cases have been received. Some have forgotten about the increase,
but most are understanding.

Diane Schroeder indicated she has received a couple of hardship calls and has toid
these customers that we have nothing in place currently; most are working on their
own financials to adjust for the increase.

Director Uso stated he would like an opportunity to discuss the ability of the District to
provide financial assistance in hardship cases, and what programs are available for
financial assistance. He asked Staff to add this item to the next Board agenda.

e District Staff is continuing to work on the RFP for the New Meters. District staff
conducted an inventory of boxes and lids and provided this information to MC
Engineering to put into a database to determine project needs. They can then
complete the RFP.

The General Manager of the Meadow Vista County Water District spoke highly about
their AMR (Automated Meter Reading) drive-by system. He indicated they that they
have had no problems with it. In addition, Kyle Madison, Distribution Lead, took a tour
of the Meadow Vista system. Darrell was pleased to have received some good
information and ideas about the AMR system that could translate into some savings
for the District. Additional discussion ensued about the importance of moving this
project forward.

o Staff is making progress with the RCAC Water Rate Study. Darrell reported that he
was just informed by RCAC that they have cleared out other projects so we are now
at the top of their priority list. This has resulted in an increased flow of information
requests from RCAC, which is good.

e The orange boons at Stumpy are floating around the spillway because the cable
broke. These will need to be fixed, but the weather makes it quite risky to do this now.
Considering having a District crew take care of it when it is safer to do so.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 3 of 8



Director Uso stated that we should not put staff in jeopardy and suggested that the
District hire someone with proper equipment to do it right.

e Darrell shared an interesting point that he has discussed with Engineering Consultant
George Sanders about the spilling of about a foot and a half or two feet a day at the
Stumpy Spillway. We have calculated that roughly 2,000 acre feet a day has been
going over the spillway. Darrell stated that if we had Onion Creek with 4,000 acre
feet of storage, we could fill it in two days. Darrell stated he is bringing this up because
he still wants to go after these water rights someday. He added that when you
consider that we put out about 4,700 acre feet during the five-month irrigation season,
this water storage capability could take care of much of one irrigation season.

Director Uso stated he had a brief conversation with Legal Counsel about water rights
to ensure that we are rock solid. He asked Staff to add a discussion about water
rights on the next agenda.

e The new truck was received by the District. This new truck came in just in time since
one of the trucks couldn’t pass a smog check. The bigger one is expected to come
in soon.

o Darrell distributed binders containing updated reference information to Directors
Hanschild, Hoelscher and Uso. He stated the same information was provided to
Directors Halpin and Wadle in their orientation binders. The information provided
included an updated Board and Staff Directory and Board Policies. Staff would like to
review and update these policies for the Board’s consideration. These policies need
to be reworked and reworded to make sure they don't conflict with our ordinances
since these policies were written a few years ago.

Director Hanschild asked about providing tablets for reviewing the agenda to
eliminate the paper. Interim GM Darrell Creeks and Office Manager Diane Schroeder
indicated they are looking into this. There are inexpensive tablets... Find ways to
reduce paper....

9. OPERATIONS MANAGER’S REPORT
Marty Ceirante added the following points to his written report:
e Weather has been a factor for the past month.

e Combined we treated 527 million gallons of drinking water in the last year: 274 million
gallons out of the Walton plant and 253 million gallons out of ALT.

o We continue to provide excellent high quality drinking water. We did a total of 306
routine samples and 153 bacterial samples throughout the system during the year
with zero positives. We completed all our sampling requirements and had no flags
on anything.

10. FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT (Deferred to the February Board meeting.)
Director Uso indicated that the Finance Committee Chairman is out of town, so this report

will be deferred to the February agenda. Director Halpin stated the next Finance Committee
meeting is set for January 24, 2017.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 4 of 8



11. RATE INCREASE NOTIFICATION FROM CHURCHWELL WHITE, LLP, FOR LEGAL
SERVICES (This item was withdrawn.)

Discussion — The District is in receipt of a letter from Churchwell White notifying the
District of a 2.8% increase in the Firm’s rates for legal services to be effective February 1,
2017.

Possible Board Action — It is Staff's recommendation that the Board approve the rate
increase by Churchwell White for legal services.

12. AT&T CELL TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT - Owner (District) Signature of Application
with County and Approval of AT&T Plans

Discussion — Staff and Legal Counsel have been working on the Lease Agreement with
Cingular/AT&T. The company is in the process of submitting an application to the El
Dorado County Planning Department. The county requires the District’s signature on some
of AT&T’s application documents.

Darrell Creeks summarized the staff report indicating authorizing the signing of this
document required by El Dorado County will allow AT&T to move forward with the project.
He stated that Legal Counsel is making sure everything is all done in the right order.

Director Uso commented that there are lots of complaints in the community about the lack
of cell service in certain areas and asked if there was some merit to reaching out to other
service providers to inform them of possible cell tower sites in the District.

Darrell indicated that they usually come to us. Legal Counsel stated it is the service
providers who knows where the particular gaps. AT&T was trying to low ball us for less rate
and Robin got them to agree with the rates with wanted. Pleased with how Legal Counsel
negotiated to AT&T on the appropriate rate.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board authorize the Interim
General Manager to sign the application for Cell Tower Eligible Request, as required by the
County.

Motion by Director Hoelscher to authorize the Interim General Manager to sign the
application for the Cell Tower Eligible Request, as required by the County. Second
by Director Wadle.

Public Comment: The Board received a comment that the District should “make
money.”

The motion passed unanimously.
13. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM DEAN LACEY TO SPLIT IRRIGATION WATER SERVICE

Discussion — The District is in receipt of a letter from Dean Lacey, an irrigation customer,
requesting approval to split the water service on his parcel at 5200 Andy Wolf Road.

Darrell summarized the request to split irrigation water service. The following points were
made by Board members and staff during the ensuing discussion:

e The Ordinance is vague relative to splitting service when the customer owns both
parcels.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page S of 8



e Concern was expressed that property owners have been on a waiting list for
irrigation service.
e This split is similar to what was allowed at Dougherty.

Director Hanschild stated he could not take action without reading the Ordinance and said
he would like to defer the item to the next meeting.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board approve this request.

Motion by Director Hanschild to table this item to next month’s Board meeting and
direct Staff to provide the Board with a copy of the Ordinance to review in
considering action. Second by Director Wadle.

Public Comment: The Board received the following comments:

e |tis unfair to those property owners who have been waiting in line; and spoke about
how the Dougherty split affected him.

e One individual commented he would not have an argument with splitting service
between two parcels owned by the same property owner.

e Already set a precedence with Dougherty property. 36:24 Director Uso hesitates
calling that as a precedence because he is not sure it was approved with due
diligence.

e Needs clarity with regard to the Ordinance.

The motion passed unanimously.

14. DISCUSSION ABOUT CHANGING THE GDPUD’S ELECTION SYSTEM FROM
AT-LARGE TO DISTRICT-BASED REPRESENTATION

Discussion - This agenda item was added at the request of Director Carl Hoelscher to
allow the Board to discuss changing the District’s election system from at-large
representation to district-based (area) representation.

Director Hoelscher expressed his strong feelings about the election system in this District.
A district-based election system would provide for fairer representation. He pointed out that
currently four Board members are from one area.

Director Uso shared his experience in San Juan Capistrano where they went from an at-
large system to a district-based. This was considered to ensure equal representation for
protected minority groups in the community. He pointed out that the GDPUD is a small
district with no such protected minority groups. You would be talking about a few hundred
votes in each district, if you were able to find anyone to run.

Director Wade shared his perspective that district elections result in representatives
prioritizing only for their area; those elected at-large have a tendency to look at matters on a
district-wide basis, which is a good thing. He added that this matter should be added to the
new General Manager’s list of priorities and objectives.

Director Hoelscher agreed that this is not a pressing issue, but it is something that needs to
be discussed. Director Uso added that it could be added to a future Board workshop with
the new General Manager.

Possible Board Action — It is Staff's recommendation that the Board discuss this matter
and provide direction.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 6 of 8



15. ALT TREATMENT PLANT UPDATE
Discussion — This constitutes this month’s update on the ALT Treatment Plant Project.

George Sanders introduced himself as the District’s Engineering Consultant tasked primarily
with the ALT Water Treatment Plant Project. He expanded on his written report. He indicated
that he and the Interim General Manager met with the Project Manager in late December and
discussed the following:

e Modification to Pipe Type in Raw Water Line. It is currently made of a substandard
material causing leaks, so we're looking at some different material types, including
one that Director Hoelscher brought to Staff’s attention. The Contractor will provide
an estimate to identify the added costs or potential savings.

e Preliminary Baseline Work Schedule. The Contractor has 590 working days once we
issue the Notice to Proceed. We have not issued the Notice to Proceed yet, but that’s
coming soon. Some of the delays has to do, obviously, with the weather.

e Schedule of Values. The Contractor provided a Schedule of Values which is extremely
beneficial to the District in managing the cash flow.

e Proposed Changes fo the Work. Discussed some modifications that will likely require
the Contractor to sign a clause to allow for these grade modifications.

George made reference to the aftached schedule from Psomas for design services during
construction management. He indicated he is working with Psomas to reduce cost and would
like for it not to exceed 2% of the total cost.

Possible Board Action - It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board receive and file this
report.

16. DISCUSSION OF RESOLUTION FOR A BALANCED BUDGET

Discussion — Director Hoelscher requested that the Board discuss a resolution for a
balanced budget.

Director Hoelscher stated that he brought this up, because there are many financial issues
going forward that need to be addressed for a balanced budget, such as CalPERS.

Legal Counsel stated there are statutory requirements that the District has enough revenue
to cover costs. Director Uso stated that the Board needs to do a better job informing the public
about fiscal issues.

Possible Board Action — Discuss and take appropriate action.
17. EL DORADO COUNTY WATER AGENCY - USE OF VENDOR LIST

Discussion — The El Dorado County Water Agency is empowered to negotiate contracts with
the District for water management and facility construction. Such contracts currently exist
between the Agency and District. The Agency has developed a vendor pool of qualified
contractors. The District currently has no listing of their own and could benefit from the ability
to utilize this list.

Darrell described the cost savings from pulling information. EDWA has a vendor list that they
have already vetted. It is helpful when districts like ours can utilize a list like that instead of
taking the time to look for vendors ourselves and vet them.

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 7 of 8



Possible Board Action - It is Staff's recommendation that the Board authorize Staff to use
the vendors on this list.

Motion by Director Wadle to authorize Staff to use the EDCWA'’s vendor list of qualified
contractors as long the District to go to bid when required. Second by Director
Hanschild.

The motion passed unanimously.

18. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONS TO FUTURE MEETING
AGENDAS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION OR RESEARCH TO BE COMPLETED
BY STAFF - Opportunity for Board members to discuss matters of interest to them and
provide input for future meetings as well as report on their District-related meeting
attendance.

Director Uso stated that each Director has the right to place items on the Agenda. Director
Hoelscher had emailed him and Darrell Creeks to request the addition of two items and he
was pleased to accommodate him. However, he asked that Board Members to use this
portion of the agenda to request that items be placed on the Agenda. This will allow an
opportunity to provide clarity and direction to Staff on the agenda items requested.

No additional agenda items were presented at this time.
The Board adjourned to Close Session at 3:17 PM.
19. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION - EMPLOYEE EVALUATION

Pursuant to Government Code 54957(b)(1), the Board adjourns to closed session
for: PUBLIC EMPLOYEE INTERVIEWS

TITLE: General Manager
20. ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION - Announcement of action taken in closed session.

The Board adjourned to Open Session at 3:18 PM. No action taken during closed session
was announced.

21. NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT - Next regular meeting February 14, 2017,
at 2:00 PM, at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office.

The meeting was adjourned at 3:19 PM.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a
disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Darrell
Creeks by telephone at 530-333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early
as possible and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting. In accordance with
Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda was posted on the District’s bulletin board at the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main Street, Georgetown, California, on
January 6, 2017.

77 4 /17

DarrellCreeks, Interim Gerferal Manager Daté

GDPUD Regular Meeting Agenda, January 10, 2017 Page 8 of 8



CONFORMED AGENDA
SPECIAL MEETING

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA

MONDAY, JANUARY 30, 2017
4:00 PM

MISSION STATEMENT

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to:

Provide reliable water supplies

Ensure high quality drinking water

Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health and quality of life

Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff

Insure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long term needs

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm. Directors present: David Halpin, Jesse Hanschild, Carl
Hoelscher, Lon Uso and Dane Wadle. Staff present: Office Manager / Meeting Recorder: Diane
Schroeder. Legal Counsel: Helane Seikaly of Churchwell White.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Motion by Director Halpin to approve the agenda. Second by Director Hanschild.
Public Comment: None

The motion passed unanimously.

PUBLIC FORUM - This is a special meeting under Government Code Section 54956. Public comment is
limited to items appearing on the agenda. Under Section 54954.3, the public shall have the right to comment
on any items appearing on the agenda prior to or during consideration of this item. Public comment on items
not appearing on the agenda should be made at the regular meetings of the District.

No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Board meeting. Persistence in disruptive conduct shall be
grounds for summary termination, by the President, of that person's privilege of address.

No public comment.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION — Public Employee Release. The board adjourned to closed session
at 4:03 pm.

Pursuant to Government Code 54957, the Board adjourns to closed session for: Public Employee Release
(§54957)

ADJOURN TO OPEN SESSION — Announcement of action taken in closed session.

The board returned to open session at 4:11 pm and reported the employee is released from probationary
period.

NEXT MEETING DATE AND ADJOURNMENT - The next regular meeting will be February 14, 2017,
at 2:00 PM at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office.

GDPUD Special Meeting Agenda, January 30, 2017 Page 1 of 2



In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a disability-related
modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Wendell Wall by telephone at 530-333-
4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full business day before
the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this agenda was posted on the
District’s bulletin board at the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, at 6425 Main Street, Georgetown,
California, on January 26, 2017.

VW/ aaaaa 2/15/17

Darrell Creeks, Téferim General h'/fanager Date

GDPUD Special Meeting Agenda, January 30, 2017 Page 2 of 2



GDPUD
PO BOX 4240

Georgetown, CA 95634
(530) 333 4356
Fax: (530) 333-9442

Memo

To:  Board of Directors
From: Christina Cross, Administrative Aide II
Date: February 14, 2016
Re:  Final Early Accounts Payable for February 2017
Please take note that checks have been printed and mailed prior to February 14, 2017 for the
following vendors to take advantage of early payment discounts or to comply with payment
deadline.
Verizon Wireless
AARP Wells Fargo SRF
ACWA/JPIA
Anthem Blue Cross
AT&T
Blue Shield of CA
BOE
Churchwell White
De Lage Landen
Home Depot
Legal Shield
Medical Eye Services
Mobile Mini
Mountain Democrat
PG&E
Powernet Global
Premier Access Dental
Pro Line Cleaning Services
Robinson Enterprise
United Health Care



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Accounts Payable -- February 2017 Final Pay

Name Description Amount Account Amount
ACWA JPIA - Employee Benefits $77,590.50 5118 $4,568.79
5218 $11,628.06

5318 $9,303.53

5418 $17,392.95

5518 $8,423.51

5618 $11,181.72

6718 $3,326.30

12-5668 $11,765.64

ADT - Monthly service cost $187.28 10-5380 $39.89
10-5680 $147.39

All Cycles $2,104.33 5138 $15.89
5246 $2,003.44

5446 $85.00

ARC $52.77 1553 $52.77
AT&T-Monthly Service $809.09 5344 $235.69
5544 $216.39

5644 5190.45

6744 $99.67

30-1226 $66.89

Chris Barbour $160.00 5438 $100.00
5484 $60.00

Sharon Barbour $900.00 5439 $900.00
Bear Creek Quarry $225.00 5438 $225.00
BJ Pest control $360.00 5676 $360.00
Board of Equalization $522.00 5638 $522.00
California Diesel & Power $3,866.08 5346 $3,866.08
California Laboratory Services $943.74 6784 $943.74
Caltronics-Copier contract-copy charges $282.35 5640 $282.35
Carmody $59.00 6744 $59.00
CCS Interactive $69.00 5640 $69.00
Costco $55.00 5689 $55.00
Churchwell White $9,115.76 40-6736 $50.00
5636 $2,675.00

5636-010 $2,785.76

5636-012 $1,697.50

5636-015 $385.00

1553-911 $1,522.50

Corbin Willits Service $1,463.20 5546 $276.60
5646 $276.60

5380 $585.00

5480 $325.00

De Lang-Copier Lease 1/1/17-1/31/17 $238.63 5640 $238.63
De Lang-Formax Machine Lease 1/1/17-1/31/17 $186.04 5640 $186.04
Department of Forestry & Fire Protection $3,886.54 5211 $3,886.54
Diamond Well Drilling $530.00 5384 $80.00

10of5




5484 $450.00

Director Payments:
Halpin, Dave-January Stipend $400.00 5670 $400.00
Hanschild, Jesse-January Stipend $400.00 5670 5400.00
Hoelscher, Carl- January Stipend $400.00 5670 $400.00
Uso, Lon-January Stipend 5$400.00 5670 5$400.00
Wadle, Dane-January Stipend $400.00 5670 5$400.00
Divide Auto Parts $623.21 5138 $235.41
5238 $136.02
5438 $251.78
Divide Supply, Inc $357.13 5338 $286.34
5438 $37.92
6738 $32.87
Ecorp Consulting, Inc $2,746.10 5128 $2,746.10
El Dorado County Registrar of Voters $6,815.87 5691 $6,815.87
El Dorado Air Quality Management District $1,757.67 6784 $554.89
5384 $1,202.78
El Dorado Community Development Agency/Environmental $562.00 5384 $562.00
El Dorado Disposal $310.74 5344 $207.16
5644 $103.58
EN2 Resources, Inc $5,314.75 1650 $5,314.75
Fechter $6,377.00 5627 $6,377.00
Ferguson $3,783.96 5438 $3,783.96
Ferrellgas $1,003.17 5644 $1,003.17
Garden Valley Feed & Hardware $31.59 5438 $31.59
G&O Body Shop $145.00 5280 $145.00
Gempler's $26.82 6738 $26.82
George Sanders $5,120.00 5380-907 $2,640.00
5380 $240.00
5680 $1,160.00
5680-010 $1,080.00
Georgetown Ace Hardware $385.66 5138 $78.42
5338 $10.73
5438 $214.84
5638 $81.67
GDPUD-Petty Cash Dec 2016-Feb 2017 $202.75 5638 $72.02
5438 $62.68
5640 $7.29
5641 $60.76
Georgetown Gazzette, LLC-Founders Day $165.68 5340 $165.68
Global Machinery $362.86 5138 $181.43
5238 $181.43
Goodyear $519.57 5438 $519.57
Harris Gas 5§220.38 5239 $70.00
5439 $70.00
5438 580.38
Holdrege & Kull Consulting Engineers $2,000.00 6780 $2,000.00
Home Depot $473.03 5139-502 $154.98

20f5




5239-502 $154.97

5438 $163.08

Legalshield $170.05 5190 $8.95
5290 $26.85

5390 $8.95

5490 $35.80

5590 $17.90

5690 $35.80

5690-010 $26.85

6790 $8.95

MC Engineering, Inc $7,514.95 5480 $7,514.95
Medical Eye Services February 2017 $625.84 5118 $37.48
5218 $112.44

5318 518.74

5418 $74.96

5518 $37.48

5618 $307.26

6718 $37.48

MJT Enterprises, Inc-Temporary Labor $3,787.44 5511 $827.84
5611-010 $2,590.00

5611 $369.60

Mobile Mini-Storage Rental $184.39 5639 $184.39
Mountain Democrat $111.54 5640 $111.54
National Document Solutions $1,647.25 5644 $1,647.25
NTU Technologies, Inc $6,764.80 5338 $6,764.80
PG&E-Utilities Electric $20,373.83 5344 $17,830.78
5444 $365.00

5644 $970.29

6744 $1,207.76

Pape $98.80 5638 $98.80
Phillips Steel $90.54 5438 $90.54
Powernet Global $139.64 5644 $139.64
Premier Access Dental January 2017 $2,524.30 5118 $111.56
5218 $278.90

5318 $55.78

5418 $278.90

5518 $111.56

5618 $1,576.04

6718 $111.56

Proline Cleaning Services, Inc $250.00 5676 $250.00
Robinson Enterprise-Gasoline & Diesel $3,252.12 5148 5395.53
5248 $1,003.82

5348 $516.94

5448 $1,196.60

6748 $139.23

Rocklin Saw Works $637.50 5180 $318.75
5280 $318.75

Santander $1,230.88 2113 $1,077.57
5610 $153.31

30f5




Sierra Chemical Company $3,621.00 5338 $3,621.00
Siren & Associates $12,180.00 5680 $3,150.00
6780 $1,680.00
5180 $7,350.00
Jason Smith $45.00 5484 $45.00
Bryan Stiles $200.00 5138 $200.00
Teichert Aggregates $513.03 5438 $513.03
United Rentals $1,000.00 5441 $400.00
5241 $600.00
US Postal Service-Permit 6 $2,000.00 5540 $1,500.00
5640 $300.00
6740 $200.00
USA Blue Book $282.30 5338 $282.30
Valley Pump $1,083.24 6738 51,083.24
Vaughn Johnson, CPA $3,210.00 5680 $3,210.00
Verizon Wireless $558.66 5344 $27.13
5444 $372.94
5644 $131.89
6744 $26.70
Walkers $342.49 5640 5162.93
5639 §122.16
6738 5$28.70
5538 528.70
White Cap $419.15 5138 $104.78
5238 $157.18
5438 $157.19
Wienhoff $30.00 5441 $30.00
Total General Fund $219,799.99 $219,799.99
RETIREE FUND
AARP Medicare Rx - February 2017 $33.40 12-5668 $33.40
Blue Sheild of CA-J. Leu 2/1/17-4/30/17 $639.00 12-5668 $639.00
Blue Sheild of CA-E. Leu 2/1/17-4/30/17 $792.00 12-5668 $792.00|
Anthem Blue Cross-Retiree Insurance Prem. 1/1/17-1/31/17 $1,560.11 12-5668 $1,560.11
Anthem Blue Cross-Retiree Insurance Prem. 2/1/17-2/28/17 $1,240.28 12-5668 $1,240.28
Anthem Blue Cross- P. Herford 1/1/17-3/1/17 12-1157
Blue Shield of CA - ] St Dennis February 2017 $169.00 12-5668 $169.00
Blue Shield of CA - J St Dennis March 2017 $169.00 12-5668 $169.00
Blue Shield of CA - M. Davis 3/1/117-5/31/17 $483.00 12-5668 $483.00
Unitedhealthcare Ins - Prepay for D Schwagel, February 2017 $142.25 12-5668 $142.25
Unitedhealthcare Ins - Prepay for D Schwagel, March 2017 $142.25 Dec-68 $142.25
Total Retiree Fund $5,370.29 FUND #12 $5,370.29
STUMPY MEADOWS EMERGENCY RESERVE FUND (SMERF)
[Wells Farge SRF $4,593.90 1115 $4,593.90
Total SMERF Fund $4,593.90 FUND#19 $4,593.90

4 0of 5




Capital Reserve Fund

Auburn Ford $47,833.28 1414-502 $47,833.28

Total Capital Reserve Fund $47,833.28 Fund #43 $47,833.28
[TOTALALL FUNDS IN GENERAL ACCOUNT |$277,597.46 | | $277,597.46]

Approved for Payment:

~ <
Treasurer v \g 4 General Manager

50f5



N 16'G89'6698% [EJOL puein
%820 | losoz¢016'9 _pun4 jusuisaau; Aousby [eo0]
%00 s)sodaq awi] palayoig obie s|iopn
000 - 69°€25'62 SIUN00OY 1930 pun4 Buiajonsy djels obued siisp
%L 0 0’671 '699'L sbuineg yueg sbuiaes opeloq |3
- %E0°0 Z8'ZP5'06 Bupoayd yueg sBuineg opeloq |3
‘uoljew.oju; ayey UNo2oY Jo adA] Aq sieyo
166896698 000 (G '£€6°GBE) 80'ZFE'68 821429006
29°0pS 181 Z90rS'LaL pun4 uoioauue) aalesay Sad Lv|zy
1692/ 'ce L6'9Z/'CE Aoy nedsy g sueon justusoeidey duel [1v|Lv
9/'/G1'¥E6 (L 2#F OF) 6E'T8F EL 15221196 pung suoz (11v) Sjiel] 83e wnany o
25'098 %9/ 25098 79/ MBS [BJIdeD JIM - 11V |ve
v’ 291°2/9'} OF /91219 sebleyQ Aljioe [eided]se
B6L92V L. 6.9z L. JoUsIq Jusweoldw] 1sjeA Asjie/ uspies| Le
S6°/60Q'GLE G6'/60'GLE A5uaby Uonoajol [EJUSWUOIAUT|GE
000 000 9Z 0} pund buipjoH uoisualxg suijedid L¢
L 1'608°689 (€1°29) $Z'9/8'685 pun4 0IpAH jlews|os
/8'687 6E (S6°962°2) GB'96Z ¢ /8687 6¢ pun BUIAjoASY 91eIS |6z
9l'/S£'60¢ 91 °/GE'B0Z yinog Assjad|zs
LO'LYS'6LL LO'LFO'BLL YHON AssiadLs
G8'/90'0S G8'/90'05 ynos [itH 10lid|¥S
(08°08%'2) (08 08¥" ) UHON [(IH 10ltd|€S
89'7/£'950'L (68°250°0¢) /GZEL'880°L buues|) sen eriesay jejided|cy
(443INS) pun4 sniesey
GL/8Y'LPO"L (22'9¢57) LE'GZO'OKC'L Aousbiswz smopeayy Adwnjs|6l
06760 66¢ 06 #60'65¢ JusuidojaAs(d Jeiep| L1
6160599 (00°082) GL'BSZ /9 SpLASI JUSWISSSSSY JaylQ B Peoy sukeg|gz
189'€8/'87 89'€8/'8¢ Sui JemalS| L
8+ 0£8 0S (110t9) 0L2/072 69661 GHG ealjor|z1L
91°999'86€ (€0°0rZ"90¢€) 10'/66'%9 Z1'60F°0v9 pun [eseuss (oL
(r#°290'62) (82v€9'?) 45619 (ez'1z670€) ueI9 AGYO |6
000v£912 000v£9LC pund anNIns |8
JONVIVe (LNO) NI SINIWASUNG S1dI323y JONVIveE
ONIAGNT SHIAISNVHL -Sld HSVD HSVD ONINNID3]

9102 ‘L¢ ¥IEWIO3A SFONVIVE LNIWLSIANI ANV HSVD 40 INFWILVIS

LJ0A.LSId ALITLLN D17€Nd 3AIAId NMOLIDH0TD




] e N amw:m,_b_ el %&00 aﬂ VoV e, ._wh:wmmh._.
\\\Q\\W 27 77) “WRe
717 A M /
cw>oaa<
820'665°L$ Z10Z ‘0¢ dunr Jo se saAlosal |B)0)} |enjoy
LZv'izv'es - ] ELOZ ‘0 3UNr Jo se SaAI9Sal |B)0) [enjoY
z9c‘seL'es PLOZ ‘0 aunr Jo se saA19s3l |e)0) [enjoy
sigzové$ | |, [ §L0Z ‘0¢ aunr Jo se saAI9sal |ej0) [enjoy
00°Z06°CZ‘0L 00°€29°918°0L STLLELYO'L
681°10¢ 000°20€ szh'evl'l BUOZ/I9)eMBISEM - |€J0] NS
uoijeaida( pajenwnooy %0G! | LLZ05T 000052 89Z°GLZ [eydeQ - waysAg |esodsig Ayunwiwod
000'6$ e j9s Junowy| | 000°‘s 000°s leyded - suozy
asuadxe wco_«m._wao yjuow omj mhm.m@ ooc.Nm 86 r..vnm mco_um._maO - 19JeMB)SEAA|
junowe [enpy| | 6LZ°L9Y 161705 608°685 OL3o8}20IpAH
junowe |enpoy| | §9.°1ZY «| G€T°129 0£8'0vs UieaH sainey
sjunowe [enjoy| | 1L66°08Y ZIPLEY 891°90S soIMes1geq| |
8£.°825'8 S£8°756°8 8.0°G58'Y Jajep - [BJ01 gng
uoljeroaidaq pajeinwnooy %0s| | 915°1L/8°/ Ge8'c6L's 168'2/6 SeAIesal 18I0
1989/ (vasn Aq paunbal) anlesey Juswaoe|day
1 201°229"L sebreyd Ayoed [ended
18V L0 L pun4 aAtasay Aousabiawg smopeaiy Adwnmg
‘lended - 1o1epn
sales 19)eM %01 | zzZ'L61 000602 MO YSED - JoIeAA
asuadxa suonelado yjuow om] 000'01LS 000°0SS 999'86¢ suonesadQ - 181epA
- PaYIPNY GL-71L0Z 196png /1-9102 ‘deoay spun4 Aoljo aA1asaN/spun pajeubisaq 1osiq
wouj pajemnojen pajewns3y
€2 1L1E° L9728 N
1 G208ERlLY Popeys ae spund pojousey |
28192 VN L m. sajjey ur ey spun+ b&mt@wmQ
91'999'86€$ spun4 pajeubisepun pajoLisalun

:deday spund pajol)say pue pajeubiseq ‘palIsalun siseg bununodoy

9102 ‘L€ ¥39W303d SIONVIVE LNJWLSIANI ANV HSVD 40 LNJW3LVLS

LORILSIA ALITLLN 21TaNd 3AIAId NMOLIDH0ID




O
Memo [eorup ]
O

To: Board of Directors
From: Diane Schroeder, Office Manager
Date: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: MID-YEAR BUDGET AND INVESTMENT REVIEW
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda ltem #04C

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

There have been a few small changes to both the Operations Budget and Capital Budget for
Fiscal Year 2016-2017. (Please see Attachment 1 and 2 to this report.) These changes
add clarification for the Board to review.

FY 2016-2017 Revised Operations Budget

The July-December 2017 Expense and Revenue accounts have been reviewed Year-to-Date
(YTD). A correction to Account 5094 for Depreciation did not include a budgeted amount
which skewed the overall operating budget to 63% (see Attachment 2).

Adjusting the depreciation forecast in the amount of $632,837.00 accurately reflect assets as
of December 2016. Simply adding a budgeted amount to this account total operating
expenses would reflect 52% in additional budget changes to Accounts 5038 and 5039.

The two expense accounts need to be adjusted. Cost associated with three CIP projects
need to accurately capture the cost in Fund 43, as described below:

Adjust the following two accounts:

- Account 5038 (Materials & Supplies) current disbursements in the amount of $108,049.00
(Attachment 2) need to be adjusted to $98,105.00 (Attachment 1). $9,943.74 will be
funded out of Fund 43.

- Account 5039 (Rentals/Outsourced Maintenance) current disbursements in the amount of
$46,025.00 (Attachment 2) will be adjusted to $26,867.00 (Attachment 1). $19,158.03 will
be funded out of Fund 43.

The amount from the above-mentioned accounts are three projects that need to be added to
the CIP Projects, Fund 43:

- Upper Ditch Project (100% completed) with a budgeted amount of $18,000.00. The
total cost of the project came to $17,979.21.



Mid-Year Budget Revision Page 2
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017
Agenda ltem #04C

- Spanish Flat Project (100% complete) with a budgeted amount of $5,000. The total cost
of the project came to $4,593.57.

- Pipe Threader Equipment (purchased) in the amount of $6,528.96.

RECOMMENDATION

- Add a budget amount for depreciation to Department 5094.
- Create three CIP projects and adjust operational cost for Fund 5038 and 5039.
- Allow the District Accountant to make the above-mentioned adjustments.

Staff recommends Board approval of the FY 2016-17 Mid-Year Budget Revision.



ATTACHMENT 1
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Expense Summary Mid-Year Review

Budget To Date % of Budget
7/1/2016 -
Acct# EXPENSE CATEGORY 2016-2017 12/31/2016 Balance Spent
Operating Expenses:
5010]Labor 1,153,108 609,689 543,419 53%
5019]Overtime 64,000 38,699 25,301 60%
5017|Standby 55,500 27,640 27,860 50%
5011|Temporary Labor 94,000 30,027 63,973 32%
5014|PERS Benefits 117,592 67,264 50,328 57%
5015|Deferred Compensation 0 0 0 -
5016(Payroll Taxes 106,633 56,032 50,601 53%
5018{Insurance: Health & Life Plans 271,950 180,795 91,155 66%
5020|Insurance: Worker's Comp. 94,069 26,967 67,102 29%
5027 |Audit 22,000 10,003 11,997 45%
5028|Engineering-Studies, including Ecorp. 0 9,434 (9,434)
5034{Insurance: General 67,695 31,325 36,370 46%
121,000 43,830 77,170 38%
| 183650 . _ 53%
!l "-” 7 2 ___LJ .;I,_.; i l‘ .!I ' IiI Sl '
48,000 19,661 28,339 41%
5041|Staff Development 10,500 1,271 9,229 12%
5042| Travel--Conference 15,000 45 14,955 -
5044|Utilities 198,308 103,237 95,071 52%
5046|Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 51,000 28,629 22,371 56%
5048|Vehicle Operations 50,200 21,070 29,130 42%
5060|Bank Fees & Payroll Services 5,000 2,860 2,140 57%
5068|Retiree Health Premiums 132,000 82,984 49,016 63%
5070|Director Stipends 24,000 12,400 11,600 52%
5076|Building Maintenance 9,500 3,028 6,472 32%
5080{Outside Service/Consultants 133,000 87,053 45,947 65%
5084|Govt. Regulation/Lab Fees 170,000 85,238 84,762 50%
5090|Other: 2,000 1,456 544 73%
5090|Other: Recruitment 0 7,289 (7,289)
5090|Other: County Tax Admin. Fees 37,000 17,622 19,378 48%
5089:0ther: Memberships 16,500 5,615 10,885 34%]
5094 Depreciation 632,837 316,419 316,419 50%
Total Operating Expense $3,913,242 2,052,555 1,860,687 52%
Non-operating Expenses:
7010 Interest Expense $33,000 13,499 19,501 41%
7090 Other 2,626 (2,626)
Total Non-operating Expenses $33,000 16,126 16,874 49%
Total Expenses $3,946,242 2,068,680 1,877,562 44%

Net Income (Loss) $217,800 $145,945 67%



Acct# EXPENSE CATEGORY

Operating Expenses:

5010 Labor

5019 Overtime

5017 Standby

5011 Temporary Labor

5014 PERS Benefits

5015 Deferred Compensation

5016 Payroll Taxes

5018 Insurance: Health & Life Plans
5020 Insurance: Worker's Comp.

5027 Audit

5028 Engineering-Studies, including Ecorp.

5034 Insurance: General
5036 Legal-General
5038 Mator

pplies
ed Maintenance

5040 Office Supplies
5041 Staff Development

5042 Travel--Conference

5044 Utilities

5046 Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance
5048 Vehicle Operations

5060 Bank Fees & Payroll Services
5068 Retiree Health Premiums

5070 Director Stipends

5076 Building Maintenance

5080 Outside Service/Consultants
5084 Gowvt. Regulation/Lab Fees
5090 Other:

5090 Other: Recruitment

5090 Other: County Tax Admin. Fees
5089 Other: Memberships

5094 Depreciation

Total Operating Expense
Non-operating Expenses:
7010 Interest Expense
7090 Other
Total Non-operating Expenses

Total Expenses

Net Income (Loss)

ATTACHMENT 2
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Expense Summary (does not include a Depreciation Budget)

Budget To Date % of Budget Includes capi
71112016 -
2016-2017 12/31/2016 Balance Spent See without ¢
forecast
1,153,108 609,689 543,419 53% 1,275,000
64,000 38,699 25,301 60% 62,000
55,500 27,640 27,860 50% 54,000
94,000 30,027 63,973 32% 60,053
117,592 67,264 50,328 57% 325,000
0 0 0 0
106,633 56,032 50,601 53% 99,000
271,950 180,795 91,155 66% 361,591
94,069 26,967 67,102 29% 53,934
22,000 10,003 11,997 45% 9,270
0 9,434 (9,434) 18,868
67,695 31,325 36,370 46% 62,650
121,000 43,830 77,170 36% 87,860
183,650 108,049 75,601 59% 216,008
27,200 46,025  (18,825) 169% 92,049
48,000 19,661 28,339 41% 39,323
10,500 1,271 9,229 12% 2,541
156,000 45 14,955 90
198,308 103,237 95,071 52% 206,474
51,000 28,629 22,371 56% 57,258
50,200 21,070 29,130 42% 42,141
5,000 2,860 2,140 57% 5,720
132,000 82,984 49,016 63% 165,968
24,000 12,400 11,600 52% 24,800
9,500 3,028 6,472 32% 6,056
133,000 87,053 45,947 65% 174,107
170,000 85,238 84,762 50% 170,477
2,000 1,456 544 73% 2,000
0 7,289 (7,289) 14,578
37,000 17,622 19,378 48% 35,243
16,500 5,615 10,885 34% 11,230
316,419 632,837
$3,280,405 2,081,656 1,198,749 | 63% 4,388,016
$33,000 13,499 19,501 41% 26,998
2,626 (2,626) 5,253
$33,000 16,126 16,874 49% 32,251
$3,313,405 2,097,781 1,215,624 54%
% W/O Depr
$217,800 $116,844 54%



Memo

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: SURPLUS EQUIPMENT
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #04D

DISCUSSION / BACKGROUND

Staff has identified a vehicle that is currently not in use, to be declared as surplus. The
vehicle is a 1995 Ford F150 with 212,000 miles. The vehicle recently failed a smog check.
The vehicle has been replaced, with the purchase of a new vehicle as identified within the
current FY 2016-17 Budget.

Staff can provide additional information relative to the overall condition of this vehicle upon
request.

RECOMMENDATION

Itis Staff's recommendation that the Board declare the vehicle described above as surplus and
direct Staff to dispose of it through an auction or by other appropriate action.



Memo

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Director Lon Uso, President
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE EMPLOYEMENT AGREEMENT WITH STEVE PALMER
FOR THE POSITION OF GENERAL MANGER

Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #05

DISCUSSION / BACKGROUND

The Board of Directors initiated the recruitment process for a new General Manager at its Board
meeting of August 9, 2016. Through Ralph Anderson & Associates, an executive search
consulting firm, the Board announced the opening, received and vetted numerous applications,
and conducted interviews to evaluate the applicants’ knowledge, experience, administrative
skills, and abilities.

The Board is pleased to announce the selection of Steve Palmer for the position of General
Manager.

Mr. Palmer brings to the District a wealth of experience and knowledge acquired as the Director
of Public Works for the City of St. Helena; through his years as Supervising Engineer and Project
Manager with consulting engineering firms that provide engineering support to municipalities
throughout California; as well as engineering management positions with other California cities,
including the cities of Wildomar, Lincoln, and Elk Grove. His list of career achievements is
impressive.

This Employment Agreement allows Steve Palmer to begin his assignment with the District on
March 6, 2017.

RECOMMENDATION

Approve and authorize the Board President to execute the Employment Agreement with Steve
Palmer for the position of General Manager.



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY
DISTRICT GENERAL MANAGER (/\l ?
A

\_}\ THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this+4%

%{ day of WOU (“Effective Date”), by and between the Georgetown Divide Public Utility

District, a California public utilities district (the “District”) and Steve Palmer (“Employee™), an

individual. The District and Employee may individually be referred to herein as “Party” or
collectively as “Parties”. There are no other parties to this Agreement.

RECITALS
A. The District has created the position of District manager (“General Manager”),

pursuant to Public Utilities Code section 16111(d), to be the administrative head of the District
government under the direction and control of the District's Board of Directors (“Board”).

B. The District has been actively recruiting for the position of General Manager and
has interviewed numerous qualified applicants.

C. The Board has evaluated Employee's knowledge, experience, administrative skills
and abilities, as evidenced in his professional background, and has determined that Employee is
the best candidate within the District's General Manager salary range and is qualified to fill the
position of General Manager.

D. The Parties desire to execute this Agreement pursuant to the authority of, and
subject to the provisions of, Government Code Section 53260 et seq. to appoint Employee as the
General Manager forthe District.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants entered into between the
Parties and in consideration of the benefits that accrue to each, it is agreed as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (“Recitals”) are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Sections 1 through 19 of this Agreement, Sections 1
through 19 shall prevail.

Section 2. Appointment of General Manager, Duties and Term

Section 2.1 Appointment of General Manager. The Board hereby appoints Employee to
the position of General Manager in and for the District to perform the function and duties of the
General Manager as specified in this Agreement, and Employee accepts such appointment and
employment pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

Section 2.2 Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and
shall continue until terminated by one or both of the Parties (“Term”), as outlined in Section 15 of
this Agreement.

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 1 of 11



Section 2.3. General Manager Duties. For the Term, Employee shall perform the
functions of the General Manager position in accordance with Public Utilities Code section 16114,
the terms of this Agreement, and the District's General Manager job description, last ratified as of
May 2001, which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Employee's duties, responsibilities, and
limitations as General Manager include, but are not limited to:

A. Under administrative direction of the Board, Employee shall be in charge of the
administrative public relations, personnel and general affairs of the District. Employee shall
represent the Board's policies and programs with other employees, community organizations and
the general public. Employee shall report to the Board as needed, including at regular and special
meetings, work with other employees of the District, including preparation of contracts, review of
budget requests and to make those recommendations reasonably necessary to run the District.

B. Employee does not have authority to enter into any contract in excess of Ten
Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) without the express consent of the Board. Employee has authority
to enter into any contract up to Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), which expenditure is set forth
in the approved annual budget, consistent with District Ordinance 2012-18 or any modification
thereto, which sets forth the General Manager’s contracting authority.

C. Employee shall conduct the business of the District and report to the District at
general or other meetings noticed by the District. Employee shall otherwise have the responsibility
and authority for operation of all works of the District, including its infrastructure, reservoirs,
tanks, water treatment plants, water conveyance, water pipelines, and any and all other equipment
and property. Employee shall be responsible for supervising and directing personnel at the District,
including personnel actions. However, Employee shall not have the authority to alter the job
position or compensation of any employee without express permission and consent of the Board.

D. Employee shall become fully aware and knowledgeable of the requirements of
the applicable job duties of the General Manager. Employee acknowledges receipt of a copy of the
job description for General Manager for the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, last ratified
as of May 2001. Employee represents to have the time, skill and background in order to properly
effectuate those job duties.

Section 2.4 No Secondary Employment. Employee agrees to devote all of his productive
time, ability and attention to the District's business. During the Term of this Agreement, Employee
shall not hold secondary employment and shall be employed exclusively by the District, subject to
any exceptions approved in writing by the Board. Provided, however, that Employee has the right
to volunteer for such nonprofit organizations as he may see fit; and further provided that such
volunteer services shall not interfere with his duties as General Manager.

Section 2.5 Exempt Position. The position of General Manager is an exempt position for
purposes of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. § 201 et seq.). The general business
hours for District employees are Monday through Friday, 7:45 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. This full-time
employment will typically average forty (40) hours of work per week. Employee's typical working
hours will be during regular business hours, plus evening hours as needed to attend Board meetings

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 2 of 11



and other District business. However, it is recognized by the Parties that Employee's hours may
exceed forty (40) hours of work per week. As such, Employee shall not receive overtime or extra
compensation for hours worked outside of general business hours which are necessary to fulfill
the duties of the General Manager position.

Section 2.6 At-Will Employment. Employee is an “at will” employee serving at the
pleasure of the Board, as provided in Public Ultilities Code section 16112. Accordingly, the Board
may terminate Employee's employment at any time, with or without cause, by a three-fifths (3/5)
vote of the Board.

Section 2.7 Probationary Period. Employee shall be subject to a six (6) month
probationary period, commencing on the Effective Date of this Agreement, during which period
the District may terminate Employee at any time, with or without notice, for cause or for the
convenience of the District.

Section 2.8 No Property Right in Employment. Employee understands and agrees that
the terms of his employment are governed only by this Agreement, and that no right of employment
for any specific term is created by this Agreement. Employee further understands that based on his
“at will” employment status, he acquires no property interest in his employment by virtue of this
Agreement, and that he is not entitled to an administrative hearing or other due process for any
disciplinary actions, including termination, by the District.

Section 2.9 No Membership in Bargaining Unit. Employee understands that he is not a
member of any bargaining unit and is not covered by the terms of any Memorandum of
Understanding with any represented or unrepresented group of District employees

Section 3. Compensation.

Section 3.1 Base Salary. Employee shall be paid at a rate of One Hundred Fifty-Five
Thousand Dollars ($155,000) (“Base Salary”) per year. Payments will be made on regularly
scheduled payroll dates and shall be subject to all applicable payroll withholdings. Such
compensation shall be the only compensation the District pays, and the Employee receives, for
Employee's services under this Agreement.

Section 3.2 Health, Dental, and Vision Insurance Benefits. During the Term of this
Agreement, the District agrees to contribute to basic medical insurance premiums, excluding
dental and vision, in the following manner: (A) for the Employee only plan, the District will pay
one hundred percent (100%) of the premium for the lowest plan available; (B) for the Employee
plus one dependent plan or the Employee plus two or more dependents, the District shall pay the
premium at the previous year maximum contribution rate and shall adjust up to ninety-three
percent (93%) of the costs of the current year premium for the lowest plan available, as shown in
Exhibit B, which is attached hereto. Notwithstanding the above, the District shall not pay for a
premium increase that exceeds twelve percent (12%) of the previous year's premium. For dental
and vision insurance, the District shall pay the premium for the Employee only, but coverage may
be extended to Employee's dependents at the option and expense of Employee.

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 3 of 11



Section 3.3 Life Insurance. The District shall pay for term life and accidental death and
dismemberment insurance coverage for Employee with a death benefit equal to Employee's Base
Salary, as provided in Section 3.1 of this Agreement.

Section 3.4 Retirement Benefits. Employee shall be enrolled in the PERS 2% at 62 Plan
with the three (3) highest year option. Pursuant to the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act,
Employee shall contribute half of the District's normal cost rate of contribution to his PERS plan
as his contribution portion. Employee's plan shall be integrated with Social Security and cost of
living adjustments shall not exceed two percent (2%).

Section 3.5 Deferred Compensation. Employee has been enrolled in the ICMA Deferred
Compensation Plan. The District will contribute five percent (5%) of his Base Salary on an annual
basis either throughout the year or annually, as determined by the District, to the ICMA Deferred
Compensation Plan in addition to Employee’s Base Salary.

Section 3.6 Vacation Leave. Employee shall accrue vacation leave at a rate of 4.615 hours
per biweekly pay period or up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) hours per year. The
Employee may accrue up to a total of three hundred twenty (320) hours of vacation leave. Once
Employee accrues the maximum three hundred twenty (320) hours of vacation leave, no additional
accrual will occur until Employee's bank of vacation leave is reduced below three hundred twenty
(320) hours. Employee will have forty (40) hours of vacation credited upon date of hire and
available for use immediately as needed.

Section 3.7 Sick Leave. Employee shall accrue sick leave at a rate of 3.69 hours for every
biweekly pay period, up to a maximum of ninety-six (96) hours or twelve (12) work days per year.
Employee shall begin accruing sick leave on the first day of his employment with the District.
Employee will have forty (40) hours of sick leave credited upon date of hire and available for use
immediately as needed.

Section 3.8 Cellular Phone. The District shall provide Employee with a cellular phone for
the Term of the Agreement, which shall be used for business calls. The District shall not be
responsible for charges or fees incurred by Employee's use of the cellular phone for personal
purposes.

Section 3.9 Holidays. Employee shall be entitled to observe, with pay, the twelve (12)
observed holidays as outlined in the District’s Personnel Rules.

Section 3.10 District-Related Business Travel Reimbursement. Employee’s duties
require that he have continuously available transportation for District business or other related
purposes. Employee agrees to provide and utilize his own vehicle for District-related business. The
District shall reimburse Employee for any District-related business travel at the Internal Revenue
Service (“IRS”) mileage rate, which may change from time to time.

Section 14. Performance Evaluation. For the first year of this Agreement, performance
evaluations shall be conducted following the end of the sixth (6th) and twelfth (12th) month
following the Effective Date of this Agreement. After the first year of this Agreement, performance

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page4 of 11



evaluations, shall be conducted annually in November of each year. The process, at a minimum,
shall include the opportunity for both parties to: (A) prepare a written evaluation, (B) meet and
discuss the evaluation, and (C) present a written summary of the evaluation results.

Section 15. Termination of Employment and Severance.

Section 15.1. Voluntary Resignation. Employee may resign at any time and agrees to
give the District at least sixty (60) days advance written notice of the effective date of Employee’s
resignation, unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. If Employee retires from full time public
service with the District, Employee shall provide at least three (3) months advance written notice.
Employee’s actual retirement date will be mutually established between the Parties. During the
notice period, all rights and obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall remain in full
force and effect. Promptly after the effective date of resignation, the District shall pay to Employee
all salary and benefit amounts both accrued and owing under this Agreement. In the event of
voluntary resignation, Employee shall not be entitled to Severance as set forth in Section 15.3 of
this Agreement.

Section 15.2. Termination by the Board. The Board may terminate this Agreement and
remove Employee from his position as the General Manager at any time, with or without cause,
by a three-fifths (3/5) vote of the entire Board. Employee shall not be removed from office during
or within a period of ninety (90) days following any general or special municipal election held at
which a member of the Board is elected. Upon termination, for any reason, the District shall
compensate Employee for all accrued vacation leave. This compensation shall be based upon
Employee’s salary as of the date of employment termination.

Section 15.3. Termination without Good Cause. In the event the District terminates this
Agreement without cause, the District may elect to pay Employee up to a sum equal to three (3)
months Base Salary (“Severance”). This potential Severance is subject to the restrictions of
Government Code section 53260 which sets out the maximum amount of Severance pay that
Employee may receive. Any cash settlement related to the termination of this Agreement received
by Employee from the District shall be fully reimbursed to the District if Employee is convicted
of a crime involving an abuse of his office or position while employed with the District, pursuant
to Government Code section 53243.2. This Severance shall be paid in the same manner as other
employees unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Employee. In the event the District
terminates this Agreement, Employee shall be entitled to continued medical and dental benefits at
his cost pursuant to the provisions of the federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation
Act.

Section 15.4. Termination for Good Cause. The District may at any time immediately
terminate this Agreement for good cause as defined in this Section 15.4. If Employee is terminated
for good cause, the District shall not be required to pay any Severance under this Agreement, and
the District shall have no obligation to Employee beyond those benefits accrued as of Employee’s
last day of employment and those the District is obligated to provide under federal or state law.

“Good Cause” for purposes of this Agreement, means a fair and honest cause or reason for
termination. These reasons include, but are not limited to:

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 5 of 11



Conviction of a felony;

Disclosing confidential information of the District;

Unjustifiable and willful neglect of the duties described in this Agreement;
(redundant of #3);

Any conduct which violates the District’s Personnel Rules and for which a
District employee may be terminated;

I

6. Repeated and protracted unexcused absences from General Manager’s
office and duties;

Willful destruction or misuse of District property;

Conduct that in any way has a direct, substantial, and adverse effect on the
District’s reputation;

9. Willful violation of federal, state or District discrimination laws;

10.  Continued substance abuse which adversely affects performance of
Employee’s duties as General Manager;

11.  Refusal to take or subscribe any oath or affirmation which is required by
law; or

12.  Permanent disability of Employee, or Employee becoming otherwise
unable to perform the duties of General Manager, by reason of sickness,
accident, illness, injury, mental incapacity or health for a period of six (6)
weeks following the exhaustion of all available leave balances and any
applicable Family Medical Leave Act or California Medical Leave Act
leaves, or where the same occurs for forty (40) working days over a sixty
(60) working day period following exhaustion of such leaves.

Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary, the Board may suspend
Employee with full pay and benefits at any time during the Term of this Agreement.

Section 16. Indemnification. The District shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Employee
against any tort, personnel, civil rights or professional liability claim or demand or other legal
action, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the
performance of Employee's duties as General Manager in accordance with California’s Tort Claims
Act (Government Code § 825 et seq.), and shall provide a defense to Employee in accordance with
Government Code sections 995-996.5. The District may decline to defend or indemnify Employee
only as permitted by the Government Code. The District may compromise and settle any such
claim or suit and pay the amount of any resulting settlement or judgment. Provided, however, that
the District's duty to defend and indemnify shall be contingent upon Employee's good faith
cooperation with such defense. In the event the District provides funds for legal criminal defense
pursuant to this Section, Employee shall reimburse the District for such legal criminal defense
funds if Employee is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position, as provided by
Government Code sections 53243-53243.4.

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 6 of 11



Section 17. Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between the District and
Employee must be in writing and may be given either personally, by facsimile (with original
forwarded by regular U.S. Mail), by registered or certified mail (return receipt requested), or by
Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight delivery. If personally
delivered, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the
Party to whom it is addressed. If given by facsimile transmission, a notice or communication shall
be deemed to have been given and received upon actual physical receipt of the entire document by
the receiving Party's facsimile machine. Notices transmitted by facsimile after 5:00 p.m. on a
normal business day or on a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, shall be deemed to have been given and
received on the next normal business day. If given by registered or certified mail, such notice or
communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of (i) actual
receipt by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent, or
(ii) five (5) days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed,
with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If given by Federal Express or similar
courier, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the date
delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving
ten (10) days written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution
of the address to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or
communications shall be given to the Parties at their addresses set forth below:

If to the District Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
6425 Main Street
Georgetown, CA 95634
Tel: (530) 333-4356
Fax: (530) 333-9442

With a courtesy copy to: Churchwell White LLP
1414 K Street, Third Floor
Sacramento, California 95814
Attention: Barbara A. Brenner, Esq.
Tel: (916) 468-0950
Fax: (916) 468-0951

If to Employee: Steven Palmer
P.O. Box 706
Newcastle, CA 95658
(916) 396-4221

Section 18. Exhibits. All “Exhibits” referred to below or attached to herein are, by this reference,
incorporated into this Agreement:

Exhibit Designation Exhibit Title

Exhibit A Job Description

Exhibit B Health Insurance Benefits

Exhibit C Personnel Policy

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement

Page 7 of 11



Section 19. General Provisions

Section 19.1 Modification. No alteration, amendment, modification, or termination of this
Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties to this Agreement.

Section 19.2 Waiver. No covenant, term, or condition, or the breach thereof, shall be
deemed waived, except by written consent of the Party against whom the waiver is claimed, and
any waiver of the breach of any covenant, term, or condition shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any preceding or succeeding breach of the same or any other covenant, term, or condition.

Section 19.3 Assignment. No Party to this Agreement shall assign, transfer, or otherwise
dispose of this Agreement in whole or in part to any individual, firm, or corporation without the
prior written consent of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall
be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties
hereto.

Section 19.4 Authority. All Parties to this Agreement warrant and represent that they have
the power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the names, titles, and capacities herein
stated on behalf of any entities, persons, states, or firms represented or purported to be represented
by such entities, persons, states or firms and that all former requirements necessary or required by
the state or federal law in order to enter into the Agreement have been fully complied with. Further,
by entering into this Agreement, neither Party; hereto, shall have breached the terms or conditions
of any other contract or agreement to which such Party is obligated, which such breach would have
a material effect hereon.

Section 19.5 Drafting and Ambiguities. Each Party acknowledges that it has reviewed this
Agreement with its own legal counsel and, based upon the advice of that counsel, freely entered
into this Agreement. Each Party has participated fully in the review and revision of this Agreement.
Any rule of construction that ambiguities are to be resolved against, the drafting party does not
apply in interpreting this Agreement.

Section 19.6 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

Section 19.7 Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of
California for El Dorado County.

Section 19.8 Severability. If this Agreement in its entirety is determined by a court to be
invalid or unenforceable, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as of the date of final entry
of judgment. If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined by a court to be invalid and
unenforceable, or if any provision of this Agreement is rendered invalid or unenforceable
according to the terms of any federal or state statute, which becomes effective after the Effective
Date of this Agreement, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force and effect and shall
be construed to give effect to the intent of this Agreement.

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 8 of 11



Section 19.9 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously and in several
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

Section 19.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, together with its specific references,
attachments and exhibits, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the subject
matters hereof and supersedes any and all prior negotiations, understanding and agreements with
respect hereto, whether oral or written.

Section 19.11 Supersedes Prior Agreements. It is the intention of the Parties hereto that
this Agreement shall supersede any prior agreements, discussions, commitments, or
representations whether, written, electronic or oral, between the Parties with respect to the subject
matter of this Agreement.

Section 19.12 Mandatory and Permissive. “Shall” and “will” and “agrees” are mandatory.
“May” and “can” are permissive.

Section 19.13 Successors and Assigns. All representations, covenants, and warranties
specifically set forth in this Agreement by or on behalf of, or for the benefit of, any or all of the
Parties hereto, shall be binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, such Party, its successors and
assigns.

Section 19.14 Headings. The headings in this Agreement are included for convenience only
and neither affect the construction or interpretation of any section in this Agreement, nor affect
any of the rights or obligations of the Parties to this Agreement.

Section 19.15 Attorney's Fees and Costs. If any action at law or in equity, including action
for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing
Party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs, which may be set by the court in the
same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which
such Party may be entitled.

Section 19.16 Necessary Acts and Further Assurances. The Parties shall, at their own cost
and expense, execute and deliver such further documents and instruments and shall take such other
actions as may be reasonably required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and
purposes of this Agreement.

Section 19.17 Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each
covenant and term of a condition herein.

SIGNATURE PAGE DIRECTLY FOLLOWS

{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement
Page 9 of 11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been entered into by and between EMPLOYEE
and the DISTRICT as of the date of the Agreement set forth above.

DISTRICT: EMPLOYEE:

i 1de P bhc‘Utlllty District, a
utilitydistrict i

Georgetown D

By. By: ‘ s
Lon Uso, Preéldent ™~ Steve Palmer, an individual
Date Signed: ; / 7 Date Signed: ‘/7/4 It
Appr(%/)rm and ﬁontent
Barbara A. Brenter District Gene;(al
Counsel
{CW035853.5} General Manager Employment Agreement

Page 10 of 11



EXHIBIT A — JOB DESCRIPTION

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.)

(CW035853.5) General Manager Employment Agreement



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District May 2001

GENERAL MANAGER

Definition

Under administrative direction of the Board of Directors; to be in charge of the administrative,
public relations, personnel, and general affairs of the District; to represent the Board’s policies
and programs with employecs, community organizations, and the general public; to review
budget requests and make recommendations to the Board on final expenditure levels; to be
responsible for employer-employce relations; and to do related work as required.

The General Ménager is appointed Clerk and ex officio Secretary of the Board.

Responsibilities of General Managqr

* The Manager appointed by the Board of Directors shall have the responsibility and
authority for the operation of all the works of the District. This includes $200,000,000
of operating infrastructure: eighteen reservoirs and tanks, two water treatment plants,
seventy miles of raw water conveyance, 200 miles of treated water pipeline, 3,500
services, and appurtenances in a 75,000 acre service area. Only the Manager’s assistants
and employees shall be permitted to operate District works unless otherwise directed by
the Board of Directors.

* The General Manager is responsible for assisting the Board of Directors in accomplishing
the Mission of GDPUD. It shall be the duty of the General Manager to enforce all
provisions set forth in the rules, regulations, ordinances, and policies. Any person
dissatisfied with any determination of the Manager shall have the right to appeal to the
Board of Directors of the District.

¢ The District Manager shall employ such assistants and other employees, as he may deem
necessary for the proper operation of the system subject to the approval of positions
established by the Board of Directors and at rates of compensation fixed by the Board.
The Manager shall delegate authority at his/her discretion. All persons employed in the
operation and maintenance of the District facilities shall be under the manager’s
direction.

Examples of Duties

Serves as the Chief Administrative Officer for the District.
In charge of preparing the annual operating budget, currently around $2,400,000, making
recommendations to the Board on final expenditure levels; reviews budget requests and
recommends approval or disapproval.
Oversees investments of short-term and long-term funds, curreatly totaling $5,000,000.
Has responsibility for District personnel matters, including employment procedures,
grievances, classification and pay, training and employer-employee relations and
negotiations.

* Makes decisions in emergencies which best serve the public health and safety of the
people of the District.



General Manager Pege 2

* Represents the Board's policies and programs with employees, community
representatives, and other government agencies, serving as lisison with State Water
Resource Control Board, Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board,
Department of Fish and Game, county Board of Supervisors, E] Dorado County Water
Agency, neighboring water districts, local fire districts, and other entities.

¢ Oversees the operation of onsite waste disposal systems on 1,100 home sites in the
Aubum Lake Trails Onsite Waste Disposal Zone.

*  Works directly with consultants and attorneys regarding personnel, water rights, and

engineering matters. '

Provides advice and consultation on the development of District programs and policies.

Oversees office operation, billing, and customer relations.

Oversees development of the Board Agenda for meetings.

Oversees preparation of leases and agreements with other agencies.

Oversees preparation of grant applications and maintains responsibility for proper

administration of grants received.

¢  Oversees preparstion for Jong-term capital improvement plans for financing.

Typical Physical Activities

¢ Travels frequently by automobile and occasionally by airplane in conducting District
business.

¢ Communicates orally with District Board members, co-workers, and the public in face-
to-face, one-to-onc and group settings.

* Regularly uses a telephone for communication.
¢ Uses office equipment such as computer terminals, copiers, and FAX machines.
* Sits for extended time periods.
*  Hearing and vision within normal ranges.
Special Requirements

Possession of an appropriate California operator’s license issued by the State Department of
Motor Vehicles. Possession and proof of a good driving record as evidenced by freedom from
multiple or serious traffic violations or accidents for at least two (2) years duration. The driving
record will not contribute to an increase in the District’s automobile insurance rates.

Employment Standards
Knowledge of:

¢ Principles and practices of public administration, including administrative analysis, fiscal
planning, and control, and policy and program development.

* Laws, rules, ordinances, and legislative process controlling District functions, programs,
and operations.
Organization, operations, and problems of special districts.
Research and evaluation methods.
Budgeting principles and practices.



General Manager Page 3

Knowledge of (continued)

[ ]
L]
®

Cost estimating and contract administration.
Public personnel administration, and employer-employee relations.
Principles of supervision training and management.

Ability to:

L]

Plan, organize, coordinate, and direct the work of staff to achieve efficient operations and
meet program goals.

Prepare and administer District budgeting and fiscal control processes.

Collect, organize, and analyze data on a variety of topics.

Prepare concise and comprehensive reports. -

Oversee the preparation of Board agendas.

Communicate well during public presentations.

Exercise leadership, authority, and supervision tactfully and effectively.

Evaluate and make recommendations on improvements to existing District operations,
programs, and services.

Provide advice and consultation to the Board of Directors on the development of
ordinances, regulations, programs, and policies.

Effectively represent the District’s policies, programs, and services with individual
citizens, community groups, and other government organizations.

Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships.

Desirable Education and Experience

Any combination of education and experience which would likely provide the necessary
knowledge and abilities is qualifying,

A typical way to obtain the knowledge and abilities would be:

Broad and extensive work experience in a management or administrative position in a public
agency, requiring the responsibility for the formulation and implementation of programs, budgets,
and administrative operations. At least two years of experience should have been in a
management or Supervisory capacity.

f:General Manager.doc/jt



EXHIBIT B - HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.)

(CW035853.5) General Manager Employment Agreement



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT -
GENERAL MANAGER

. EXHIBITB

" 2017 OPEN ENROLLMENT
September 30, 2016 to October 15, 2017

AFLAC
Contact: Jennifer Dann 530-906-9387

ACWA Health Plan Premiums
Effective Date of Changes: January 1, 2017

Anthem Blue Cross of CA: www.anthem.com/ca
Kaiser: www.KkD.Or

Employee Only Employee + Employee +
One Family
Anthem Blue Cross
Classic Plan pro) $904.75 $1,844.36 $2,479.72
Anthem Blue Cross
Advantage Plan (pro) $761.57 $1,650.85 $2,084.55
Anthem Blue Cross
California Care (Hmo) $915.61 $1,821.34 $2,518.76 .
Kaiser (HMO) Opti- $704.49 $1,399.08 $1,975.59
Kaiser (Hmo) $692.17 $1,374.45 $1,940.74

" The 2017 District Contribution Caps are:
Employee Only 761.57

Employee + One $1,442.29
Employee + Family $1,938.63 .

If you would like to make a change in your insurance coverage, please
let us know..

To get new enroliment cards by January 1st, make changes by October 15th.



[ 14 &
1S10Nn
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PuUBLIC UTILITIES
CONGRATULATIONS!

Follow these simple steps:

1. Select a provider. Select a participating vision care provider by
visiting  www . MI<SVision.com. Obtaining services from a
Participating Provider will maximize your benefits.

2. Make an appointment. Call the Participating Provider of your
choice to make an appointment and inform them of your vision
coverage.

3. You’re done! Your doctor will take care of the rest. The
Participating Provider will contact MESVision to verify your
eligible benefits and submit a claim for payment for services
covered by your plan.

4. If covered services ate received from a non-patticipating provider,
you are responsible for paying the provider in full. You or the
provider must submit the itemized bill and a copy of your
prescription with the Claim Form to MESVision. Reimbursement
will be made to the insured person up to the schedule of allowances
shown for non-participating providers.

LIMITATIONS

Contact Lenses and fitting except as specifically provided; Eyewear
when there is no prescription change, except when benefits are
otherwise available; Non-standard lenses, including, but not limited to;
Progressive, Photochromic, hi-index, Polycarbonate, occupational
lenses, beveled, faceted, coated or oversize; Tints other than pink or rose
#1 or #2, except as specifically provided; Two pair of glasses in lieu of
bifocals, unless prescribed; New-patient intermediate examinations:
When an Enrollee selects a different provider to perform the
intermediate examination , the Enrollee will be responsible for the
difference between the intermediate examination allowance and the
comprehensive examination allowance. To maximize benefits, the
patient should return to the original provider; Non-prescription (Plano)
eyewear, except when specifically covered.

EXCLUSIONS

Any eye examination required by the employer as a condition of
employment; Any covered services provided by another vision plan;
Conditions covered by Workers’ Compensation; Contact lens insurance
of care kits; Frame cases; Covered Services which began prior to the
Enrollee’s effective date or after benefits have been terminated; Charges
for which the Enrollee is not legally obligated to pay; Covered Services
required by any government agency or program federal, state or
subdivision thereof; Covered Services performed by a Close Relative or
by an individual who ordinarily resides in the Enrollee’s home; Covered
Services obtained from a Non-Participating Provider; Medical or
Surgical treatment of the eyes; Otthoptics, vision training or Subnormal
or Low Vision Aids; Services that are Experimental or Investigational in
nature; Services for treatment directly related to any totally disabling
condition, illness or injury; l.cnses or frames which are lost, stolen or
broken will not be replaced, cxcept when benefits are otherwise
available; In connection with war or any act of war whether declared or
undeclared; a condition or accident occurring while on full-time active
duty in the armed forces or any country or combination of countries.

This is a brief outline of the plan and is not to be accepted or
construed as a substitute for the provisions of the contract.

C $90 $105 $45 $105 Co-Pay $20

SUMMARY OF VISION BENEFITS

Benefits:

Co-pay: $20

Comprehensive Vision Exam: One every 12 months
Lenses* (Standard) One pair every 12 months
Frame:** One frame every 12 months
Contact Lenses:*** One pair every 12 months

The Policy provides full coverage for Covered Services when you go to a
Participating Provider of the MESVision network. If Covered Services are
provided by a Non-Participating Provider, charges will be paid, but not to
exceed the following Schedule of Allowances.

*”Standard” lenses (plastic) fit any frame with an eye size less than 61mm.

Participating Non-Participating
Provider Provider

Comprehensive Examination Covered Upto$ 40.00
Single Vision Lenses* Covered Upto$ 40.00
Bifocal Lenses* Covered Upto$ 60.00
Trifocal Lenses* Covered Upto$ 80.00
Progressive Lenses Upto$ 89.50 Upto$ 8000
Polycarbonate Lenses**** Upto$ 75.00 Upto$ 50.00
Aphakic Monofocal Covered Up to § 125.00
Aphakic Multifocal Covered Up to § 125.00
Frame** Upto$ 90.00 Upto$ 4500
Contact Lenses ***

Medically Necessary Covered Up to $ 210.00

Cosmetic or Convenience Up t0 $105.00 Upto $ 105.00

** Participating Providers allow a selection of frames that retail up to $90.00
with lenses that fit an eyesize less than 61 millimeters. If 2 more expensive
frame is selected, you are responsible for the additional cost above $90.00.
If the lenses received are 61 millimeters or above, the charge for the oversize
lenses is your responsibility. "The retail frame allowance will be
converted to wholesale or warehouse equivalent prices at category |
or 6 provider locations (please refer to the Plan's website at
www.MESVision.com). The wholesale or warehouse equivalent may
be approximately 30% less than the retail frame allowance; please
confirm this benefit before ordering your eyewear."

**x This benefit is in addition to the comprehensive vision examination, but in
lieu of lenses and frame. If contact lenses are for cosmetic or convenience
purposes, the Policy will pay up to $105.00 toward the contact lens evaluation,
fitting costs and materials. Any balance is your responsibility. If contact lenses
are medically necessary, they are a fully covered benefit. Approval from
MESVision is required. Please refer to your Policy if you require additional
information.

*#*+For Dependent Children through age 18

Discounts: A 20% discount is available for cosmetic extras, such as tints,
coatings and other add-on charges to standard lenses, after Covered Services
are rendered. The discount may be applied to charges for the frame or contact
lenses (except disposable or replaccment contact lenses) over the stated
allowances. The 20% discount also applies to additional pairs of glasses
and/or pairs of standard contact lenses. To determine whether a provider
offers the 20% discount, an insured individual can review their Participating
Provider Directory, call MESVision or visit www.MESVision.com.
Discounts are available through TLCVision for conventional and custom
LASIK procedures with the TLCVision Advantage Program.

If you have any questions about your vision benefits,
please contact Medical Eye Services at:
PO Box 25209; Santa Ana, CA 92799
800/877-6372 or www.MESVision.com

Underwritten By:
A Gerber Life Insurance Company
A separate subsidiary of Gerber Products
Home Office: White Plains, NY 10605

-e,

9/6/12016



MES: Your Account's Members Page 1 of 3

Summary Of Vision Benefits

OBTAINING SERVICES IS EASY
With this vision plan, you have access to an extensive network of vision care providers in

California and nationwide.* When you use a participating provider for your eye care, there's no
additional charge for most services.

FOLLOW THESE SIMPLE STEPS:

1. Select a provider. Select a participating vision care provider by visiting

2. Make an appointment. Make an appointment with the Participating Provider of your
choice and inform them of your vision coverage.

3. You're done! Your doctor will take care of the rest. The Participating Provider will
contact MESVision to verify your eligible benefits and submit a claim for services
covered by your plan.

At your appointment, you will pay any applicable copayment and optional eyewear costs (if
any). If you select a Participating Provider, the provider will submit the claim. If you select a
Non-Participating Provider, please mail your completed claim form to P.O. Box 25209, Santa
Ana, CA 92799-5209. We recommend that you file your claim within 3-6 months from the date
of service. Submitting your claim later than this may result in a submission deadline denial.

WHAT YOUR VISION PLAN COVERS

Maximum payment when

Service and Coverage when provided N e
i : provided by non-participating
eyewear by participating provider provider
Exam Copay $20.00

Annual examination - every 12 months?
Ophthalmologic exam 100% $40.00

Optometric exam 100% $40.00

2

Standard lenses “ - every 12 months

Single 106% $40.00
Bifocal 100% $60.00
Trifocal 100% $80.00
Aphakic monofocal 100% $125.00
Aphakic multifocal 100% $125.00
Progressive (no line bifocal) Up to $89.50 $80.00

https://www.mesvision.com/benefitadmin/summaryOfV isionBen... 8/31/2016



MES: Your Account's Members Page 2 of 3

Maximum payment when

Service and r i " iy
evewear by paicipating provider  Provided by nomparticipating

Polycarbonate lenses for covered dependent children (through 18)

Slngle - - Upto$7500 7. -$50.00‘

Bfocal  wprsmoo  s000
Standard frame - every 12 months 4
Stndordfame  Upto$90.00 o0
Contact lenses’ - every 12 months
f(':iit:l’:tic/Convenience) 5 Up to $105.00 $105.00
Non-Elective (Medically necessary) 6

H;rd T . . wmRe DR G o T WG 100% . e $210°0 -

: é;ft_ . . §:--B3 = e .w.o% L= A . $2moo

* Nationwide vision providers are available by arrangement through MESVision. Please visit our
website www.mesvision.com to search for providers by state, city zip code or name.

L The comprehensive eye examination is considered a separate service from a contact lens
evaluation and fitting.

2 standard lenses fit any frame with an eye size of 61 mm.

4. Retail frame benefits will be converted to wholesale-equivalent prices at certain provider
locations, see provider directory or MESVision website at www.mesvision.com.

3: In lieu of other eyewear, except when specifically provided. Disposable contact lenses should
be purchased up to the maximum allowance. Any cost over contact lens allowance is a patient
responsibility.

6. one pair, in lieu of other eyewear, except when specically provided. A report from the
provider and approval from MESVision is required.

7. Contact allowance per pair. For most plans, the contact lens allowance includes the fitting,
evaluation, and materials. As a result, the amount available for contact lens materials is
reduced by the contact lens fitting and evaluation charges.

General Exclusions and Limitations
For additional Exclusions and Limitations, please see your Evidence of Coverage or Certificate

of Coverage. Benefits are not provided (unless exemptions to the following exclusions are
made elsewhere) for:

* Any eye examination required by the employer as a condition of employment;

e Any covered services provided by another vision plan;

e Conditions covered by workers' compensation;

o Covered services for which the vision plan member is not legally obligated to pay;

https://www.mesvision.com/benefitadmin/summaryOfVisionBen... 8/31/2016



MES: Your Account's Members Page 3 of 3

e Covered services required by any government agency or program, federal, state or
subdivision thereof;

e Covered services performed by a close relative or by an individual who ordinarily resides
in the vision plan member's home;

» Medical or surgical treatments of the eyes;

e Non-prescription (plano) eyewear or sunglasses, except when specifically provided;

e Low vision testing orthoptics, subnormal vision aids or vision training, except when
specifically provided;

e Contact lenses and contact lens fitting, except as specifically provided;

e Eyewear for which there is no prescription change, unless benefits are otherwise
available;

e Replacement of lenses or frames which are lost, stolen or broken, except at the normal
intervals;

o Additional charges for custom lens options (progressive, polycarbonate, photochromic,
tints, coatings, etc.) are a patient responsibility.

This is only a summary of benefits. Please refer to the plan contract and the Evidence
of Coverage or Certificate of Coverage for a detailed description of covered benefits
and limitations.

Legal Notice | PRIVACY POLICY
All content © 2016 MESVision, Incorporated. All Rights Reserved.

https://www.mesvision.com/benefitadmin/summaryOfV isionBen... 8/31/2016



= % PREMIER
ACCESS

Deataland Viios

GROUP POLICY RENEWAL

Premier Access Insurance Company
8890 Cal Center Drive
Sacramento, CA 95826

EMPLOYER NAME: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
POLICY NUMBER: 3549
POLICY RENEWAL TERM: Apr/01/2016 Through Mar/31/2017
RATES - Custom PPO Plan 10124
Number of Cu t Premier Preferred Non-
Tier Emol Rr::" Renewal Rates Benefits Choice Provider Network
ployees . Network | Network | Provider*
EE Only 8 $ 5578 § 55.78 CLASS | - Preventive 100% 100% 100%
EE + Spouse 0 $ 125.47 $ 125.47 CLASS Il - Basic 100% 100% 90%
EE + 1Child 1 $ 125.47 $ 125.47 CLASS il - Major 70% 60% 60%
EE + Children 2 $ 195.27 $ 195.27 JCaIendar Year Deductible $25 $50 $50
JEE + Family 5 $ 1956.27 $ 195.27 Waived for Class 1? Yes Yes Yes
TOTAL 16 $ 1,938.60 $ 1,938.60 |Calendar Year Maximum $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
WCLASS IV - Orthodontia No Orthodontia
NA - -
Orthodontia Lifetime Max - - -
. . * Covered charges are based on the lower of: 1) the dentist's
Benefit Waiting Periods actual charge for the service, 2) the dentist's usual charge for the

No Benefit Waiting Period for MAJOR services for those
with similar PRIOR group coverage. (+)

(+) Benefit Waiting Period on MAJOR services.

- With proof of current similar group coverage: NONE
- With no current similar group coverage: 12 Months

service, 3) or the UCR amount for the service based on the 90th
percentile of dentists in the same geographic area.

lPrint Name and Title

-

_1604 Petermann, Dalynn Premier Advantage Renewals - 3549P

Authorized Employer Signature
|

The Applicant has approved the Renewal and accepts its terms.

Dated

Renewal Rates are based on the benefits and plan provisions of the prior Group Policy issued by Premier Access, unless changes otherwise noted for the Policy Renewal
Term. If this Group Policy Renewal is accepted, this signed acceptance will become part of the original Group Policy. Payment of monthly premiums according to the
Renewal rates will represent acceptance of the Renewal in place of a signed acceptance.

i
00000 112 163 current ||Analysis 1604 20131212 newslartoni;

[ —
Underwriling 0152
1/20/2016 - 10:28 PM



o PREMIER Premier Access Insurance Company
§ ACCESS  GROUP POLICY RENEWAL Suvomonts, Ca 85676

Denzud and Vision

-

EMPLOYER NAME: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
POLICY NUMBER: 3549
POLICY RENEWAL TERM: Apr/01/2016 Through Mar/31/2017
RATES DHMO Plan 500
. Number of Current
Tier Employees Rates Renewal Rates Covered Procedures Copays
EE Only 0 $ 55.78 $ 55.78 120 Periodic Oral Evaluation $0.00
EE + Spouse 0 $ 125.47 $ 125.47 150 Comprehensive Oral Eval. $0.00
EE + 1Child o s 12547 s 12547 || 210 InieoraComplSerincl $0.00
Bitewinas
EE + Children 0 $ 195.27 $ 195.27 274 Bitewings-Four Films $0.00
EE + Family 0 $ 195.27 $ 195.27 1110 Prophylaxis-Adult $0.00
TOTAL 0 $ - $ - 2140 Amalgam-One Surface $0.00
2150 Amalgam-Two Surfaces $0.00
2160 Amalgam-Three Surfaces $0.00
2330 Resin-One Surf. Anterior $0.00
Crown-Porc.Fused To Hi
2750 Noble Metal $165.00
Crown-Porc.Fused To
@i Predom Base Metal S165.00
2752 Crown-Porc.Fused To Noble $165.00
Metal
RC Therapeutic-Molar
S5l Exclus. Final Rest. SES010C
Periodontal Root Planing -
4341 per Quad $25.00
7210 Surg. Removal of Erupted $25.00
Tooth

If this Group Policy Renewal is accepted, this signed acceptance will become part of the original Group Policy. Payment of monthly
premiums according to the Renewal rates will represent acceptance of the Renewal in place of a signed acceptance.

The Applicant has approved the Renewal and accepts its terms.

Print Name and Title

Authorized Employer Signature

Dated 00000 .112 .163 .current {|Analysis 1604 20131212 newstartort

Underwriting dis2

_1604 Petermann, Dalynn Premier Advantage Renewals - 3549D 1/20/2616 - 10:28 PM




EXHIBIT C — PERSONNEL POLICY

(The remainder of this page left blank intentionally.)

(CW035853.5) General Manager Employment Agreement



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
PERSONNEL MANUAL

2000

I GENERAL PERSONNEL POLICIES

The Georgetown Divide Public Utility District recognizes the need to recruit and retain
high quality, responsible employees for the efficient and economical operation of the District.
To this end, the following rules, regulations and benefit programs have been established.

This policy shall apply only to regular District employees. Government-funded
employees shall be governed by the policies dictated by the government for the program
involved.

I DEFINITIONS
A Anniversary Date shall mean the first day the employee was employed.

B. Continuous Service shall mean service commencing with the employee’s
anniversary date and continuing until broken by resignation or dismissal.

C. Demotion shall mean a decrease in the duties and responsibilities assigned to
an employee and a downward change in his classification and salary range.

D. Full Time shall mean eight hours per day and five days per week, excepting
holidays.

E. Holiday shall mean any holiday recognized by the District.

F. Hourly Employee shall mean any employee that is compensated at an hourly

rate.

G. Permanent Employee shall mean any employee who has served the District
continuously for six months and is not on probation.

H. Promotion shall mean an increase in the duties and responsibilities assigned
to an employee and an upward change in his classification and salary range.

. Reclassification shall mean a change in the duties and responsibilities
assigned to an employee and a change in his classification while remaining in the same
salary range.

. CLASSIFICATION

Classifications and job descriptions have been established for each position within
the District to provide a basis for equitable remuneration according to duties and
responsibilities and to be in conformity with similar agencies.



The District Manager may recommend to the Board of Directors the creation of new
classifications and the abolition of existing classes as the need may develop.

The District Manager shall, at each budget session, recommend to the Board of
Directors an appropriate salary range for each class.

IV.  APPOINTMENTS

All appointments under the civil service system shall be made solely on the basis of
integrity, character, merit, fitness, and competitive written and/or oral tests without regard to
partisan, political, social or other considerations, and shall be made from lists of eligibles
prepared by the General Manager.

When no list of eligibles is available for a position in the class requisitioned by the
division head, the General Manager may make a non-civil service appointment for a period
not to exceed six months and only until a regular appointment can be made.

The General Manager may make appointments to higher positions exclusively
promotional by tests from lower ranks.

Every appointee to a permanent position shall be on probation for six months, except
that the General Manager may establish a probationary period for up to 12 months for
professional, scientific, administrative, management, or executive positions. The General
Manager may terminate the appointment during the probationary period. If the appointment
is not then terminated, it shall be permanent.

V. RESIGNATION

An employee may resign in good standing by submitting a letter of resignation to the
department head at least two weeks before it is to become effective. In extenuating
circumstances, the department head may agree to shorter notice.

VI PROMOTION, DEMOTION, RECLASSIFICATION

The District Manager may, when authorized by the Board of Directors, promote or
demote an employee within his classification or reclassify an employee by written
and/or oral test and according to the employee’s performance or the needs of the District.

Vil.  DISMISSAL

No employee may be removed, discharged, or suspended without pay, except for
cause. Prior to discharging, removing, or suspending without pay a permanent employee,
the District Manager or his/her designee, shall provide the employee with a written Notice of
Intent to Discipline setting forth the intended action of the District and stating the reasons for
the intended discipline. Within five (5) working days of receipt of the Notice of Intent to
Discipline, the employee may schedule a “Skelly” hearing with the District Manager or his/her
designee. Failure of the employee to request the Skelly hearing may result in the District
Manager or his/her designee taking the intended disciplinary action without the hearing.



The District Manager or his/her designee may dismiss, or suspend for-15-days
without pay, an employee for any of the following reasons:

kRN S

sa

Drunkenness on duty

Wiliful disobedience

Fraud in securing employment

Dishonesty

Conviction of a felony or misdemeanor

Refusal to take and subscribe to any oath or affirmation, which is required by
law in connection with his employment.

Participation in any illegal activity while on duty.

Job abandonment. An employee shall be deemed to have abandoned
his/her job and may be dismissed if such employee fails to report for duty,
and while able to notify the District office, fails to do so for two
consecutive working days or if such employee fails to give notice or report
for duty within two consecutive working days following expiration of a
leave of absence.

Refusal or inability to perform the work established in the employee’s job
description.

Any and all acts or threats of violence toward employees or officers of the
District, or toward the general public.

Any and all acts or conduct tending to bring the reputation of the District
into disrepute or, that in the opinion of the District Manager, are so severe
as to warrant immediate disciplinary action.

Section VIl amended 2/11/00

The following require three (3) corrective interviews prior to dismissal or suspension:

Incompetence

Inefficiency

Neglect of duty

Insubordination

Addiction to the use of narcotics or habit-forming drugs
Inexcusable absence without leave

General misconduct

Immorality

Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees
Improper political activity

Misuse of District property

Misuse of sick leave

Any other failure of good behavior or acts either during or outside of

3T FATISEmo Q0T

duty hours, WhICh are incompatible with or inimical to the public service.

The District Manager or his/her designee shall give or mail the employee written
notice of the determination made at the Skelly hearing not later than five (5) working days

after the hearing.

A corrective interview may be processed by the department head at any time as the
need occurs providing it is initiated and presented to the employee involved within seven (7)



working days of the incident. The employee may add his personal comments to the
interview form.

Vill. LAY OFF

The District Manager may lay off an employee for lack of work or lack of funds.

IX. RIGHT OF APPEAL

A permanent employee may appeal a demotion, dismissal, or suspension without pay
by following the procedure outlined below. An employee with less than six (6) months
continuous employment with the District shall not have a right of appeal.

1. Within five days of receiving the “Skelly" determination to remove, discharge,
or suspend without pay, any employee shall file a written request to appeal the decision with
the General Manager or his/her designee. Failure to file a written request to appeal shall
result in implementation of the “Skelly” decision.

2. When an appeal is filed, the General Manager shall immediately schedule an
appeal hearing before the Board of Directors to hear and determine such charges and shall
notify the person accused of the time and place when the charges will be heard by mailing a
notice to his/her last known address.

3l The Board shall hear evidence at the hearing and make such decision as it
deems just and may among other things order the employee discharged, suspended, or
reinstated. The Board shall render its decision in writing and their determination shall be
final. This appeal procedure shall not supersede any state of federal law.

X. SAFETY

It is the responsibility of all District personnel to conduct District business in the safest
possible manner. Any condition considered unsafe must be reported at once to the Safety
Officer.

Employees are required to wear any arid all protective clothing and to use any and all
protective devices as directed by their supervisor or the Safety Officer.

All job-incurred accidents or injuries MUST BE REPORTED TO THE SUPERVISOR
or the SAFETY OFFICER and to the OFFICE IMMEDIATELY.

Failure to comply with safety regulations may be cause for dismissal.

Xl. DISTRICT VEHICLES

District vehicles are to be used for authorized business only and are to be operated
by authorized personnel possessing a valid California Driver's License. Unauthorized
persons (i.e. spouses, children, etc) are not permitted in District vehicles.

Only those persons subject to 24-hour maintenance call are authorized to drive
District vehicles home. Alcoholic beverages, of any kind, are not permitted inside a District
vehicle.



As the use of a District vehicle in and out of normal working hours is subject to public
scrutiny, all employees should make every attempt to minimize speculation regarding its use
and drive with courtesy and safety at all time.

Xll. PERSONAL VEHICLES

The use of personal cars for District business must be authorized by the manager.
Reimbursement will be made for mileage when submitted on the approved mileage form.
Under no circumstances shall an employee obtain gasoline or repairs for a personal vehicle
at District expense.

Xill.  FRINGE BENEFITS

A.  Sickleave

1. Every person who is a full-time, permanent employee of the District
shall be entitled to receive 8 hours of sick leave with pay for each full calendar month of
regular employment. Permanent employees shall accrue sick leave credit from their first day
of employment, but cannot use prior to their reaching permanent status, or 6 months of full-
time employment.

2. Part-time or hourly employees who have served continuously for six
(6) months shall be entitled to one (1) hour of sick leave for each thirty (30) hours of actual
work, not to exceed one thousand, four hundred forty (1,440) hours.

3. If a holiday which an employee is entitled to have off with pay occurs
on a workday during the time an employee is absent on sick leave, he/she shall receive pay
for the holiday as such, and it shall not be counted as a day of sick leave,

4, Sick leave may be taken for:

a. An employee's illness or injury. Leaves of more than three (3)
days for this reason may require a doctor’s or licensed practitioner’s certificate indicating
absence from work was necessary.

b. An employee’s dental, eye or other physical or medical
examination or treatment by a licensed practitioner and iliness of other family members (as
defined in “c” following) requiring the presence of the employee. Unless otherwise approved,
leaves for this purpose are limited to four (4) hours in any one workday.

c. Death or iliness in the immediate family. Up to three (3) days
absence with pay will be allowed annually when death or illness occurs in an employee’s
immediate family, which shall include spouse, parents, brother, sister, children and
grandchildren. The payment shall be deducted from sick leave.

5. An employee shall notify his/her supervisor before 8:16 a.m. if sick.

6. Planned sick leave...time of taking sick leave for medical services
must be coordinated with the supervisor to meet the District work load.



7. When an employee is absent by reason of injury arising out of, and in
the course of, his employment with the District, and is eligible for WORKER'S
COMPENSATION, the employee shall receive sick leave benefits for the duration of
temporary absence. An employee will receive his salary less the disability insurance benefit
received. Sick leave is reduced only by the net amount of District wages paid. Should the
employee’s sick leave benefits become exhausted and the employee is still disabled, he is
entitled to any and all further disability monies received. (Note: Worker's Compensation and
SDI benefits are tax-exempt.)

8. When an employee is absent by reason of a non-occupational injury or
iliness, the employee is eligible for State Disability Insurance. Accrued sick leave/vacation
shall be coordinated with SDI benefits. The employee will receive his/her salary less the
disability insurance benefit received. Sick leave is reduced only by the net amount of District

wages paid.

9. Employees with five (5) or more years of service, retiring under the
Public Employees’ Retirement System, shall receive retirement credit for unused sick leave
at the rate of .004 years retirement credit for each day of accumulated unused sick leave.

10. Employees otherwise terminated shall receive no compensation for
unused sick leave.

B. Vacation Leave
1. Employees of the District shall be entitled to vacations with pay as
follows:
a. Beginning the first day of permanent employment through

twelve (12) months, vacation benefits are accrued but cannot be used. On each anniversary
date thereafter, an employee will accrue and be entitled to twelve (12) days of vacation.

"~ b. Beginning with the sixth year of service and each anniversary
date thereafter, an employee will accrue and be entitled to fifteen (15) days of vacation pay.

C. Beginning with the eleventh year, one additional day of
vacation time for each year of service between the 11" and 14" years; beginning with the
11" year an employee will accrue an additional day as follows:

11 years 16 days of vacation
12 years 17 days of vacation
13 years 18 days of vacation
14 years 19 days of vacation
15 years 20 days of vacation
C. Beginning with the sixteenth year of service and each

anniversary date thereafter, an employee will accrue and be entitled to twenty (20) days of
vacation pay.

d. Beginning with the twentieth year of service and each
anniversary date thereafter, an employee will accrue and be entitled to twenty-five (25) days
of vacation pay.



2. Permanent hourly employees earn vacation pay at the rate of 8 hours
for every 173.33 hours worked.

3. Coordination of Time-Off Work for All Employees - All leave (vacation,
compensated, or other) must be approved in advance by the employee’s immediate
supervisor and the General Manager. Application for leave forms will be available in the
office. The vacation leave will be posted to the calendar and filed with the payroll clerk. For
leave which will extend over 2 days, a minimum of one week’s advance notice is required. It
will be the responsibility of each supervisor to coordinate his employee’s time-off, as well as
his own time-off, to insure that adequate coverage is maintained at all times.

4, Each employee is expected to use his/her full vacation each year, if at
all possible. if the full vacation is not used in a given year, the employee subject to the
approval of the manager, may request the unused portion to be accumulated to his credit,
provided that at NO TIME SHALL HE HOLD MORE THAN 30 DAYS OF VACATION
CREDITS. *Notwithstanding the foregoing, the General Manager may accrue up to 60 days
of vacation credits. (*amended 3/9/09)

51 Upon termination of employment, the employee will be paid a lump
sum for ali accrued vacation earned to date.

6. A legal holiday as recognized by the District that falls during an
employee’s vacation shall not be charged as vacation.

C. Holidays

1.  District employees, except as otherwise provided herein, will be
entitied to the following holidays off with pay:

New Year's Day Veteran's Day
Martin Luther King's Birthday Thanksgiving Day
President’s Day Day After Thanksgiving
Memorial Day Christmas Day
Independence Day Day After Christmas
Labor Day
2. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be deemed

the holiday in lieu of the day observed. If the holiday falls on a Saturday, the previous Friday
will be observed.

3. All holidays, as set forth herein, shall have payment therefore
guaranteed. This means that if a holiday falls on an employee’s normal day off, the
employee will be relieved from work, subject to the needs of the District, the previous or
following workday.

4. If an employee is absent from work on either the workday prior to the
holiday or the workday following the holiday, without permission or a bona fide reason,
he/she will not réceive pay for the holiday.



5. Employees called out to work on holidays will be paid overtime for the
hours worked. The maximum combination of salary shall not exceed two and one-half (22)
times base rate in any event.

D. Miscellaneous Leaves With Pay

If an employee is required to serve Jury Duty, appear as a witness, or
required to attend court concerning District business, he/she shalf be granted pay for that
period. Any extra compensation, except mileage, received by the employee shall be
remitted to the District.

E. Leave of Absence

The General Manager may, in writing grant an employee a leave of absence
without pay for a period not to exceed three months. A longer leave of absence may be
granted by the Board of Directors.

F, Absence

Notification as to the cause of absence will be required. Personal business
will not normally be considered authorized absence, and the employee will not normally be
paid for such time off.

G. Insurance

Worker's Compensation Insurance is available to all employees to cover all
‘job-incurred sickness or injuries. State Unemployment Insurance covers unemployment
when you are no longer a District employee. State Disability Insurance (SDI) covers an
employee on a daily rate when hospitalized for a non-occupational injury or iliness, (see ltem
8 under Sick Leave), and covers an employee when sick leave runs out. All employees are
provided coverage by the United States Social Security Act (FICA).

Blue Cross Hospital and Major Medical Insurance (since July 1, 1982) is paid
for the employee and dependents. Coverage begins the 15th of the month following the first
full month of permanent employment.

Dental and Optical Insurance is available to all permanent full-time employees
and their dependents in accordance with the plan approved by the Board of Directors. Since
July 1, 1984 the $600 dental/optical limit per employee/family in increased by the annual
Consumer Price Index (CPI); and a 20% deductible on all optical services was implemented.
The employee must have a dental checkup each year to maintain or advance his dental
coverage percentage. An employee must be employed six (6) months before the
dental/optical plan becomes available to him/her at 70%, advancing 10% each year up to
100%.

Life Insurance is available in accordance with the plan approved by the Board
of Directors, to all permanent employees and their dependents who have served six (6)
months continuous employment. Cost of the dependent coverage is paid by the employee.



H. Retirement Program

The Public Employee’s Retirement System (PERS), as determined by
agreement between the District and the Public Employee’s Retirement System, is a
mandatory retirement program for all permanent full-time employees. The plan provides for
an employee's income when he retires. As an additional benefit to the employee (since
6/11/79) the District contributes the employee’s share. The program takes effect the first
day of permanent full-time employment.

l. Group Meetings

Directors and key personnel may attend meetings of technical, trade, or
professional groups at District expense when authorized by the Board of Directors or the
General Manager. The cost of the expenses incurred by the employee will be reimbursed by
the District.

J. Conventions

Directors and key personnel may attend conventions on an expense basis
when authorized by the Board of Directors.

XIV. KEY PERSONNEL

Those employees subject to standby and/or emergency service calls shall
refrain from other forms of public service (i.e. fire departments, sheriffs reserve, etc.) that, by
their very nature, might provide a conflict with the performance of said duties.

XV. NONDISCRIMINATION AGREEMENT

The District shall comply with all provisions under Title VI, Civil Rights Act of
1964 Nondiscrimination Agreement.

XVI. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT

The District shall comply with all provisions pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Secretary of Labor issued under the Authority of Executive Order 11246, as amended.

XVIl. OVERTIME

Overtime compensation shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half times the
regular rate of pay, and is defined as: time worked in excess of (40) hours in a week.

XVII. STANDBY PAY (effective 7/1/00)

Establishment of Standby pay at $15 per weekday, $20 per weekend day, and $25
per holiday for those employees required to carry a pager and respond after work hours,
weekends and holidays.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

1.0 Purpose. Itis legally mandated by State and Federal laws that employees
have a right to work in an environment that is free from all forms of discrimination, including
sexual harassment. Sexual harassment is a form of discrimination that is prohibited by Title
Vi of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and California Government Code Section 12940. Sexual
harassment is a costly form of discrimination that can result in expensive litigation that may
result in back pay or punitive damage awards, withdrawal of Federal support funds and/or
other adverse actions. District employees have a grave responsibility for maintaining high
standards of honesty, integrity, impartiality and conduct to assure proper performance of the
District's business and the maintenance of confidence of the people it serves. Itis,
therefore, the policy of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District that sexual harassment is
unacceptable and will not be tolerated.

2.0 Definition. Sexual harassment is generally defined as unsolicited and
unwelcome sexual advances of a severe and/or pervasive nature, be they written, verbal,
physical and/or visual, that usually occurs when:

2.1 . Submission to that conduct or communication is made either explicitly
or implicitly a term of condition of employment;

2.2  Submission to or rejection of that conduct or communication by an
employee is used as a basis for employment decisions affecting the employee; or,

2.3 Such conduct or communication has the potential to affect an
employee’s work performance negatively and/or create an intimidating, hostile or otherwise
offensive work environment.

3.0 Definition Examples. Sexual harassment manifests itself in many forms. The
following are a few examples of sexual harassment:

3.1  Written sexually suggestive or obscene letters, notes or invitations.

3.2  Verbal: sexually derogatory comments, slurs, jokes, remarks or
epithets,

3.3 Visual: leering, making sexual gestures, or displaying sexually
suggestive objects, pictures, cartoons or posters.

3.4  Physical: assault, attempted rape, impeding or blocking movement, or
touching.

10



3.5 Other:

3.51 Sexual advances which are unwanted (this may include situations
which began as reciprocal attractions, but later ceased to be reciprocal).

3.52 Women in nontraditional work environments who are subjected to
hazing (this may include being dared or asked to perform unsafe work practices, having
tools and equipment stolen, etc.) if requests for sexual favors are not met.

3.53 Employment benefits affected in exchange for sexual favors (may
include situations where an individual is treated less favorably because others have
acquiesced to sexual advances).

3.54 Implying or actually withholding support for appointment, promotion,
transfer or change of assignment; or initiating a rejection on probation or adverse action; or
suggesting that a poor performance report will be prepared if requests for sexual favors are
not met.

3.55 Reprisals or threats after negative response to sexual advances.

4.0  Policy Publicizing. All employees shall be informed of the District’s sexual
harassment policy and complaint process prior to their need to know, and again when any
complaint is filed. Also, said policy and complaint process shall be readily available to all
employees and members of the general public utilizing the District’s facilities and services.

4.1  All new employees shall be given a copy of the sexual harassment
policy at the time of hiring and said policy’s contents shall be discussed with said employee
at that time by the Office Manager.

4.2 Within three (3) working days after any complaint has been filed in
accordance with this policy, a bulletin shall be prepared and distributed to all employees rein
forming them of the District’s sexual harassment policy.

50  Complaint Process. Any employee who believes they are the victim of sexual
harassment may file a formal or informal confidential complaint without fear of reprisal or
embarrassment.

5.1 An informal complaint is made verbally by the employee to his/her
immediate supervisor. Although filing the complaint with said immediate supervisor is
preferred, the employee is free to file his/her complaint with any supervisorial employee.

5.2  Aformal complaint is made in writing, using the “Employee Grievance
Form,” attached hereto as “Appendix A,” and made a part hereof. Said form should be
submitted by the employee to his/her immediate supervisor. Although
submitting the formal complaint with said immediate supervisor is preferred, the employee is
free to submit his/her formal complaint with any supervisorial employee, or with the
President of the Board of Directors if the employee’s immediate supervisor is the General
Manager and the General Manager is unavailable or personally involved in said complaint.

6.0  Complaint Response Process. Any supervisorial employee who receives a
formal or informal sexual harassment complaint shall at all times maintain the confidentiality

1



of the complainant and shall personally tell or deliver said complaint immediately and directly
to the General Manager or to his/her designee if the General Manager is unavailable.

6.1  Within twenty-four (24) hours of the filing of a formal or informal
complaint, even if it is withdrawn, an investigation shall be conducted by the General
Manager, or his/her designee.

6.2 A written record of any investigation of an alleged sexual harassment
shall be maintained. Findings will be sent to the General Manager.

6.3  All discussions resulting from said investigation shall be kept
confidential.

6.4  The person initiating the complaint has the right to be accompanied by
an advocate(s) when discussing alleged incidents. Said person shall be advised of this right
prior to the commencement of such discussions.

7.0  Disciplinary Procedures and Sanctions. Upon conclusion of the investigation
of an alleged sexual harassment, appropriate action shall be taken by the General Manager
against the harasser where sexual harassment is found. Whatever punishment is meted out
to the harasser shall be made known to the victim of the harassment.

7.1 Appropriate action shall be taken to remedy the victim's loss, if any,
resulting from the harassment.

7.2 Action taken to remedy a sexual harassment situation shall be done in
a manner so as to protect potential future victims.

7.3 AEmployees complaining of sexual harassment shall be protected
thereafter from any form of reprisal and/or retaliation. ’

12



Appendix “A”

SEXUAL HARASSMENT COMPLAINT FORM
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Any individual employed by GDPUD who feels he/she is the victim of sexual harassment may use this
form to file a complaint.

Employee’s Name:

Statement of complaint:

Circumstances involved:

Decision rendered by the informal conference:

Specific remedy sought:

Signature of employee Date

Received by Date

13



GDPUD SUBSTANCE USE AND FITNESS FOR DUTY POLICY

POLICY STATEMENT:

It is GDPUD’s commitment to provide a safe and productive work environment for its employees, to reflect a
proper demeanor to its customers and to be cognizant of its responsibility for public safety. Therefore, the District
requires its employees to work free from the effects of substances- including alcohol, illegal drugs or other non-
medically prescribed substances - that affect the normal mental and/or physical state.

APPLICABILITY

This policy and its procedures are applicable to all GDPUD employees. Employecs who perform safety sensitive
functions will be required to submit to random controlled substance/alcohol testing.

The District will provide fair and equitable application of this Substance Abuse and Fitness for Duty Policy. All
supervisory staff are required to administer this policy in an unbiased and impartial manner, Any supervisor who
knowingly disregards or mis-uses this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to , and including
termination,

Any employee who possesses, manufactures, buys, sells, dispenses, uses, or is under the influence of a prohibited
substance while on the job or work site shall be subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

All employees shall be fit to perform their duties in a safe and efficient manner. Accordingly, employees showing
evidence of being under the influence of any substance may be required to submit to a medical examination. The
examination may include blood, urine and/or breathalyzer test. Refusal to submit to these tests will be considered
insubordination and may subject the employee to discipline, up 1o and including termination.

All employees with commercial drivers licenses (CDL’s) required as part of their job must submit to random drug
testing as required by the U.S. Department of Transportation. A commercial drivers license is required for
employees who must drive the following vehicles:

A vehicle with a gross combination weight of at least 26,001 pounds inclusive of a towed unit with a gross
vehicle weight rating of more than 10,000 pounds;

A vehicle with a gross vehicle weight of at least 26,001 pounds;
A vehicle designed to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver,

A vehicle used to transport hazardous materials. (Class A, B, or C license with a hazardous material
endorsement.) )

Any person engaged in driving the vehicles listed above are performing “Safety Sensitive Functions™ as
defined by the U.S. D.O.T.

Any supervisor who knowingly permits employees to possess or use any such substance on the job or
work while under the influence of a prohibited substance, shall be subject to discipline, up to and
including termination. It shall be the responsibility of the supervisor to make a good faith report to
evaluate the possible effects of medically-prescribed substances.



PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES
Prohibited Substances addressed by this policy shall include the following:
Tllegally Used Controlled Substances or Drugs

Under the FHWA regulations, prohibited illegal substances include: marijuana, amphetamines, opiates,
phencyclidine (PCP) and cocaine. This policy prohibits the use of any illegal drug or substance identified in
schedules I through V of Section 202 of the Controlled Substance Act (21 U.S.C. 812) and as further defined by
49 CFR Part 382. This includes the FHWA prohibited substances as well as any drug not approved for medical
use by the Administration. Illegal use includes use of any illegal drug, misuse of legally prescribed drugs, and
use of illegally obtained prescription drugs.

Legal Drugs

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications in not prohibited. However,
the use of any substance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental functioning, motot skills or
judgment may be adversely affected should be reported to supervisory personnel and medical advise should be
sought, as appropriate, before performing work-related duties.

Alcohol

The use of beverages containing alcohol, or substances including any medication such that alcohol is present in
the body while performing transit business, is prohibited.

EMPLOYER NOTIFICATION

Any employee undergoing prescribed medical treatment with a prescribed drug or other medication that may
impair the employee's ability to perform on the job must report this treatment to his or her supetvisor before
beginning work so that the supervisor may determine whether the employee can perform his or her assigned duties
in a safe and efficient manner. Failure to report this to the supervisor, or abuse of medically-prescribed controlicd
substances, may subject the employee to discipline, up to and including termination.

Pursuant to the “Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988”, any employee who fails to immediately notify the Districi of
any criminal controlled substance statute conviction shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including
termination.

TESTING FOR PROHIBITED SUBSTANCES

All permanent and probationary District employees will be subject to prohibitied substances testing in the
following circumstances:

Pre-Employment Testing:

All applicants for District positions will be required to submit to testing as a condition of employment. Failure of
a prohibited substance test will disqualify the candidate.

Reasonable Suspicion Testing:

Al District employees will be subject to prohibited substance testing when there are reasons to believe that
prohibited substances are adversely affecting job performance.



Post Accident Testing:

Any significant accident involving extensive property damage or serious personal injury shall be grounds for
requesting a medical examination. Other accidents or near-miss sitnations caused by lack of perception or
alertness, manual dexterity or general coordination may be grounds for requesting a medical examination if there
is any evidence of a controlled substance or alcohol.

Random Testing:
All employees working in safety sensitive positions will be tested on a random, unannounced basis.
Return to Duty Testing:

All employees who tested positive must test negative before returning to work. Employees will be required to
undergo unannounced followup testing thereafier.

Employee Requested Testing

Any employee who questions the result of a required prohibited substances test may request that an additional test
be conducted. This test must be conducted on the split sample that was provided at hte same time as the original
sample.

UNFIT FOR DUTY - CONSEQUENCES

If it is deterrnined that the employee is unfit for duty, the employee should be told that he/she has been determined
to be unfit for duty and that consistent with the Fitness for Duty Policy, be/she must submit to a medical
examination as a condition of employment, at which point the employee will be required to sign a consent/release
form. The employe will be transported to the medical examiner and after completion of the test, the employee will
be relieved from duty pending the outcome of the chemical analysis and transported home. Should the test results
prove negative the employee shall be reinstated with full pay for time relieved from duty and any reference to the
test removed from the personnel file. If the test results should prove positive, the employee will be required to seek
assistance(at her/his own cost) from a Substance Abuse Professional(SAP) for rehabilitation and sign a return to
duty agreement, test negative for any prohibited substance, and be subject to unannounced, random testing. If the
employee should ever test positive again for prohibited substance, they are automatically terminated.



PROHIBITED CONDUCT

The following is prohibited conduct:

L

Reporting for duty or remaining on duty requiring the performance of safety sensitive functions while having
an alcohol concentration level of 0.02 or greater.

Using alcohol while performing a safety sensitive function* or performing a safety sensitive function within
four hours of using alcohol.

Being on duty or operating a District vehicie while possessing alcohol or having a blood alcohol concentration
in excess of 0.08 or greater.

Reporting for duty or remaining on duty requiring the performance of safety sensitive functions when the
employee used any prohibited substances, except if the use is pursuant to the instructions of a physician who
has advised the employee that the substance does not adversely affect the employee’s ability to safely operate a
vehicle.

Reporting for duty or remaining on duty requiring the performance of safety sensitive functions if the
employee tests positive for prohibited substances.

By refusing to submit to any alcohol or prohibited substances test required by FHWA. An employee who
refuses to submit 1o a required drug/alcohol test will be treated in the same manner as an employee who tested
0.02 or greater on an alcohol test or tested positively on a prohibited substance test. Failure to provide an
adequate sample for testing will be treated as a refusal to test.

Being unable to perform job requirements due to being under the influence of a prohibited substance as
evidenced by prohibited substances testing, physical or mental incapacitation due to prohibited substance
use, or refusal to submit to prohibited substance testing when a supervisor has reasonable suspicion that the
employee is under the influence of a prohibited substance.

Manufacture, possession, sale, dispensing, using, or under the influence of a prohibited substance.

Failure of a supervisor to enforce this policy.

*Safety sensitive functions are defined on page 1.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE

EE=E Public Utility District

P, 0. BOX 338 PHONE 3334356
GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 95634

April 16, 1986

MEMORANDUM
T0: District Employees
FROM: ‘Charles F. Gierau, General Manager

SUBJECT: Medical Examination Policy

In response to new insurance requirements, the District Board of
Directors adapted the following policy on April 9, 1986:

1. New Hires
A. General Physical Examination
B. Spinal X-Rays (laboring positions)
€. Drug Screening

2. Employees
A.  General Physical Examination
B. EKG Testing (one time for employees over 40)

For new hires, passing the three phases of testing will be a ’
condition of employment......the District will pay for all testing
through a laboratory/clinic of its choice.

For existing employees, the physical examination will be required
on or about the employee's anniversary date commencing with the 1986-87
fiscal year...... the District will cover the costs for standard testing
at the clinic of its choice, or, pay up to that amount if the employee
desires to utilize the services of an independent physician clinic.

L/ /Z;W ‘

es F. Gierau, General Manager

RNP:31

- 11 -



o  GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
S Public Utility District

P. 0. BOX 338 PHONE 3334356

GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 95634

April 16, 1986

To A1l District Employees:

It is the policy of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
to achieve the greatest practical degree of freedom from accidentg
and to insure that every employee is provided safe healthful working
conditions free from recognized hazards.

Work injuries are always costly to the individual worker and
often disastrous to employee's future, and the security of his/her
family. They are also costly to both in direct financial burdeqs
and in the reduction of efficiency. It is the firm and continuing
policy of the Board of Directors of the GDPUD that industrial acci-
dents shall be reduced or eliminated by the use of every reasonable
mechanical precaution and the aggressive promotion of safe practices.

Every employee has an important place in the accident prevention
program and is expected to cooperate fully in the measures taken for
safety.

The employee has a personal responsibility for his/her safety,
and, likewise has a responsibility to family, to fellow workers, to
the community, and the District. )

In the performance of his/her duties, therefore, the employee
shall be expected to observe safe practice rules and operating pro-
cedures, as well as instructions relating to the efficient performance
of assigned tasks. The ideal in safe and efficient District operation
is reached only when all employees are safety conscious and keenly
alert mentally and physically.

We have instituted a Loss Prevention Program which, with your ]
help, will succeed in providing a safe, healthful and pleasant working
environment.

. Everyone stands to benefit, everyone stands to gain! The coopera-
tion of all employees in this agency is expected. The results will be

worth the effort.
? 13
~ . //"'.
. A

Charles F. Gierau, General Manager

3



v 7

O GEORGETO\X[{\: DIVIDE

[ Gopubp |

Public Utility District

P. 0. BOX 338 PHONE 3334356

O

GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 95634

July 22, 1987
MEMORANDUM
TO: Permanent District Employees
FROM: Charles F, Gierau, General Manager
SUBJECT: Employee Compensation - FY 1987-88

At the July 8, 1987 Regular Board of Director's meeting, the
Board approved the following benefits and compensation:

1. Y4.6% Cost of Living increase, plus a step increase if
applicable.

2. Extend the Distriet contributory policy concerning
medical-dental-optical to retiring personnel, under the guide-
lines of PERS, on the following schedule:

0 to U4.99 years 0% for retiree and dependent
5.00 to 9.99 years 25% for retiree and dependent
10.00 to 14.99 years 50% for retiree and dependent
15.00 to 19.99 years 75% for retiree and dependent
20,00 and over 100% for retiree and dependent
This coverage would extend to the surviving spouse.

Remarriage would automatically terminate policy responsibility.
Divorce situation to be handled under the laws and guidelines of
COBRA. Funding of this benefit to be paid from reimbursement
dividends received for good safety records under the Workmen's
Compensation program. It is to the employee's benefit to be
"safety conscious" in our work habits.

3. One additional day of vacation time for each year of
service between the 11th and 14th years; beginning with the 11th
year an employee will accrue an additional day, as follows:

11 years -~ 16 days of vacation
12 years = 17 days of vacation
13 years - 18 days of vacation
14 years - 19 days of vacation
15 years - 20 days of vacation

As per existing Distriet policy, vacation can be used the year
after it is accrued.

Please insert this memorandum of understandlng in your

PERSONNEL MANUAL for future reference,’ /,//,
’a“' /;4‘ ‘7////
bharles . Glerau




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE

[eorun ] Public Utility District

P. 0. BOX 338 PHONE 3334356

GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 95634

July 26, 1988
T0: District Employees
FROM: Charies F. Gierau, General Manager

SUBJECT: Employee Compensation - FY 1988-89

At the July 13, 1988 Board of Director's meeting, the Board
approved the FY 88-89 Budget, which includes the following
employee benefits and compensation:

1. Cost-of-Living increase of 5%, which they felt was fair,
and actually more than the State of California employees received.

2. Retiree's medical/dental/optical coverage - The Board
approved, in addition to the savings received on dividends from a
good safety record under the Worker's Compensation Plan, that the
Dental Fund carry-over (beginning 6/30/89), that has in the past
been shown in the District Non-Operating Income section, be put
in a reserve account to fund said benefits. The Board will
continue to review this policy on a year to year basis.

3. The Dental/Optical Fund per employee/per family be -
raised from $695 to $750 for the 7/1/88-6/30/89 year. Subsequent
Years will be increased based on the CPI, the same as previous
years. Orthodonture is now included in same coverage.

4. The Board felt the utilization of educational seminars
for employees has worked well in the past, and recommended no
change.

5. The Board approved an identifying cap for District
employees (return old cap for new one). Also, a shirt with logo
was approved for meter readers.

The Board also approved the hiring of one additional full-
time employee to work 50% of the time with the ALT Zone area, and
50% in the Irrigation Maintenance Program.

Cross-training existing personnel to better divide the
workload in cases of future emergency, such as extended sick
Teave, vacations etc.

An Employee Meeting will be held in the near future: to
answer any questions you may have. !

.- . 'S
, : 7 7
/‘, i / .
J — "
Y R A
e,
D A ’ -

-

‘
o
//,"/'z ‘-‘:_,/’

L Nad - - v /




o ) GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
e Public Utility District

O P.Q. BOX 4240 PHONE 333-4356

GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 85634

June 13, 1989

Honorable Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District

Re: Employee Negotiations for 1989-90
Gent lemen:

The employees of the GOPUD have met and are respectfully
requesting the following for your consideration:

1. A wage increase of 5.40 percent. The employees unanimously
agree that it is increasingly difficult to make ends meet. We
realize that the monies distributed to the District by the County
are limited to last year's Consumer Price Index, which was 4.98
percent. It is reality, however, that we employees must
currently pay increasingly more for goods and services, at an
annualized rate of 9.4% projected for 1989. We believe that a
5.4% cost of living increase is vital, and a modest request, in
light of the projected CPI. .

2. A1l of the employees believe it is important to save for
our retirement years, and that the Deferred Compensation Plan is
of great value in supplementing our PERS retirement. In that
regard, we are requesting the District contribute an amount equal
to 2% of each employee's salary into the ICMA Retirement Trust.
This benefit, coupled with our first request, will bring us into
parity with projected CPI increases, while offering additional

' advantages. First, it will not be taxed as income to the
employees until withdrawn, and secondly, it will allow all of the
employees to become active participants in this valuable program.

Keeping up with the cost of 1iving and providing for our
families is of primary concern to all District employees, and is
the basis for our requests this year.

Thank you for your consideration on our behalf,

Respectfully submitted,

The Employees of the
Georgetown Divide
Public Utility District



, u
O GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
e Public Utility District

P.O. BOX 4240 PHONE 3334356
GEQRGETOWN, CALIFORNIA 95834

DATE: July 12, 1990
TO: All GDPUD Employees
FROM: Charles F. Gierau

SUBJECT: The Budget For Fiscal Year 1990-91

At the regqular meeting of the Board of Directors on July 11,
1990, the budget for the new fiscal year was adopted as reviewved,
amended, and approved by the Budget Committee. The budget totals
$1,493,099. For your information, I have attached a summary of
expenses to show you how that money is to be spent.

Of greatest interest to the employees is how the Board acted
on the employee's Letter of Request. The approved changes in
salary and benefits are: 1) an across the board cost of living
increase of 5%, 2) an additional 1% District contribution to the
Deferred Compensation Plan for all empioyees who elect to partic-
ipate, and 3) a District funded actuarial study to determine the
true cost of the PERS optional benefits package as proposed by
the employees.

For staff with step increases forthcoming, these will be in

addition to the above; as is customary, raises will be retroac-
tive to July 1990,

. Also important in the approved budget is the addition of one
skl}led labor position, bringing the totai numper of permanent
employees to twenty-two,

If you have any questions regarding the budget, please feel
to ask.

CFG:db



VEHICLE POLICY

The following is a modified version of the policy regarding
the use of District vehicles set forth in the Policy Memorandum
of Jamuary 25, 1990.

District Vehicles: District Vehicles are to be used only for
authorized business. Those persons subject to 24 hour main-
tenance calls, evening, and/or weekend duty, may be authorized to
drive District vehicles home. 1In order for an employee to be
"On-Call,” he/she must be reachable by telephone and be able to
respond to a service call. The Division Supervisors shall deter-
mine which employees are to be on call, and the duration of that
time period.

Unauthorized persons (i.e. spouses, children, etec.) are not
permitted in District vehicles due to insurance restrictions;
District guests shall be cleared through Division Managers.

Alcoholic beverages are not permitted inside a District
vehicle at any time.

As the use of a District vehicle in and out of normal
working hours is subject to public scrutiny, all employees should

make every attempt to minimize speculation regarding its use and
drive with courtesy and safety at all times.

RNP: j1
2A:Policy.veh

EMPLOYEES INITIAL:

2 ﬂ Altkens

g[’, 72} _Andreadis [ ;E Beall

T
xTF” Bohn

'/bel\ é Y\,Dayis ; Gau
-,ZM Manzer

n>. P Pedri
pa
: 2 ). Simons
ML Wilson Garcia

‘ Oy
/&assels / ﬁ Z’f Cooper

4
EA_ '-té' Hereford
g /] Monson

\J g St. Dennis

Scott

/'
\S(S Prince
[\



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE

E—— Public Utility District

P.0.BOX 4240 PHONE 3334356
GEORGETOWN, CAUFORMIA 95034

February 13, 1990

POLICY MEMORANDUM

At the direction of the Board of Directors of the Georgetown
Divide Public Utility District, administrative staff have been
attempting to compensate for the changes in personnel in order to
remain an efficient operation. Clarification of certain District
policies is necessary on a periodic basis for malntenance of
orderly operation. Therefore, this memorandum is intended to
clarify operational policies for the benefit of all:

1. Purchase Orders: All purchases require the use of
purchase orders. William H. Manzer has been designated as the
District's Purchasing Officer. He will have sole control of the.
issuance of purchase orders. All ma jor purchases (e.g. over $20)
shall be performed by the Purchasing Officer. It is not intended
to limit minor purchases, on an as needed basis, necessary for
the accomplishment of a Job. It 1s intended to implement an
efficient purchasing program with the ability to track and audit
expenditures.

2. Vacation Leave: Vacation time is currently earned on an
annual basis. It is intended that an employee use the total
vacation allotment each year. With approval of the manager,
vacation time may be carried over; however, at no time is an
employee to have more than 30 days of vacation credits. All
leave must have prior approval by the employee's supervisor(s).
Time off must be coordinated so as to maintain adequate coverage
of the District's operations at all times.

3. Occupational Injury and Leave: It is imperative that
all accidents, injuries and illnesses be reported to the
employee's supervisor and/or safety officer immediately. And in
00 case later than 24 hours after the incident. A conditional
release or a limited release is not acceptable for field
personnel. Field personnel must submit a full unlimited release
to their supervisor prior to returning to work. A limited or
conditional release for office personnel must be approved by the
employee’s supervisor and the general manager.

4. District Vehicles: District vehicles are to be used
only for authorized business. District vehicles are to be picked
up and left off at the corporation yard each working day. District
vehicles will no longer be available to take home. Employees are
to arrange for their own transportation to and from work.

Employees who have weekend duty may have the use of a
vehicle each day for transportation. The use of a vehicle in
this instance 1s limited to the worksite and the employee's home.
The vehicle is to be picked up in the morning and returned in the
evening, if an afternoon check is necessary, each day of duty.



5. Working Hours:

Working hours are to be 7:45 a.m. to

4:30 p.m. for office personnel, allowing a 45-minute lunch.

Working hours are to be 8:00 a.m.
personnel, allowing a 30-minute lu
entitled to two 15-minute breaks,
the afterncon, each day.
Supervisor's responsibility
food and beverage provisions t

reporting for work.
the workday is not pe
lunch. Employees tha

to 4:30 p.m. for field

nch. All employees are

one in the morning and one in
The scheduling of these breaks is the
An employee is expected to bring

o meet his/her requirements when
Stopping for provisions after the start of
reitted, except during the time allotted for
t have weekend duty are to do their morning
checks between 8:00 and 10:00 a.m.
necessary, between 3:00 and 5:00 p

and their afternoon checks, if

-w. The employee's supervisor

will determine the amount of coverage necessary.

6. Phone Use:
work. Personal use i

Phones are a tool to accomplish District
8 to be minimized. Use should be limited to

emergencies and to lunch and break periods. All long distance
calls are to be billed to the employee's home phone.

Please initial beside
understand the Memora

Aitkens MA (

M
Andreadis . V/ﬂ
[ /

Bealiil. o

Bohn \,éflg

Cassels ;- e

Gau ’“X’" ?@
Herefo ’d[(,A(

N
Leu . Q":: i

s 7.
Manzer , "
———tast b

Monson {Ifz /14

your name to indicate that you have read and

Nicol . g&z

Pedrinq,(zi l)

PtincexAZZ
Scott 84! =)

[¢
St. Dennis-J.

Schwagel,ﬁzdk,,,,a'ﬁéﬁf
St
_—
Simons 3 - )/

Wilson EVIQJ‘iu

1]



PAGER POLICY
ON-CALL PERSONNEL

Approval has been received to upgrade the District's commu-
nication system by utilizing pager technology. Pagers are antic-
ipated to be beneficial to the employee and the District. This
system will be successful through the following program and
policy. ‘

Five pagers will be purchased and one will be assigned to
each person responsible for a given segment of the District's
operation (e.g. - Treatment Plants, Treated Water Distribution,
Hydroelectric Plant, 2 - Raw Water Distribution) for the given
period of time.

Home phone numbers will no longer be given out through the
after hours answering machine. Pager numbers, for each area of
responsibility, will be announced along with information to
assist the caller. The pager must be kept with the employee and
in the mode to receive a call at all times. In the event a call
is received by the pager a return call is to be made within 15
minutes and a physical response (if required) within 30 minutes.
Calls received from a facility (e.g.- treatment plant or hydro-
electric plant) should have a. physical response within 30 -
minutes. Employees with weekend responsibility will remain on
the Divide, unless alternate coverage has been authorized by that
employee's supervisor.

The Georgetown Divide Public Utility District has the obli-
gation of providing a safe and reliable potable water supply and
an obligation to meet its contracts. Employees of the District
share in this obligation. Pagers will assist the District and
its employees meet their responsibilities in a more professional
and efficient manner.



e

w GEORGETOWN DIVIDE

- Public Utility District

February 16, 1994

MEMORANDUM
TO: ALL DISTRICT EMPLOYEES
FROM: CHARLES F. GIERAU, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: ACCRUAL OF VACATION/SICK LEAVE

We want to clarify to all employees the policy of accruing
vacation and sick leave. 1In order to accrue vacation and sick
leave at your present rate, you must be in a "pay status"” for 80
hours. For example, if you have used up all of your sick and
vacation leave, and were off 2 days during the 2-week work
period, you would accrue vacation/sick leave for that period at a
rate LESS than if you worked the full 80 hours.

Also, if you are sick one day, for example, but have only a
fraction of 8 hours sick leave available, then you would be paid
for the sick hours available, and the balance of leave would come
from vacation, if it is available. If you do not want time made
up from vacation when gick leave is not available, then you need

‘to notify your supervisor that you wish to be in a "leave without

pay status." fhis is okay, but you need to understand that you
will not accrue leave at your full rate.

On the bottom of your pay stub is the balance of your vaca-
tion and sick leave as of the last day of the pay period for
which you are being paid.

Please place this memo in your Personnel Manual for future
reference, and if you have any questions please ask your supervi-
Sor, or come into the office.

policy
CFG: 3l



TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2016

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #08

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

Notice of Supplemental Charge to Customers

The Supplemental Charge, for the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant, has been included in
the current billing cycle. Based on direction received from Counsel, together with Staff inquiries made
with other districts, it is likely the Board will need to consider the adoption of a new Ordinance to
address a series of nuances. Staff will be prepared to discuss the specifics of this matter at the
meeting.

Meter Replacement Program — RFP and Financing Plan

The Consulting firm of MC Engineering has completed the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the
replacement of water meters. Staff is anticipating the bidding process will be complete with a
recommendation to award at the April Board meeting. Funding for the meter replacement will likely be
through a loan, executed with a private lending institution. Staff is currently working with / Bank and
Holman Capital for the financing.

RCAC Water Rate Study

Staff continues to work with RCAC. RCAC anticipates completion of the Water Rate Study by April 1,
2017. RCAC will schedule a meeting with the District in early March to review all of the data and
assumptions. It is likely the Finance Committee will attend the meeting in March.

Stumpy Boom Repair

A portion of the safety boom, mid-section, at Stumpy Meadows Reservoir has separated. Staff has
been unable to make the necessary repairs due to snow. It is the intent of Staff to contract out for the
needed repairs to the boom. This project remains a priority.

RECOMMENDATION

Take appropriate action as desired. Receive and file this report.



To: Board of Directors
From: Martin Ceirante, Acting Operations Manager
Date: February 8, 2017

Re: OPERATIONS MANAGER’S REPORT
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #09

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

Recoating of Walton Treatment Plant #1 Storage Tank

The request for bids was released on January 26, 2017. There will be a pre bid meeting for
prospective contractors at the tank site on February 16, 2017 and the bids are due back in the
District Office on February 24, 2017.

Water Treatment (ALT & Walton)

The Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant produced 12.705 million gallons of potable
water for the month of December. This equates to an average of 409,839 gallons per day. This
flow is a decrease of 7,000 gallons per day from the month of December. The Walton Lake
Water Treatment Plant produced 15.827 million gallons of potable water for the month of
December. This equates to an average of 510,548 gallons per day. This flow is an increase of
27,935 gallons per day from the month of December.

As of July 2014, the District is required to report to the State the amount of total potable water
produced through the two plants (ALT and Walton) monthly, and to compare that value with
the demands of the prior year over the same reporting period. The table below shows the
percentage increase (+) or decrease (-) for 2017 compared to 2016 and 2013.

The District is no longer required to reduce water consumption by 29% compared to 2013. We
are self-certified at 0%; however, we are still held to reduce 20% by 2020.

+-% Total +H-% | +-%
Total Prod. | +/- % of of Prod. of of
Month 2017 2016 2013 | Month 2017 2016 2013
Jan. 28.532 +1% -8% | Jul.
Feb. Aug.
Mar. Sep.
Apr. Oct.
May Nov.
Jun. Dec.




Operations Manager’s Report Page 2
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017
Agenda Item #09

Water Quality

The District conducted the required water quality monitoring at the treatment plants and in the
distribution system and submitted the required water quality monitoring reports to the State.

Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). Under contract with the District, Becky Siren
prepared the required reports and reviewed key elements of the same with the Interim General
Manager prior to submittal.

The Treatment Plant reports showed compliance with all drinking water standards, with the
exception of the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant which is currently under a
compliance order from SWRCB for failure to meet the requirements of the Surface Water
Treatment Rule.

The distribution system monitoring results showed all samples absent/negative of any
bacteriological contamination and adequate levels of disinfection through the system.

The District conducted the first quarter Disinfection Byproduct (DBP) monitoring. The results
showed the district’s water is well below the Maximum Contamination Leve! (MCL).

A copy of the report, as submitted to the SWRCB, has not been included in this report due to
the technical nature and overall size of the document.

Waste Water: Auburn Lake Trails

Average daily flows in the community disposal system were 89,599 gallons per day. This value
exceeds the limit of 71,800 gallons per day as identified in the Waste Discharge Requirements.
The District has completed all needed reports associated with this issue.

The District has to date completed all required laboratory monitoring of groundwater, surface
water and wastewater effluent.

The District is currently up to date in the monitoring of waste water systems in the zone. ltis
anticipated the District will stay on schedule because of permanent staff dedicated to this effort.

Stumpy Meadows Reservoir

As of February 1, 2017, Stumpy Meadows Reservoir showed a reservoir elevation of 4,262
feet, representing storage of 20,000 acre-feet, or 100% of capacity. Stumpy continues to spill.

Current releases from Stumpy on this date, at the base of the dam were 4.0 CFS. Additional
water flows out of Stumpy over the spillway. Flow into Stumpy on the day of this report was
recorded at 40 CFS.

Field Work Activities — Distribution and Maintenance

No change in the report from the month of January as similar work activities continue with the
field crews.

Distribution: The Distribution crew worked throughout the District distribution system repairing
leaks, repairing meters, installation of new services, and adjusting altitude and pressure
reducing valves. The Distribution crew completed all required water quality sampling and “USA”
survey’s.



Operations Manager’s Report Page 3
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017
Agenda ltem #09

Maintenance: The Maintenance crew has been working to make off season adjustments and
winterize the canal system. The crew is working to replace several sections of dilapidated pipe
throughout the raw water canal system.

The Combined Crews: The Combined crews are currently working on much needed repairs
and safety upgrades, hand rails and walkways, to the upper canal waste gates.

RECOMMENDATION

Receive and file this report.



Finance Committee Report Agenda Item #10

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee

“Providing financial research, review, and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors and General Manager in
support of sound, prudent and business-like management of the water district”

Meeting Date: January 24, 2017
Location: GDPUD Board Room

Adopt the January 24, 2017 Agenda

Dennis Goodenow, Rick Gillespie of the Finance Committee, the Board Liaison, and Staff were
present. The Agenda was adopted as presented.

Approve the December 15, 2016 Minutes

The Committee decided to review and discuss the minutes from the December 15, 2016 meeting
when Donna Bruss was present.
Open Forum

George Sanders from staff discussed the possibility of staff preparing a mid-year budget
adjustment to the Board in February. George asked if the FC would be available to review any
such documents prior to that date. The FC agreed to such a review.

RCAC Water Rate Study Objectives and Methodology

The proposed RCAC Water Rate structure for both treated water and raw water was discussed
in detail. The committee suggested that a graduated percent (20 to 100 percent) available at
replacement dates for the reserves portion of the RCAC rates should be used in replace of the
default 20% as now proposed, or contract with a reserves expect to provide alternatives. At the
last FC Meeting staff requested the FC to assist with the allocation split for some items between
the treater water and raw water enterprises. The FC will schedule this item at its next Committee
Meeting.

Discussion of Methodologies to adjust the Cost Rates to Sales Rates

The Committee discussed one potential methodology to establish subsidy targets to bridge the
gap between the cost rates to be determined by RCAC and the sales rates to be established by
the District Board. The FC also discussed one possible method of allocating any non-operating
revenues to be used to subsidize the water rates.

GDPUD Board Meeting of February 14, 2017 Page 1 of 1




GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #10, ATTACHMENT A

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee
“Providing financial research, review, and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors in support of sound, prudent
and business-like management of the water district”

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Date & Time: January 24, 2017

Location: GDPUD Boardroom

Scheduled Time: 4:00- 6:00 PM

Committee Members Present: Dennis Goodenow (DG), Rick Gillespie (RG)
Committee Member(s) Absent: Donna Bruss (DB)

Board Members Present: Dave Halpin

Staff Present: George Sanders, Diana Michaelson

ITEM NO.

1. Adopt the January 24, Agenda
Motion to adopt Agenda, 1t, 2nd & passed Ayes 2 Nays O

2. Approve Minutes from December 15, 2016 meeting

The Committee decided to review and discuss the Minutes at the next FC

Meeting.

3. Open Forum
George Sanders asked the Committee if they would be able to review staff
document related to an expected mid-year budget adjustment. All agreed

we would review such documents when available.

4. RCAC Water Rate Study Objectives and Methodologies
The General issues concerning the various aspects of the RCAC rate study,

data, rate structure, and methodology were discussed.

5. Discussion of Methodology to adjust the cost rates to sales rates
The General issues concerning the potential rate structures, subsidy targets,

and subsidy allocation methods were discussed.

6. Next Meeting: February 21, 2017 at 3:00- 5:00 PM




GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #10, ATTACHMENT B

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee

“Providinyg financial research, review, and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors and General Manager in
support of sound, prudent and business-like management of the water district”

MEETING AGENDA
Meeting Date: February 21st, 2017
Location: GDPUD Board Room
Scheduled Time: 3:00 - 5:00 PM

ITEM NO:

1. Adopt the February 215t Agenda
2. Approve the December 15th 2016, and January 24th 2017 Minutes
3. Open Forum
4. RCAC Water Rate Study Objectives and Methodology
* Discussions of the list of assets (inventory)
¢ Discuss additional data requests from RCAC
¢ Discuss fixed costs vs. variable costs allocation techniques
* Discuss the allocations of costs between the treated water and raw
water enterprises
5. Discussion of Methodologies to Adjust the Cost Rates to Sales Rates
e Discuss potential subsidy target

* Discuss potential subsidy allocation methodologies




Finance Committee Report Agenda Item #

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee

“Providing financial research, review, and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors and General Manager in
support of sound, prudent and business-like management of the water district”

Meeting Date: December 15, 2016
Location: GDPUD Board Room

Adopt the December 15, 2016 Agenda

Dennis Goodenow, Donna Bruss of the Finance Committee, the Board Liaison, and Staff were
present. The Agenda was adopted as presented.

Approve the November 15, 2016 Minutes

The Committee approved the minutes from the November 15, 2016 meeting.
Open Forum

There were no comments from the committee, staff, liaison, or the general public.
RCAC Water Rate Study Objectives and Methodology

The RCAC Water Rate Study was discussed in detail. The committee suggested that the
inventory of assets needed additional review as some items on the inventory were suspect.
Also, the list of assets has been expanded by RCAC to include an allocation split for some items
between the treater water and raw water enterprises. Staff asked the FC to help determine the
appropriate allocation splits. The FC agreed to assist staff in this endeavor as well as the
previously agreed to effort to determine the appropriate reserves to be on-hand at each
replacement period for each asset.

Discussion of Methodologies to adjust the Cost Rates to Sales Rates

The Committee discussed the need to establish subsidy targets to bridge the gap between the
cost rates to be determined by RCAC and the sales rates to be established by the District. The
FC also discussed potential methods of allocating any non-operating revenues to be used to
subsidize the water rates.

Board Meeting of Page 1 of 1




TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF FINAL AUDIT REPORT
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #11

DISCUSSION / BACKGROUND

The Board of Directors contracted with Fechter & Company, a CPA firm, to conduct the 2016
Annual Audit, on September 13, 2016.

A signed copy of the Financial Statements along with the Final Management Report was
received by the District on January 30, 2017, a copy of which is included with this report as
Attachments A and B.

RECOMMENDATION

Itis Staff's recommendation that the Board acknowledge receipt of the 2016 Annual Audit Report
and approve the same.



GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017

AGENDA ITEM #11
ATTACHMENT A

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC
UTILITY DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2016






FECHTER
& COM PANY Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST

Certified Public Accountants Scott A. German, CPA

January 20, 2017

To the Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District for the
year ended June 30, 2016 and have issued our report thereon dated January 20, 2017. As part of our
audit we made a study and evaluation of the District’s system of internal accounting control to the
extent we considered necessary to evaluate the system as required by auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. The purpose of our study and evaluation was to determine
the nature, timing, and extent of the auditing procedures necessary for expressing an opinion on the
District’s financial statements. Our study and evaluation was more limited than would be necessary
to express an opinion on the system of internal accounting control taken as a whole.

The management of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining a system of internal accounting control. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and
Judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of control
procedures. The objectives of a system are to provide management with reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, and that
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorization and recorded properly to
permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Because of inherent limitations in any system of internal accounting control, errors or irregularities
may nevertheless occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of the system to
future periods is subject to the risk that procedures may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions or that the degree of compliance with the procedures may deteriorate.

Our study and evaluation made for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph would not
necessarily disclose all material weaknesses in the system. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the system of internal accounting control of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
taken as a whole.

Our study and evaluation disclosed no condition that we believed to be a material weakness.

This report is intended solely for the use of management and should not be used for any other
purpose.

1

1870 Avondale Avenue Suite 4 | Sacramento CA, 95825 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com
Member of the American Institute of Certified Publijc Accountants Tax Section
and California Socicty of CPAs



To the Board of Directors
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We would like to thank the District staff for taking the time to compile complete and accurate records
for the audit. We look forward to working with the District and its staff in the future.

Sincerely,

%@,@% s

Craig R. Fechter, CPA, President
Fechter & Company, CPAs



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Management Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

The Auditor’s Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to
plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and are fairly presented in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Because an audit is designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all transactions,
there is a risk that material misstatements may exist and not be detected by us.

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit.

Significant Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies used
by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no
transactions entered into by the District during the year that were both significant and unusual, and of
which, under professional standards, we are required to inform you.

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the
financial statements were:

¢ Allowance for doubtful accounts
* Accrual and disclosure of pension liability and other post-employment benefits liability
* Capital asset lives and depreciation expense



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Management Report
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define an audit adjustment as a proposed correction
of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our
auditing procedures. An audit adjustment may or may not indicate matters that could have a
significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process (that is, cause future financial
statements to be materially misstated). The following audit adjustments, in our judgment, indicate
matters that could have a significant effect on the District’s financial reporting process:

® To record the entries related to the district’s net pension liability.
® Torecord a prior period adjustment for inventory.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are
pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Consultations with Other Independent Auditors

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit’s financial statements or a
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other
accountants.

Issues Discussed Prior to Retention of Independent Auditors

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However,
these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our retention.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing our audit.



GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #11
ATTACHMENT B

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC
UTILITY DISTRICT

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

JUNE 30, 2016






GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Annual Financial Report

June 30, 2016
Table of Contents
Independent AUditOr’s REPOTt........cccueeieiirereeiecieeiieet et e ce e eee e ste e eeee st e esa e snensnaennes
Management’s Discussion and Analysis..........cccocueeririiinieniienecisint e sn e enee
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement Of Net POSITION ........cccceieirieieiieeiieieecie et ettt sttt e veesaeas
Statement Of ACHVITIES .....coeveeeeeieeeerereeieresiestisiaetesieseetsesteseesasessassessessassessessansessassesssnssenaen
Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Funds ..........c.ccocvveviireniieninenic e seeenes
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position —

Proprietary FUNAS .....c.ooooioe ettt ne s
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary Funds............c.cocconiiiniinenincniieneinenesineeeenenes
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities ............c.cceevveererieniiiesicieeeceeeee e

Notes to Basic Financial Statements..............ccocuiiiiiieiiiiniicneeee et
Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Post-Employment Benefits ..............ccccovivveieeceennee

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ............ccceccevuneeee.

Schedule of Pension CoOnMIIDULIONS «........eeiiereeeeee e ee e e e e et eee et eeeeereeseeseseeeaesaesesnmeenenees

Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Operating EXPENSES ..........ccevueeeeueeueeieeiiieesieieeesesieeseteseesesessesaeesssseesseseessassssens
Restricted Plant Benefit Charges and DisSClOSUTES.............ceeiivirieninneneniireccesceee e

46
47
43

49
50



FECHTER
& COM P AN Y Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST

Certified Public Accountants Scott A. German, CPA

E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the fiduciary fund of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District) as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the District for the year ended June 30, 2015. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the District, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

1

1870 Avondale Avenue Suite 4 | Sacramento CA, 95825 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com

Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tax Secction
and California Socicty of CPAs



To the Board of Directors of
the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund, and fiduciary fund of the District as
of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the fiscal year then
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4-10, the Schedule of Funding Progress for Other Postemployment
Benefits on page 44, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability on
page 45, and the Schedule of Pension Contributions on page 46 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District’s basic financial statements. The
Schedules of Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant Benefit Charges and Disclosures are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedules of Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant Benefits Charges and Disclosures are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedules of Operating Expenses and Restricted Plant
Benefits Charges and Disclosures are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.



To the Board of Directors of
the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Georgetown, California

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 20, 2017, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Fechter & Company,
iffed Public Accountants

oy, CPA5

Sacramento, California
January 20, 2017




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

As management of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes that follow
this section.

Financial Highlights

The fiscal year was, once again challenging from an economic perspective. Total revenue for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2016 was $4,052,283, an increase of $438,547 or 12.14% from the previous fiscal
year. Total expenses were $4,469,731, an increase of $664,334 or 17.46% from the previous fiscal
year. The decrease in net position was $417,448 for the fiscal year. By closely monitoring the budget
and cutting expenses, the District was able to minimize the decrease in net assets.

Operating revenue totaled $1,959,999 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, a decrease of $2,453 or
0.12% from the previous fiscal year. Operating expenses totaled $4,436,717, an increase of $729,192
or 19.67% from the previous fiscal year.

Non-operating revenue was $2,092,284, an increase of $441,000 or 26.71%. Non-operating expense
was $33,014, a decrease of $64,858 or 66.27%. The remaining non-operating revenue supplements
operating revenue to cover operating expenses and capital improvements.

Other significant financial activities were:
e Filling certain staff positions.
o Increased CalPERS benefit payments with the implementation of GASB 68.
o Investing towards the design of the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Retrofit
Project.
e Drought conditions that impact water usage.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial
Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and optional Supplementary Information.

The required financial statements are the Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2016; the Statement of
Activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, at the government-wide level; the Statement of Net
Position— Proprietary Funds at June 30, 2016; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Net Position — Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016; and the Statement of Cash
Flows — Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, at the fund level. The final required
financial statement is the Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities. The financial statements also
include comprehensive notes which summarize the official accounting policies of the District and
provide additional details of specific accounts. '

The financial statements, except for the cash flow statement, are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting, which means that revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
incurred regardless of the timing of cash receipts or payments. The cash flow statement is an
exception because that statement shows the receipt and payment of cash for operating activities, non-



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities, and investing activities.
Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the District report information about the District using accounting
methods similar to those used by companies in the private sector. These statements offer short and
long-term financial information about its activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the
District’s assets and liabilities. The statement also provides information about the nature and
amounts of investments in assets and obligations to District creditors as liabilities. The statement
also provides the basis for computing rate of return, evaluating the capital structure of the District,
and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying
events giving rise to the changes occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

All of the current fiscal year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the District’s operations over the
past fiscal year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all of its
costs through its rates, fees, and other charges. The District’s net position and credit worthiness can
also be determined from this statement.

The primary purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows is to provide information about the District’s
cash receipts and cash payments during the reporting period. This statement reports cash receipts,
cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operating, investing, and financing activities.
It explains where cash came from, cash usage, and the change in the cash balance during the
reporting period.

The Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities is provided to report on assets held in an agency
capacity for others and which cannot be used to support the District’s operating activities.

Financial Analysis of the District

Has the financial condition of the District improved or deteriorated as a result of this year’s
operations? The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position attempts to answer this question. Net position may be a useful indicator over time as
to the District’s financial position. But, there may be other non-economic factors that could cause a
change in the District’s financial situation.

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position is a snapshot in time that shows assets, liabilities, and net assets as of
June 30, 2016. Net Position decreased by $417,448 to $16,247,025 in fiscal year 2016. Total assets
and deferred outflows of resources decreased by $136,570 and total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources increased by $280,878 from the previous fiscal year. There is a decrease in net capital
assets mainly from depreciation. A summary of the District’s Statement of Net Position is presented
in Table A-1.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Current assets
Restricted assets
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation
Deferred outflows of resources
Total Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources

Current liabilities
Current restricted liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for facilities
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted net position

June 30, 2016
Table A-1
Condensed Statement of Net Position

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2016 2015 Change Change
$ 7,163,033 § 6,966,924 $ 196,109 2.81%
2,994,909 3,023,063 (28,154) -0.93%
12,270,069 12,754,161 (484,092) -3.80%
484,729 305,162 179,567 58.84%
22,912,740 23,049,310 (136,570) -0.59%
223,574 138,114 85,460 61.88%
8,090 7,719 371 4.81%
6,235,173 5,400,595 834,578 15.45%
198,878 838,409 (639,531) -76.28%
6,665,715 6,384,837 280,878 4.40%
11,389,428 11,836,954 (447,525) -3.78%
2,265,880 2,236,016 29,864 1.34%
397,952 423,946 (25,994) -6.13%
2,193,765 2,167,557 26,201 1.21%
$ 16,247,025 $ 16,664,473 $ (417,448) -2.51%

Total Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides information on the
nature and source of assets represented on the Statement of Net Position. It also shows that the
expenses exceeded revenues by $417,448. Ending net position totaled $16,247,025. Total revenues
increased by $438,547 in 2016 totaling $4,052,283. Operating revenue decreased by $2,453. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position lists the operating revenues and the
non-operating revenues together and compares them to the operating and non-operating expenses.
Table A-2 depicts total revenues and total expenses and the resulting changes in net position.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Table A-2
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses,
and Changes in Net Position

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2016 2015 Change Change
Operating revenues $ 1959999 $ 1,962,452 $ (2,453) -0.12%

Non-operating revenues and

contributions 2,092,284 1,651,284 441,000 26.71%
Total Revenues 4,052,283 3,613,736 438,547 12.14%
Operating expenses 4,436,717 3,707,525 729,192 19.67%
Non-operating expenses 33,014 97.872 (64,858) -66.27%
Total Expenses 4,469,731 3,805,397 664,334 17.46%
Net Income (Loss) (417,448) (191,661) (225,787) 117.81%
Beginning Net Position, Restated 16,664,473 16,856,134 (191,661) -1.14%
Ending Net Position $ 16,247,025 $ 16,664,473 $ (417,448) -2.51%

Operating Revenues

In a purely business environment, operating revenues are meant to cover operating expenses, retire
debt and provide for future improvements by accumulating reserves. The rural nature of the District
allows for the receipt of property taxes which are used in conjunction with the operating revenues to
pay for operating expenses and other needs. Due to dry weather conditions and conservation
practices water demand revenue decreased over the prior fiscal year. The remaining operating
revenues were close to expectations. Operating revenues are depicted in Table A-3.

Table A-3
Condensed Operating Revenues

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2016 2015 Change Change
Water sales — residential $ 1,244,193 $ 1236737 § 7,456 0.60%
Water sales — commercial 177,031 170,797 6,234 3.65%
Water sales — irrigation 135,218 157,407 (22,189) -14.10%
Water disposal fees and charges 346,429 344,857 1,572 0.46%
Penalties 39,885 48,532 (8,647) -17.82%
Connections 15,232 4,111 11,121 270.52%
Other operating revenues 2,011 11 2,000 18181.82%
Total Operating Revenues $ 1959999 $ 1,962,452 § (2,453) -0.12%




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Operating Expenses by Department

Total operating expenses increased $729,192 or 19.67% to $4,436,717. The largest expense increase
was in Transmission and Distribution activities largely due to recovery from the drought and required
usage water conservation measures from the prior year. The increase to On-Site Wastewater Disposal
was due to position adjustments. Administrative service expenses increased due to General Manager
and Office Manager in place for a full year. The hydroelectric activities are combined with the
administrative activities as they are not material enough to present separately. Source of Supply
expenses increased due to personnel adjustments. The Water Treatment Plant expenses increased
slightly due to cost of living adjustments. Operating expenses are depicted in Table A-4.

Table A-4
Operating Expenses by Department
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent
2016 2015 Change Change
Source of supply $ 351,861 $ 231,538 $ 120,323 51.97%
Transmission and distribution —
raw water 593,812 576,995 16,817 2.91%
Water treatment 546,119 540,882 5,237 0.97%
Transmission and distribution —
treated water 728,310 540,249 188,061 34.81%
Customer service 250,023 260,774 (10,751) -4.12%
Administrative and hydroelectric 966,505 721,814 244,691 33.90%
Depreciation and amortization 816,291 672,901 143,390 21.31%
On-site wastewater disposal zone 183,796 162,372 21,424 13.19%
Total Operating Expenses $ 4,436,717 $ 3,707,525 $ 729,192 19.67%

Operating Revenues vs. Operating Expenses

The District’s operating loss increased by $731,645. Table A-5 compares operating revenues to
operating expenses and depicts the District’s reliance on other revenue for operations.

Table A-5
Operating Revenues vs. Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent

2016 2015 Change Change
Operating Revenues $ 1,959,999 $ 1962452 $ (2,453) -0.12%
Operating Expenses 4,436,717 3,707,525 729,192 19.67%
Operating Loss $ (2,476,718) $ (1,745,073) $  (731,645) 41.93%




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

The District’s non-operating income is vital to covering operations. Property taxes increased this
fiscal year and interest income declined. Table A-6 compares non-operating revenues and expenses.

Table A-6
Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Dollar Percent
2016 2015 Change Change
Property taxes — general $ 1,447381 $ 1,379,559 $ 67,822 4.92%
Interest income 45,883 44,764 1,119 2.50%
Restricted benefit charges 18,400 18,400
Lease revenue 60,230 49,356 10,874 22.03%
Hydroelectric royalty payments 43,259 47,240 (3,981) -8.43%
SMUD payment 108,515 107,825 690 0.64%
Gain on sale of asset 1,527 1,527
Other 27,483 22,540 4,943 21.93%
Capital contributions 339,606 339,606
Total Non-Operating Revenues 2,092,284 1,651,284 441,000 26.71%
Total Non-Operating Expenses 33,014 97,872 (64,858) -66.27%
Non-Operating Income Less
Non-Operating Expense $ 2,059,270 $ 1,553,412 $ 505,858 32.56%

Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets for the fiscal year was $332,201 while depreciation
expense was $816,291. The investment in capital improvements include but are not limited to:

$129,469 to move the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Retrofit project forward,
$54,406 for a 2016 Dodge Ram 5500

$48,517 for a Ditch Witch FX30 Vac Trailer

$22,240 for a 2016 Ford F-150

$9,630 for office computers

e o ¢ o o

Additional information about District capital assets can be obtained in Note 4 of the notes to the
financial statements.

Long-Term Debt and Debt Administration

At June 30, 2016, the District had $6,235,173 in long-term debt, including compensated absences and
other postemployment benefits obligations, $834,578 more than the prior fiscal year. The District
continues to perform debt administration functions previously performed by the County on the
District’s behalf for certain 1915 Act bonds. Additional information about District long-term debt
can be obtained in Note 5 of the notes to the financial statements.



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016

CalPERS Pension Plan

Assembly Bill 340 was recently passed by the California Legislature in an effort to reduce CalPERS
pension costs in the long run. The District has participated in a CalPERS Pension Plan since
February of 1972. There have been amendments to the contract with CalPERS over the years.
CalPERS requires the District to be part of a small employer pool and the 2006 contract change
which require payments to reduce a side fund. The contribution requirements of the plan members
are established by state statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended
by CalPERS.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

The District has been endeavoring to fund these benefit commitments for many years and
implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45 — Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions in fiscal year
2010. On April 11, 2006, the District adopted Ordinance 2006-01 regarding retiree health benefits
implementing caps on the amount the District would pay towards these types of benefits. A
calculation of the future liability for these benefits has been prepared utilizing the simplified method
allowed by the statement for small employers. Utilizing this method, it is estimated that the District
saved approximately $850,000 by instituting the caps. The estimated actuarial liability at
June 30, 2016, is $1,532,949. The District has set aside $566,605 for this obligation. As the District
administers this plan without a trust, the designated assets set aside for these benefits are not
recognized in the notes to the financial statements. Additional information about postemployment
benefits other than pensions can be obtained in Note 14 of the notes to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Rates

The District’s customer base continues to grow at a slow rate. The District completed a Water
System Reliability Study in fiscal year 2002. This study has been utilized as a basis for long-term
maintenance and capital improvement plans for the District. The District reviewed its financial
reserves and updated its financial reserve policy in fiscal year 2006. The updated reserve policy
provides a guide for development of future rates and fees to adequately support the capital and
operation needs of the District.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the Georgetown
Divide Public Utility District. After the financial report is approved by the Board of Directors, it can
be found under the financial section on the District’s website (gd-pud.org). Copies of the report are
also provided to the El Dorado County libraries in Placerville and Georgetown. A copy will be
available for review at the District office, located at 6425 Main St, Georgetown, CA 95634,
Questions concerning any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the General Manager of the District, Georgetown Divide Public
Utility District, P.O. Box 4240, Georgetown, CA 95634-4240.

10



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

Business-Type Activities

2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 6,646,096 $ 6,398,651
Receivables:
Accounts 366,806 425,170
Interest 7,081 1,372
Inventory 41,826 47,135
Deposits and prepaid expenses 101,224 94,596
Total current assets 7,163,033 6,966,924
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments 2,717,114 2,666,510
Receivables:
Interest 281 4,819
Current assessments 55,616 56,014
Non-current assessments 221,898 294,176
Deposits and prepaid expenses - 1,544
Total restricted assets 2,994,909 3,023,063
Capital assets, net 12,270,069 12,754,161
TOTAL ASSETS 22,428,011 22,744,148
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 484,729 305,162
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 22,912,740 $23,049,310
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 146,833 92,188
Accrued expenses 51,489 30,428
Unearned revenue 25,252 15,498
Total Current Liabilities 223,574 138,114
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued interest payable 5,646 6,548
Accounts payable 1,273 -
Unearned revenue 1,171 1,171
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 8,090 7,719
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year 137,481 117,750
Due in more than one year 6,097,692 5,282,845
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,235,173 5,400,595
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,466,837 5,546,428
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 198,878 838,409
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,389,428 11,836,954
Restricted for new facilities 2,265,880 2,236,016
Restricted for debt service 397,952 423,946 *
Unrestricted 2,193,765 2,167,557
TOTAL NET POSITION 16,247,025 16,664,473
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION $ 22,912,740 $23,049,310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
11



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2016
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

Program Revenues

Net Changes in Net Position

Capital
Charges for ~ Contributions
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Grants 2016 2015
Business-Type Activities:
Water $ 4258065 $ 1613570 $ 339,606 $ (2,304,889) $ (1,997,165)
Wastewater Disposal 211,666 346,429 - 134,763 154,220
Total business-type activities $ 4,469,731 $ 1,959,999 $ 339,606 (2,170,126) (1,842,945)

General Revenues:
Property taxes
Investment income
Other revenues
Total general revenues
Change in net position
Net position - beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Net position - beginning of year,
restated

Net position end of year

1,447,381 1,379,559
45,883 44,764
259,414 226,961
1,752,678 1,651,284
(417,448) (191,661)
16,664,473 19,875,511
- (3,019,377)
16,664,473 16,856,134

$ 16,247,025 $ 16,664,473

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

12



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)
Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 5,766,122 $ 879,974 $ 6,646,096 $ 6,398,651
Receivables:
Accounts 362,060 4,746 366,806 425,170
Interest 6,005 1,076 7,081 1,372
Inventory 41,826 - 41,826 47,135
Deposits and prepaid expenses 99,934 1,290 101,224 94,596
Total current assets 6,275,947 887,086 7,163,033 6,966,924
Restricted Assets:
Cash and investments 2,491,956 225,158 2,717,114 2,666,510
Receivables:
Interest - 281 281 4,819
Current assessments 55,616 - 55,616 56,014
Non-current assessments 221,898 - 221,898 294,176
Deposits and prepaid expenses - - - 1,544
Total restricted assets 2,769,470 225,439 2,994,909 3,023,063
Capital assets, net 12,038,472 231,597 12,270,069 12,754,161
TOTAL ASSETS 21,083,889 1,344,122 22,428,011 22,744,148
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 468,248 16,481 484,729 305,162
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 21,552,137 $ 1,360,603 $ 22,912,740 $ 23,049,310
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 139,070 7,763 146,833 92,188
Accrued expenses 51,489 - 51,489 30,428
Unearned revenue 25,252 - 25,252 15,498
Total Current Liabilities 215,811 7,763 223,574 138,114
Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets:
Accrued interest payable 5,646 - 5,646 6,548
Accounts payable 1,273 - 1,273 -
Unearned revenue 1,171 - 1,171 1,171
Total Current Liabilities Payable from
Restricted Assets 8,090 - 8,090 7,719
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year 136,722 759 137,481 117,750
Due in more than one year 5,934,875 162,817 6,097,692 5,282,845
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 6,071,597 163,576 6,235,173 5,400,595
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,295,498 171,339 6,466,837 5,546,428
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pensions 192,116 6,762 198,878 838,409
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES 192,116 6,762 198,878 838,409
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,157,831 231,597 11,389,428 11,836,954
Restricted for new facilities 2,040,441 225,439 2,265,880 2,236,016
Restricted for debt service 397,952 - 397,952 423,946 *
Unrestricted 1,468,299 725,466 2,193,765 2,167,557
TOTAL NET POSITION 15,064,523 1,182,502 16,247,025 16,664,473
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED
INFLOWS AND NET POSITION $ 21,552,137 $ 1,360,603 $ 22,912,740 $ 23,049,310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
13



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

Operating revenues:
Water sales:
Residential
Commercial
Irrigation
Installations and connections
Waste disposal:
Zone charges
Design fees
Escrow fees
Penalties
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Source of supply
Transmission and distribution - raw water
Pumping and power
Transmission and distribution - treated water
Customer service
Administration and hydroelectric
Depreciation
On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Tax revenue - general
Interest income
Lease revenue
SMUD payment
Hydroelectric royalty payments
Capital facility charge
Gain on sale of assets
Other revenue
Interest expense
Other expense
Total non-operating revenues, net

Income (loss) before capital contributions
and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Capital contributions and transfers in (out), net

Change in net position

Beginning net position

Prior period adjustment
Beginning net position, restated
Ending net position

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater

Water Disposal 2016 2015
$ 1,244,193 $ - $ 1,244,193 $ 1,236,737
177,031 - 177,031 170,797
135,218 - 135,218 157,407
15,232 - 15,232 4,111
- 311,629 311,629 310,661
- 1,200 1,200 1,200
- 33,600 33,600 32,996
39,885 - 39,885 48,532
2,011 - 2,011 11
1,613,570 346,429 1,959,999 1,962,452
351,861 - 351,861 231,538
593,812 - 593,812 576,995
546,119 - 546,119 540,882
728,310 - 728,310 540,249
250,023 . 250,023 260,774
966,505 - 966,505 721,814
788,421 27,870 816,291 672,901
- 183,796 183,796 162,372
4,225,051 211,666 4,436,717 3,707,525
(2,611,481) 134,763 (2,476,718) (1,745,073)
1,447,381 - 1,447,381 1,379,559
41,827 4,056 45,883 44,764
60,230 - 60,230 49,356
108,515 - 108,515 107,825
43,259 - 43,259 47,240

18,400 - 18,400 -

1,527 - 1,527 -
27,483 - 27,483 22,540
(25,882) - (25,882) (31,515)
(7,132) - (7,132) (66,357)
1,715,608 4,056 1,719,664 1,553,412
(895,873) 138,819 (757,054) (191,661)

339,606 - 339,606 -
1,189,000 9,358 1,198,358 191,000
(1,198,358) - (1,198,358) (191,000)

330,248 9,358 339,606 -
(565,625) 148,177 (417,448) (191,661)
15,630,148 1,034,325 16,664,473 19,875,511
- - - (3,019,377)
15,630,148 1,034,325 16,664,473 16,856,134
$ 15,064,523 $1,182,502  $ 16,247,025 $ 16,664,473

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

14



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from non-capital financing activities:

Property taxes received

Assessment receivable payments
Receipts from capacity charges

SMUD payment

Hydroelectric royalty payments

Other revenue
Other expense

Transfers (to)/from other funds

Receipts from cellular antenna rentals

Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt
Interest payments on long-term debt

Capital grant

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of investments

Investment income received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2016 2015
$ 1681407 $ 346,710 $ 2,028,117 $ 1,972,225
(1,303,366) (93,857) (1,397,223) (1,025,657)
(2,005,592) (88,361) (2,093,953) (1,893,599)
(1,627,551) 164,492 (1,463,059) (947,031)
1,447,381 - 1,447,381 1,379,559
72,676 - 72,676 143,317
18,400 - 18,400 -
108,515 - 108,515 107,825
43,259 - 43,259 47,240
27,483 - 27,483 22,540
(7,132) - (7,132) (66,357)
(9,358) 9,358 - -
60,230 - 60,230 49,356
1,761,454 9,358 1,770,812 1,683,480
(90,972) - (90,972) (190,774)
(26,784) - (26,784) (32,860)
339,606 - 339,606 -
1,527 - 1,527 -
(277,793) - (277,793) (131,118)
(54,416) - (54,416) (354,752)
- - - 600,000
41,048 3,664 44,712 43,878
41,048 3,664 44,712 643,878
120,535 177,514 298,049 1,025,575
8,137,543 927,618 9,065,161 8,039,586
$ 8,258,078 $1,105132 $ 9,363,210 $ 9,065,161

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments, unrestricted
Restricted cash and investments

Total cash and investments

$ 5766,122 $ 879974 $ 6,646,096 $ 6,398,651
2,491,956 225,158 2,717,114 2,666,510
$ 8258078 $1,105132 $ 9363210 $ 9,065,161

Noncash investing/financing activities:

Issuance of capital lease

$ 54,406

$ -

$ 54,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15

(Continued)



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016
(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

Enterprise Funds Totals
Wastewater
Water Disposal 2016 2015

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used) by operating activities:

Operating loss $ (2,611,481) $ 134,763 $ (2,476,718)  $ (1,745,073)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 788,421 27,870 816,291 672,901
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable 53,503 4,861 58,364 7,340
Inventory 5,309 - 5,309 (702)
Deposits and prepaid expenses (4,779) (305) (5,084) (2,894)
Deferred outflow - pension (173,462) (6,105) (179,567) 11,634
Accounts payable 50,473 5,445 55,918 2,087
Accrued expenses 22,008 (947) 21,061 (22,843)
Deposits payable - - - (752)
Compensated absences 20,175 (1,078) 19,097 (585)
Postemployment benefits 78,182 - 78,182 76,540
Deferred inflow - pension (617,787) (21,744) (639,531) 838,409
Net pension liability 747,553 26,312 773,865 (786,278)
Unearned revenue 14,334 (4,580) 9,754 3,185
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ (1,627,551) $ 164,492 $ (1,463,059) § (947,031)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

JUNE 30, 2016

(with comparative totals for June 30, 2015)

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Prepaid expenses
Receivables:
Interest
Current assessments
Noncurrent assessments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due in one year
Due in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Totals
2016 2015
103,299 $ 98,709
B 1,235
67 52
5,063 4,885
158,464 165,553

266,893 $ 270,434

955 $ -
2,996 3,076
73,738 73,088
77,689 76,164
5,358 5,066
183,846 189,204
189,204 194,270

266,893 $ 270,434

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

17



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies

A.

Organization and Description

The reporting entity, the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District (District), was
created by the electorate, June 4, 1946, under the California Public Utility District Act
of 1921. The District operates under a governing five-member Board of Directors
(Board) elected at-large for four-year overlapping terms. The District’s management is
under the direction of the General Manager, who also serves as Clerk, and ex-officio
Secretary of the Board, who is appointed by and serves at the pleasure of the Board.

Reporting Entity

The District’s basic financial statements include the operations of all organizations for
which the District’s Board of Directors exercises oversight responsibility. Oversight
responsibility is demonstrated by financial interdependency, selection of governing
authority, designation of management, ability to significantly influence operations, and
accountability for fiscal matters.

Based upon the aforementioned oversight criteria, there are no component units in this
report which met the criteria of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and 61.

The basic financial statements include the accounts of two enterprise activities
provided by the District: (1) raw and treated water services, and (2) wastewater
disposal services in the Auburn Lake Trails (A.L.T.) subdivision.

Basis of Presentation

The District’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for
establishing accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental
entities in the United States of America.

Government-Wide Statements

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information
about the primary government (District). These statements include the financial
activities of the District, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made
to minimize the double counting of internal activities. Business-type activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

18



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1:  Significant Accounting Policies - continued
C. Basis of Presentation - continued

Government-Wide Statements - continued

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the District’s business-type activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a)
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational need of a particular
program, and (c) fees, grants, and contributions that are restricted to financing the
acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide information about the District’s funds,
including the fiduciary fund. Separate statements for each fund category — proprietary
and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
individual funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining funds
are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while
expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from
the primary operation of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating
revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

19



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 1:  Significant Accounting Policies - continued

C. Basis of Presentation - continued

Fund Financial Statements - continued

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units, and/or
other funds. The District maintains one fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are custodial in
nature and do not have a measurement focus, however, they do use the accrual basis of
accounting.

D. Major Funds

GASB Statement No. 34 defines major funds and requires that the District’s major
proprietary funds are identified and presented separately in the fund financial
statements. All other funds, called nonmajor funds, are combined and reported in a
single column, regardless of their fund-type.

Major funds are defined as funds that have assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses equal to or greater than ten percent of their fund-type total and
five percent of all fund-type totals. The District may also select other funds that it
believes should be presented as major funds. The District reports all its proprietary
funds as major funds.

The District reported the following major proprietary funds:
Water

This fund accounts for the activities of providing raw and treated water services to the
customers. Raw water service is also known as irrigation water.

Wastewater Disposal

This fund accounts for the activities of monitoring wastewater disposal of the residents
of the Auburn Lake Trails subdivision. The area is also known as the On-Site
Wastewater Disposal Zone. The On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone is comprised of
all the lots in the Auburn Lake Trails Subdivision, including the lots connected to the
Community Disposal System.

Additionally, the District reports a fiduciary agency fund to account for the debt
service activities for the Stewart Mine, Greenwood, Cool-Cherry Acres, Spanish Dry
Diggins, and Water Line Extensions 77-5 Water Assessment Districts. The District’s
administration of this debt is a purely custodial function.

20



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the “economic
resources”’ measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to
December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both government-wide financial
statements and proprietary funds financial statements to the extent that those standards
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector
guidance for their business-type activities and proprietary funds, subject to this same
limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Budget and Budgeting
Budget integration is employed as a management control device. Budgets are formally

adopted by the Board of Directors and take effect the following July 1. The budgets
are used as a management tool and are not a legal requirement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers all highly liquid

investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Inventory

Inventories of supplies are stated at cost. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out
basis.

Restricted Assets

These assets consist of certificates of deposit, short-term investments, and receivables
which are restricted for debt service and other legal obligations.

21



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

J.

Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
fair value at the date of donation. The District capitalizes capital assets valued over
$1,000 and having a useful life of at least three years. Depreciation is recorded using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the capital assets which
range from 30 to 100 years for the plant and pipelines and 3 to 15 years for other
equipment.

Compensated Absences

All earned vacation, which is payable upon termination or retirement, is accrued as
compensated absences, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 16,

Property Taxes

The District receives property taxes from El Dorado County (County), which has been
assigned the responsibility for assessment, collection, and apportionment of property
taxes for all taxing jurisdictions within the County. The District’s property taxes are
levied each July 1, on the assessed values as of the prior January 1 for all real and
personal property located in the District. Property sold after the assessment date
(January 1) is reassessed and the amount of the supplemental property tax levied is
prorated. Secured property taxes are due in two installments on November 1 and
February 1 and are delinquent after December 10 and April 10, respectively. Property
taxes on the unsecured roll are due on the January 1 lien date and become delinquent if
unpaid by August 31.

The District participates in the County “Teeter Plan” method of property tax
distribution and thus receives 100% of the District’s apportionment each fiscal year,
eliminating the need for an allowance for uncollectible. The County, in return,
receives all penalties and interest on the related delinquent taxes. Under the Teeter
Plan, the County remits property taxes to the District based on assessments, not on
collections, according to the following schedule: 55 percent in December, 40 percent
in April, and 5 percent at the end of the fiscal year.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the GASB and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA), requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

22



Note 1:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Significant Accounting Policies - continued

N.

Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior fiscal year has been presented in the
accompanying basic financial statements in order to provide an understanding of
changes in the District’s financial position, operations, and cash flows. Certain
classifications may have been made to the prior fiscal year financial statements to
conform to the current fiscal year presentation.

Net Position

GASB Statement No. 63 requires that the difference between assets added to the
deferred outflows of resources and liabilities added to the deferred inflows of
resources be reported as net position. Net position is classified as either net investment
in capital assets, restricted, or unrestricted.

Net position that is net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding principal of related debt.
Restricted net position is the portion of net position that has external constraints placed
on it by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Unrestricted net position
consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net investment in capital
assets or restricted net position.

Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Local Government of District’s California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS) plans (Plans) and additions to /deductions from the
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

23



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 2: Cash and Investments

Classification

The cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based
on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of District debt instruments or
District agreements:

Unrestricted cash and investments $ 6,646,096
Restricted cash and investments 2,717,114
Cash and investments, Statement of Net Position 9,363,210
Cash and investments, Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 103,299

Total Cash and Investments $ 9,466,509

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2016, consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 450
Deposits with financial institutions 30,391
Investments 9,435,668

Total Cash and Investments $ 9,466,509

A. Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s
Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the District by
the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more
restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government
Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions
of debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California
Government Code or the District’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum  Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio  in One Issuer
Local Agency Investment Fund
(LAIF) N/A None $50 million
Certificates of Deposit 5 Years None None
Money Market Funds (must be
Comprised of eligible securities
Permitted under this policy) N/A None None

24



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 2: Cash and Investments — continued

B.

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the
debt agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government
Code or the District’s investment policy. The table below identifies the investment
types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also identifies
certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk,
and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer
Money Market Funds N/A None None

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment,
the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to
market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the District’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity
(in Months)
12 Months
Investment Type or Less
State Investment Pool (LAIF) $ 6,890,612
Certificates of Deposit 200,000
Money Market Funds 2,316,785
Held by Debt Trustees:
Money Market Funds 28,271
$ 9,435,668

25



Note 2:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Cash and Investments — continued

C. Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk — continued

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a
rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year
end for each investment type.

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Minimum
Legal
Investment Type Amount Rating AAA Not rated
State Investment Pool (LAIF) $ 6,890,612 N/A § $ 6,890,612
Certificates of Deposit 200,000 N/A 200,000
Money Market Funds 2,316,785 N/A 2,316,785
Held by Debt Trustees:
Money Market Funds 28,271 N/A 28,271
$ 9,435,668 $ 28271 $ 9,407,397

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the District contains limitations on the amount that can be
invested in any one issuer. Only investments with LAIF and the Money Market Funds
exceed 5% or more of total District investments. The Money Market Funds are
collateralized for the amount over the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation amount
or backed by United States obligations.

26



Note 2:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Cash and Investments - continued

E.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or
will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not
be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the District’s
investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the
exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following
provision for deposits; The California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging
securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state
law (unless so waived by the government unit). The fair value of the pledged securities
in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure District
deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2016, $2,066,785 of the District’s deposits and investments with
financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance limits were held in
collateralized accounts.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
that is regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the
Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the District’s investment in this
pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the
District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF
portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis.

27



Note 2:

Note 3:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016
Cash and Investments - continued
F. Investment in State Investment Pool - continued

Restricted cash and investments are identified by use as follows at June 30, 2016:

Waste
Water Disposal Total
Debt Service:
Kelsey South $ 224546 $ $ 2245546
Pilot Hill South 49,746 49,746
Kelsey North 123,660 123,660
State Revolving Fund 54,058 54,058
Total Debt Service
Cash and Investments 452,010 452,010
New Facilities:
Capital Facility Charges 1,641,898 1,641,898
Water Development 398,048 398,048
Community Disposal System
Replacement and Expansion 225,158 225,158
Total New Facilities Cash and
Investments 2,039,946 225,158 2,236,158
Total Restricted Cash and
Investments $ 2,491,956 $ 225,158 $ 2,717,114

Assessments Receivable and Long-Term Receivable

Assessments receivable to the District are construction obligations of the benefited property
owners of the Kelsey North, Kelsey South, Pilot Hill North, Pilot Hill South, and Stewart
Mine Water Assessment Districts. El Dorado County collects the special assessments semi-
annually in order to pay the related projects’ Department of Water Resources or United
States Department of Agriculture construction debts as they mature. The assessments
receivable balances at June 30, 2016, were as follows:

Current Non-Current Total

Water Restricted Assessments Receivable $ 55,616 $ 221,898 $ 277,514
Fiduciary Assessments Receivable 5,063 158,464 163,527
Total Assessments Receivable $ 60,679 $ 380,362 $ 441,041

28



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 4: Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost when purchased. Donated capital assets are
recorded at fair value at the date of donation. Capital assets are depreciated over estimated
useful lives ranging from one hundred years (Stumpy Meadows Dam) to three years (small
office equipment) using the straight-line method. Capital assets at June 30, 2016, consisted
of the following:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016
Nondepreciable Capital Assets:
Land and land right $ 770,975 $ $ $ 770,975
Construction in progress 941,748 145,405 40,670 1,046,483
Total nondepreciable capital assets 1,712,723 145,405 40,670 1,817,458
Depreciable Capital Assets:
General plant equipment and facilities 1,353,790 84,891 165,612 1,273,069
Water treatment 5,612,185 2,175 12,519 5,601,841
Transmission and distribution 13,445,211 99,728 242,464 13,302,475
Auburn Lake Trails septic facilities 847,372 232 847,140
Source of supply 6,758,452 40,670 14,726 6,784,396
Total depreciable capital assets 28,017,010 227,464 435,553 27,808,921
Less: accumulated depreciation (16,975,572) (816,291) (435,553) (17,356,310)
Net depreciable capital assets 11,041,438 (588,827) 10,456,611
Net capital assets $ 12,754,161 $ (443,422) § 40,670 $ 12,270,069

Depreciation Allocations

Depreciation expense was charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the
related assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program was as follows:

Business-type Activities:

Water $ 788.421
Wastewater Disposal 27,870
Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities $ 816,291

29



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note5: Long-Term Debt

A.

Compensated Absences

District employees accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits which can be
converted to cash at termination of employment. It is estimated that up to two weeks
per employee might be liquidated with expendable currently available financial
resources in the next year. These vested benefits are reported as part of the
noncurrent liabilities on the Statement of Net Position and totaled $70,602 at June 30,
2016. It is anticipated that $35,195 of these benefits will be used during the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2017.

Notes Payable
Balance
June 30, 2016
Department of Water Resources
Three long-term contracts have been entered into with the State
of California Department of Water Resources (DWR) to finance
the construction of various water projects.

The Kelsey North Water Assessment District 1989-1 contract of
$630,000 is to be repaid by seventy semi-annual payments of
$15,398. These payments, due April 1 and October 1, beginning
April of 1993 and ending October 1, 2027, include interest on the
outstanding note balance at 3.3712%. Payments are made from
assessments collected from the Assessment District. $ 291,576

The Kelsey South Water Assessment District 1989-4 contract of
$666,750 is to be repaid by sixty semi-annual payments of
$17,836. These payments, due April 1 and October 1, beginning
April of 1993 and ending October 1, 2022, includes interest on
the outstanding note balance at 3.41%. Payments are made from
assessments collected from the Assessment District. 206,409

The Walton Lake Water Treatment Plant Filter Replacement
contract of $400,511 is to be repaid by forty semi-annual
payments of $12,529. These payments, due April 1 and
October 1, beginning October of 2010 and ending April 1, 2030,
include interest on the outstanding note balance at 2.2836%. 298,812

Total Department of Water Resources Notes Payable 796,797

United States Bureau of Reclamation

A non-interest bearing contract was entered into with the U.S.

bureau of Reclamation in 1977 to construct the Otter Creek

Project. Annual principal payments of $4,538 are due through

January 1, 2018. 9,077

Total Notes Payable $ 805.874

30



Note 5:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Long-Term Debt — continued

B. Notes Payable - continued

Future minimum debt service requirements for notes payable are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 72929 % 23,134 § 96,063
2018 75,029 21,034 96,063
2019 72,692 18,833 91,525
2020 74,942 16,583 91,525
2021 717,327 14,198 91,525

2022-2026 293,006 39,767 332,773
2027-2031 139,948 6,476 146,424

$ 805,874 § 140,025 § 945,899

Capital Leases

On November 27, 2006, the District entered into a long-term capital lease agreement
with Verizon for the purpose of constructing a permanent cell tower. The first ten
years of uncollected lease payments represent the cost of constructing the tower,
which is owned by the District. If the lease is terminated within the first ten years, the
District will owe Verizon the remaining construction cost. The first ten year period
commenced November 1, 2008. The capital lease totaled $155,731 based on
discounting at 3% the monthly lease amount of $1,500. The capital lease liability is
being retired using a 3% interest rate as well. The balance of the capital lease at
June 30, 2016, was $23,506.

On May 22, 2016, the district entered into a long-term capital lease agreement with
Santander Financing for a 2016 Ram 5500 truck costing $54,406. The payments are
$1,231 per month including interest at 4.1% for 48 months. The balance of the lease
at June 30, 2016, was $51,261. The accumulated depreciation and related depreciation
expense on the truck for the year ended June 30, 2016 was $2,720.

Future minimum debt service requirements for capital leases are as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 $ 29357 $ 2,183 § 31,540
2018 19,366 1,404 20,770
2019 13,963 808 14,771
2020 12,081 228 12,309

$ 74,767 $ 4,623 $ 79,390

31



Note 5:

Note 6:

Note 7:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Long-Term Debt — continued
D. Change in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, was as follows:
Due
Within
Balance Balance One
July 1,2015 _ Additions Repayments June 30, 2016 Year

Notes payable $ 876,667 $ $ (70,793) $ 805,874 $ 72,929
Post-employment benefits 417,018 135,841 (57,659) 495,200
Capital lease 40,540 54,406 (20,179) 74,767 29,357
Compensated absences 51,505 19,097 70,602 35,195
Net pension liability 4,014,865 773,865 4,788,730

Total $ 5,400,595 $ 983,209 $ (148,631) $ 6,235,173 $ 137,481

Agency: Special Assessment Debt

The District acts as an agent for the Stewart Mine Road Water Assessment District 98-1
Bonds, issued on August 24, 1999. This debt was not included in the District’s accounting
records because the District had no obligation for the payment of these bonds other than in
a fiduciary capacity. The principal amount outstanding at June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015,
was $189,204 and $194,270, respectively.

Construction relating to various improvement districts has been financed in part by
assessment of benefited property owners in the form of special assessment bonds
authorized under the Improvement Bond Act of 1915. Bonds in the amount of $774,002
have been issued for the benefit of Greenwood, Cool-Cherry Acres, Spanish Dry Diggins,
and Line Extensions 77-5 water improvement districts. These bonds were originally issued
through Farmers Home Administration, later transferred to General Electric Capital
Corporation and subsequently acquired by CapMark. During 2009 CapMark was acquired
by Berkadia. The principal amount outstanding at June 30, 2016, and June 30, 2015 was
$7,000 and $34,000, respectively.

On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (O.S.W.D.Z.)

During the early part of 1984, it became apparent that a proposed sewer assessment district
was not going to be approved and that the assimilation alternative of combining certain lots
in the Auburn Lake Trails (A.L.T.) subdivision was a possibility. By letter dated April 24,
1984, Trans America Development Corporation (TADCO) and A.L.T. property owners
Jointly requested the formation of an on-site wastewater disposal zone which would be
monitored by the District. The O.S.W.D.Z. was formed pursuant to the authority granted
under Sections 6950 et seq. of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California and
became operative by board resolution on March 19, 1985. The effective date for accounting
for revenues and expenses was April 1, 1985.

32



Note 7:

Note 8:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

On-Site Wastewater Disposal Zone (O.S.W.D.Z.) - continued

The purpose of the O.S.W.D.Z. is to protect the ground and surface water within the
Disposal Zone boundaries in compliance with Regional Water Quality Control Board
requirements. The District’s responsibility is to design and inspect new on-site disposal
systems and to monitor the surface and ground water quality and system performance of
existing systems.

The O.S.W.D.Z. assessment revenues charged will be restricted to pay the operating costs
of the O.S.W.D.Z. No unrestricted District funds can be used to pay expenses of the
O.S.WD.Z.

Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the O.S.W.D.Z. Capital Expenditure
Reserve was established. The O.S.W.D.Z. Capital Expenditure Reserve fund has had little
activity over the years. The fund was inactivated May 13, 2008.

In addition to the O.S.W.D.Z., the District, by contract, has taken over operation of the
Community Disposal System (C.D.S.) of 139 lots within the A.L.T. subdivision. These
property owners pay additional assessments for operation and maintenance of the C.D.S.
The C.D.S. Expansion Benefit Reserve was established July 1, 2000, and currently receives
annual transfers in an effort to achieve the reserve level approved by the District in
May 2005.

Restricted Benefit Charges

This non-operating revenue is comprised of various benefit charges and interest earned on
the corresponding deposits. The implementation of the Capital Facility Charges on
July 1, 2008, replaced the previous treatment plant, pipeline, and storage benefit charges.
Pursuant to District ordinance, this revenue is restricted in special accounts which are to be
used exclusively as follows:

Water development charge funds: To develop alternate sources of raw water to meet
long-term District requirements.

Capital Facility Charge Fund: For maintenance and/or improvements of the treatment
plants, pipeline facilities, and storage facilities.

0.S.W.D.Z./C.D.S. replacement and expansion benefit charge funds: For maintenance,
improvement, and/or expansion of the community disposal system as well as
facilitating improvements in the O.S.W.D.Z.

33



Note 9:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Net Position

Net Position is the excess of all the District’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of
fund. Net position is divided into three captions under GASB Statement No. 63. These
captions apply only to net position, which are determined only at the government-wide

level, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds (trust funds only), and are described below.

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Investment in capital assets describes the portion of net position which is represented by the
current net book value of the District’s capital assets, less the outstanding balance of any
debt issued to finance these assets.

Net Position Restrictions

Restricted net position consists of constraints placed on net position use through external
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grants, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments, or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. Net position restricted for new facilities represent the net assets accumulated
from restricted benefit charges imposed by District ordinances for the maintenance and
expansion of facilities. Net position restricted for debt service is required by the debt
agreements.

Unrestricted Net Position

The term “unrestricted” describes the portion of net position which is not restricted as to
use.

The Board has designated portions of the unrestricted net position for specific operating
purposes in an effort to provide for the prudent operations of the District.

Retiree: To provide for the estimated future retiree health insurance benefits of existing
retirees and current employees who have bargained for the benefit.

Georgetown/Buckeye and Garden Valley: For use in activities specific to the
designated area.

34



Note 9:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2016

Net Position - continued

Unrestricted Net Position - continued

Restricted and unrestricted net position is identified by use as follows as of June 30, 2016:

Restricted Net Position:
New Facilities:
Water Development
Capital Facility Charges
C.D.S. Replacement
C.D.S. Expansion
Total New Facilities Net Position

Debt Service:
Kelsey North
Kelsey South
Pilot Hill South
Total Debt Service Net Position

Total Restricted Net Position

Unrestricted Net Position:
Unrestricted Designated Net Position:
Retiree
Stumpy Meadows Emergency Reserve
Short-lived Asset Replacement
Capital Reserve
Georgetown/Buckeye
Garden Valley
Hydroelectric
Total Unrestricted Designated
Net Position

Unrestricted Undesignated Net Position

Total Unrestricted Net Position

35

Wastewater

Water Disposal Total
$ 398,544 $ $ 398,544
1,641,897 1,641,897
44,149 44,149
181,290 181,290
2,040,441 225,439 2,265,880
$ 123,660 § $ 123,660
224,546 224,546
49,746 49,746
397,952 397,952
$ 2438393 % 225,439 § 2,663,832
$ 84,579 § $ 84,579
1,033,957 1,033,957
764,357 764,357
1,161,000 1,161,000
3 3
107,462 107,462
557,415 557,415
3,708,773 3,708,773
(2,240,474) 725,466 (1,515,008)
$ 1,468,299 725,466 $ 2,193,765




GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 10: Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWAIJPIA), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a
common risk carrier management and insurance program for member agencies. The
purpose of ACWAIJPIA is to spread the adverse effect of losses among the members and to
purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its expenses. The District pays
annual premiums to the ACWAIJPIA for its general liability, automobile, property, fidelity
coverage, and workers’ compensation. The agreement for formation of the ACWAIJPIA
provides that the ACWAIJPIA will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of $50,000 (property),
$100,000 (fidelity), and $2,000,000 (general, automobile and public officials liability) for
each insured event, except for workers compensation which will reinsure for claims in
excess of $2,000,000. The deductibles for the ACWAIJPIA do not exceed $2,500. Total
premiums paid for fiscal year 2016 were $131,536.

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for employee health and life
insurance. The District also carries commercial insurance for dental and optical insurance
for the employees represented by Stationary Engineers, Local 39 and all new employees
hired after July 11, 2006.

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan
A. General Information about the Pension Plans

Plan Description—All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible
to participate in the Local Government’s Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plans,
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plans administered by the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). Benefit provision under
the Plans are established by State statue and Local Government resolution. CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans
regarding benefit provision, assumptions and membership information that can be
found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided—CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public
employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to
one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total services are eligible
to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduces benefits. All members are eligible for non-
duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: the Basic Death benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional
Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied
as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

36



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan - continued
A. General Information about the Pension Plans — continued
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2016, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

On or after
Prior to June 19, 2006 to On or after

Hire Date June 19, 2006 December 28, 2012 December 28, 2012
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service S years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 55 55 55
Monthly benefits, as a % of

eligible compensation 2.7% 2.7% 2%
Required employee

contribution rates 8% 8% 6.25%
Required employer

contributions rates 12.209%+$369,459 10.298%+$8,664 6.237%

Contributions — Section 20814 ( ¢ ) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement
Law requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined
on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of
a change in the rate. Funding contribution for both Plans are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during
the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
Local Government is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the contributions recognized as part of pension
expense for each Plan were as follows:

Tier | Tier I1 PEPRA
Contributions -- employer $409,464 $62,252 $13,013
Contributions -- employee (paid by employer) 26,216 41,608 13,040

37



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2016, the Local Government reported net pension liabilities for its
proportionate shares of the net pension liability of each Plan as follows:

Proportionate
Share of Net
Pension
Liability
Miscellaneous $4,788,730

The District’s net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability of each of the Plans is measured as
of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation of June 30, 2013, rolled
forward to June 30, 2014, using standard update procedures. The Local Government’s
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Local
Government’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The Local
Government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan as of
June 30, 2015, and 2016, was as follows:

Tier 1 Tier 11 PERPRA
Proportion -- June 30, 2014 $3,823,194 $191,637 $34
Proportion -- June 30, 2015 4,557,232 230,815 683
Change -- Increase
(Decrease) 734,038 39,178 649

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Local Government recognized pension expenses
of $40,008, $53,588, and $13,013 for Tier I, Tier I, and PERPRA. At June 30, 2016,
the Local Government reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent
to measurement date $ 484,729 $
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings of pension plan investments (198,878)
Total $ 484,729 $  (198,878)

38



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions — continued

$484,729 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in
the year ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension
expense as follows:

Measurement Deferred
Period Outflows/(Inflows)
June 30, of Resources
2016 $ (99,765)
2017 (99,765)
2018 (90,663)
2019 91,315

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2015 actuarial
valuations were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2013
Meassurement Date June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3%-14.2% (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (2)
Mortality

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment
(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the
June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the results of a January 2014 actuarial experience
study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further details of the Experience Study can found on
the Cal PERS website.

39



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions — continued

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%
for each Plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the
calculation of a discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most
likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed
discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans run out of assets. Therefore,
the current 7.5 percent discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate
calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate of 7.5 percent will be
applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test
results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be
determined without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent
investment return assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative
expenses. Administrative expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment
return excluding administrative expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this
lower discount rate has resulted in a slightly higher Total Pension Liability and Net
Pension Liability. CalPERS checked the materiality threshold for the difference in
calculation and did not find it to be a material difference.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset
Liability Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in
February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper
stakeholder outreach. For these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount
rate net of administrative expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the
2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in
calculation until such time as we have changed our methodology.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected
compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for
both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each
fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected
return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was
then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down the
nearest one quarter of one percent.

40



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 11: Defined Benefit Pension Plan — continued

C. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions — continued

Discount Rate — continued

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The
rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine
the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative

expenses.
New
Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+®
Global equity 47.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global fixed income 19.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation sensitive 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private equity 12.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real estate 11.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and forestland 3.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.0% (.55%) (1.05%)
100.0%

M An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
@ An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate—The following presents the Local Government’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability for each Plan, calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as
well as what the Local Government’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-

percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Tier1
1% Decrease 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $7,642,796
Current Discount Rate 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $4,557,232
1% Increase 8.65%
Net Pension Liability $2,009,740

Tier 11
6.65%
$387,093

7.65%
$230,815

8.65%
$101,789

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position—Detailed information about each pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

41



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 12: Description of Deferred Compensation Pension Plans

The District has two deferred compensation plans. All amounts of compensation deferred
under the plans, all property and rights purchased with these amounts, and all income
attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid or made available to the
employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the employees and their
beneficiaries. No part of the corpus or income of the trust shall revert to employer or be
used for or diverted for purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of participants and
their beneficiaries.

Only employee contributions were made to the Internal Revenue Code Section 457
deferred compensation plan or the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) defined
contribution money purchase plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The District does
not make contributions on behalf of the employees.

The District is the administrator of the plans. The International City Management
Association (ICMA) Retirement Corporation holds the funds in a trust and also advises as
to legality, files appropriate plan documentation, and reports the quarterly activities to each
plan participant.

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions

A. Plan Description

The District provides certain health insurance benefits to retired employees in
accordance with a memorandum of understanding with International Union of
Operating Engineers, Stationary Engineers, Local No. 39 (Union) and Ordinance
2006-01.

For employees who retire from the District after at least twenty (20) years of service
with the District and who continue health insurance through a District-sponsored
health insurance plan until the age of 65, the District will contribute up to $435 per
month of the health insurance premium for the retiree and/or the retiree’s spouse. At
the age of 65, the retiree is required to enroll in Medicare and the District will
continue to contribute up to $435 per month to a Medicare supplemental plan of the
retiree’s or retiree spouse’s choice.

Effective February 7, 2006, the District extended the benefit described above to all
new employees, as well as the employees who are part of the Union. However, the
District administers a wide variety of other retirement benefits based on the plans in
place when various long-term employees’ retired and in conjunction with Ordinance
2006-01. The benefits for the few unrepresented and management employees as of
April 11, 2006, are dictated by Ordinance 2006-01 as well. None of the previous
arrangements are being extended to any new employees of the District.

42



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions - continued

B. Funding Policy

The District’s policy is to contribute an amount sufficient to pay the estimated
amount required to cover benefits for the existing employees who may retire with 20
years of service. For fiscal year 2015-16, the District paid $102,288 for retiree
benefits and received retiree contributions of $44,629, for a net cost of $57,659.
Currently, there are 16 retirees who are receiving benefits. The District administers
the plan described above and has accumulated $566,606 in cash and investments for
these benefits as of June 30, 2016. However, as the plan is not administered with an
irrevocable trust, this amount cannot be considered for prefunding.

C. Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

As the District administers the non-pension post-employment benefits plan, the
District records the annual retiree benefit expense as the annual premium expense
adjusted to the annual required contribution (ARC). The District’s annual other
postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the ARC, an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement
No. 45°s Alternative Measurement Method allowed for employers with less than 100
plan members (active employees and eligible retirees). The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the District’s annual
OPEB cost for the fiscal year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes
in the District’s net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 135,841
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 135,841
Contributions made (57,659)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 78,182
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of fiscal year 417,018
Net OPEB obligation - end of fiscal year $ 495,200

The District ‘s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to
the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2016, 2015, and 2014 were as follows:

Net
Fiscal Percentage of OPEB
Year Annual Annual OPEB Obligation
Ended OPEB Costs Costs Contribution (Asset)
June 30,2014 $ 161,204 41% $ 340,478
June 30, 2015 135,779 44% 417,018
June 30,2016 135,841 42% 495,200

43



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Note 13: Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions — continued

D.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of June 30, 2015, the most recent Alternate Measurement Method valuation date,
the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$1,533,647, and the actuarial value of assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $1,533,647. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $777,837, and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 197 percent.

The Alternate Measurement Method valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates
of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence
of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
Alternate Measurement Method valuation (valuation) method and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.

In the June 30, 2015, valuation, the attained age cost method was used. The valuation
assumptions included a 0.5 percent investment rate of return, which is the expected
long-term investment returns on plan assets, a projected salary increase assumption
rate of 1.6 percent, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 3.6 percent. There are
no assets designated for the plan as of June 30, 2016. The UAAL is being amortized
over the average number of years remaining to be worked to reach the average
retirement age of the active employees. The remaining amortization period at
June 30, 2016, was eleven years.

44



Note 14:

Note 15:

Note 16:

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2016

Revenue Limitation Imposed by California Proposition 218

Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, regulates the
District’s ability to impose, increase, and extend taxes and assessments. Any new, increase,
or extended taxes and assessments subject to the provisions of Proposition 218 requires the
voters® approval before they can be implemented. Additionally, Proposition 218 provides
that these taxes and assessments are subject to voter initiative process and may be rescinded
in the future years by the voters.

The proposition also provides for a customer protest process when fees for services
benefiting a property are proposed to be increased. The District follows this process when
changes are contemplated for water sales and waste disposal zone charges.

Commitments and Contingencies

The District has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the grantor Agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under the term of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements
will be immaterial.

On November 16, 2012, the El Dorado County Superior Court ruled in favor of the District
in a suit brought against the District challenging the District’s right and obligation to
maintain infrastructure serving the public. The decision upholds the District’s right and
obligation to maintain public infrastructure.

At June 30, 2016, the District had commitments related to the design of the Auburn Lake
Trials Water Treatment Plant and for future maintenance/updates for the mapping of
District facilities in the amounts of $16,638 and $1,857, respectively.

Compliance Order #01-09-04CO-002 was issued by the CA Dept. of Public Health on
February 23, 2004, which required the District to provide surface water treatment that
effectively reduces giardia cysts and viruses by 3 and 4 logs respectively, through filtration
and disinfection at its Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant. Since then, regulations
have added the requirement for the ALTWTP to effectively reduce cryptosporidium cysts
by 2 logs. This later requirement is considered achieved when treatment requirements for
giardia and viruses are being met. As of the date of these financial statements, the District
is not in compliance with the Compliance Order. The ramifications of this non-compliance
have not been determined, but may include possible fines and penalties.

Subsequent Events

In preparing the accompanying financial statement, the District management has reviewed
all known events that have occurred after June 30, 2016, and through January 20, 2017, the
date when this financial statement was available to be issued, for inclusion in the financial
statement and footnotes.

45



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

JUNE 30, 2016

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Annual UAAL asa
Accrued Value of Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Valuation Liability Assets Liability Status Payroll Payroll
Date (@ (b) (2)-(b) (b)/(2) (c) [(@)-(b))/(c)
6/30/2010 $ 1,428,000 - $ 1,428,000 0.0% $ 1,448,117 98.6%
6/30/2011 1,290,449 - 1,290,449 0.0% 1,383,003 93.3%
6/30/2012 1,703,923 - 1,703,923 0.0% 1,586,957 107.4%
6/30/2015 1,533,647 - 1,533,647 0.0% 777,839 197.2%

46



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

Proportion of the net pension liability

Proportionate share of the net pension liability

Covered-employee payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position

Plan's total pension liability

Plan's fiduciary net position as a percentage of its
total pension liability

Valuation date

JUNE 30, 2016

June 30, 2016 *

June 30, 2015 *

0.19760%
$ 4,788,730
$ 1,056,438
453.29%
$ 10,455,902
$ 15,244,632
68.59%
6/30/2014

0.16244%
$ 4,014,865
$ 1,058,538

379.28%
$ 11,715,109
$ 15,729,974

74.48%
6/30/2013

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years of

information was available.

47



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

JUNE 30, 2016
June 30,2016 *  June 30, 2015 *
Contractually required contributions (actuarially determined) $ 484,729 $ 316,796
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contributions (484,729) (316,796)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ -
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,056,438 % 1,058,538
Contribution as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 45.88% 29.93%

* Fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, was the first year of implementation, therefore, only two years of
information was available.

48



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



Salaries and part-time labor
CalPERS benefits
Payroll taxes
Insurance - health and life plans
Insurance - workers' compensation
Accounting and audit fees
Building maintenance and repairs
Director stipends
Engineering fees
Insurance - general
Legal - general
Supplies, rentals and durable goods
Office supplies
Outside services
Retiree benefits
Development and travel
Utilities
Equipment and vehicle maint.
Vehicle operations
Regulatory requirements and fees
Other - County election admin.
Other - County property tax admin.
Other - Memberships
Depreciation
Other

Total

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015)

Transmission Transmission Site
Source of and and Administrative ~ Wastewater
Water Distribution - Water Distribution -  Customer and Disposal Totals
Supply Raw Water  Treatment Treated Water Service Hydroelectric Zone 2016 2015
$125,052 $ 264,657 $157492 § 320,957 $162,346 $ 258323 § 51,187 $1,340,014  $1,160,5%
42,128 68,094 55,038 112,014 24,783 123,862 12,261 438,180 274,285
9,391 15,837 11,897 24,008 6,232 19,329 3,996 90,690 83,644
35,594 52,927 39,898 84,039 19,774 26,581 18,302 277,115 225,725
14,259 18,600 6,214 16,489 3,276 5,470 3,579 67,887 76,130
- - - - - 13,800 1,200 15,000 15,000
. - - 40 - 6,281 - 6,321 4,439
- - - - - 23,200 - 23,200 23,600
25,858 - - - - - - 25,858 40,114
3,356 14,147 11,214 13,359 8,364 7,935 3,542 61,917 58,146
- 36,191 - - - 79,692 9,768 125,651 91,862
13,266 87,148 70,619 113,278 286 6,176 7237 298,010 189,083
- 125 1,276 295 15,769 30,791 2,059 50,315 27,862
21,094 6,012 8,796 7,195 - 123,259 18,298 184,654 158,135
- - - - - 135,841 - 135,841 156,439
- 90 90 670 18 17,703 - 18,571 2,884
2,160 1,380 133,006 10,515 3,239 23,192 10,236 183,728 180,120
4,131 12,110 5,131 8,392 4,895 9,009 3,045 46,713 49,803
4,104 14,658 5,508 10,272 - 530 4,297 39,369 48,778
51,254 1,408 39,834 6,510 656 5,600 34,574 139,836 105,588
- - - - - - - - 6,466
- - - - - 30,646 - 30,646 19,065
- - - 163 - 11,949 - 12,112 16,076
116,486 80,293 173,640 381,924 18,039 18,039 27,870 816,291 672,901
214 428 106 114 385 7,336 215 8,798 20,783
$468347 $ 674,105 $719759 $ 1,110,234 $268,062 $ 984,544 § 211,666 $4,436,717 _$ 3,707,524

49



GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

RESTRICTED PLANT BENEFIT CHARGES AND DISCLOSURES

Balance at June 30, 2015

Activity for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016:

Sources:
Interest earned
Restricted benefit charges

Total sources

Balance at June 30, 2016

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Capital Short-lived Community Comm. Disp.
Water Facility Asset Disp. System  System Expan.
Development Charges Replacement ~ Rep. Benefit Benefit Total

$ 397,001 $1,616675 $ 761,371 § 43976 § 180,582  $2,999,605
1,542 6,120 2,986 172 708 11,528
- 19,103 - - - 19,103
1,542 25,223 2,986 172 708 30,631
$ 398,543 $1.641,898 $ 764,357 § 44,148 § 181,290  $3,030,236

50



O
Memo [ceopup ]
O

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT - SIREN & ASSOCIATES
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #12

DISCUSSION / BACKGROUND

The District has contracted with Siren & Associates since 2006 to assist the District with
regulatory compliance for the Public Water and Onsite Wastewater Management Zone
reporting, and other environmental consulting services.

The District has received a proposal from Siren & Associates to continue to provide the
necessary monitoring and reporting for both the Public Water System and Onsite Wastewater
Management Zone and other duties as provided in the scope of work for the 12-month period of
February 12, 2017, through February 12, 2018. The total cost shall not exceed $34,906. The
funding for this Agreement would come from Fund Account 5080, Outside Service/Consultants.

The Professional Services Agreement is included with this Staff Report as Attachment A.

It should be noted that the Professional Services Agreement template recently provided by Legal
Counsel includes the requirement that the Consultant carry errors and omissions liability
insurance. The Consultant has indicated they will not continue to work with the District if this is
a requirement. Because the nature of this Consultant's work poses minimal risk to the District,
the E&O requirement has been deleted.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends Board approval of a professional services agreement with Siren & Associates
in an amount not to exceed $34,906.






PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered
into this 14th day of February 2017, (the “Effective Date”) by and between the Georgetown Divide
Public Utilities District, a California Public Utilities District (“District”), and Siren & Associates, an
environmental consultant, (“Consultant”). District and Consultant may herein be referred to
individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. There are no other parties to this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. District has determined that consultant services are required to assist the District in
complying with regulatory agencies, drinking water and wastewater monitoring, and reporting
requirements (“Services”); and

B. Consultant has submitted a proposal to District that includes a scope of proposed
consultant services, attached hereto and described more fully in Exhibit A (“Services”).

C. Consultant represents that it is qualified, willing and able to provide the Services to
District, and that it will perform Services according to the rate schedule included in the scope of
proposed consultant services attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Rates”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and covenants set forth below, the
Parties agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1. Recitals. The recitals set forth above (“Recitals”) are true and correct and are hereby
incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by this reference. In the event of any
inconsistency between the Recitals and Sections 1 through 20 of this Agreement, Section 1 through
20 shall prevail.

2. Consulting Services. Consultant agrees, during the term of this Agreement, to perform
the Services for District in connection with regulatory compliance and reporting. Any request for
services in addition to the Services described in Exhibit A will be considered a request for additional
consulting services and not compensated unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing. No subcontract
shall be awarded or an outside consultant engaged by Consultant unless prior written approval is
obtained from District.

3. Compensation. District shall pay Consultant according to the fee schedule set forth in
Exhibit A, as full remuneration for the performance of the Services. Consultant agrees to maintain a
log of time spent in connection with performing the Services. On a monthly basis, Consultant shall
provide District, in reasonable and understandable detail, a description of the services rendered
pursuant to the Services and in accordance with the Rates. If the work is satisfactorily completed,
District shall pay such invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt. If District disputes any portion of

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 1 of 8



any invoice, District shall pay the undisputed portion within the time stated above, and at the same time
advise Consultant in writing of the disputed portion.

4. Reimbursement. District shall pay Consultant for reimbursable expenses related to
travel, lodging, conference calls, reproduction and other costs incurred related to Consultant’s
performance of the Services. Such reimbursable costs shall be invoiced and billed to the District on a
monthly basis, provided that in no event shall reimbursable expenses exceed $551.00.

S. Term. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and will continue
in effect until February 12, 2018, unless terminated earlier as provided in Section 6 or 7 below (the
“Teml”),

6. Termination. District may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the Term
(“Termination”), without cause or reason, by notifying Consultant in writing of District’s desire to
terminate this Agreement (the “Termination Notice”). Upon receipt of a Termination Notice,
Consultant shall immediately cease performing the Services. Consultant will be entitled to
compensation, as of the date Consultant receives the Termination Notice, only for Services actually
performed.

7. Termination for Cause. Notwithstanding Section 6 above, this Agreement may be
terminated by District for cause based on the loss or suspension of any licenses, permits or registrations
required for the continued provision of the Services, or Consultant’s malfeasance. Termination of the
Agreement for cause as set forth in this Section shall relieve District from compensating Consultant.

8. Confidential Information. Consultant understands and agrees that, in the performance
of Services under this Agreement or in the contemplation thereof, Consultant may have access to
private or confidential information that may be owned or controlled by District and that such
information may contain proprietary or confidential details, the disclosure of which to third parties may
be damaging to District (“‘Confidential Information”).

Consultant shall not, either during or after the Term, disclose to any third party any Confidential
Information without the prior written consent of District. If District gives Consultant written
authorization to make any such disclosure, Consultant shall do so only within the limits and to the
extent of that authorization. Such authorization does not guarantee that the District will grant any
further disclosure of Confidential Information. Consultant may be directed or advised by the District’s
General Counsel on various matters relating to the performance of the Services on the Project or on
other matters pertaining to the Project, and in such event, Consultant agrees that it will treat all
communications between itself, its employees and its subcontractors as being communications which
are within the attorney-client privilege.

9 Performance by Key Employee. Consultant has represented to District that Rebecca
Siren will be the person primarily responsible for the performance of the Services and all
communications related to the Services. District has entered into this Agreement in reliance on that
representation by Consultant.

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 2 of 8



10.  Property of District. The following will be considered and will remain the property of
District:

A. Documents. All reports, drawings, graphics, working papers and Confidential
Information furnished by District in connection with the Services (“Documents”). Nothing herein shall
be interpreted as prohibiting or limiting District’s right to assign all or some of District’s interests in
the Documents.

B. Data. All data collected by Consultant and produced in connection with the
Services including, but not limited to, drawings, plans, specifications, models, flow diagrams, visual
aids, calculations, and other materials (“Data”). Nothing herein shall be interpreted as prohibiting or
limiting District’s right to assign all or some of District’s interests in the Data.

C. Delivery of Documents and Data. Consultant agrees, at its expense and in a
timely manner, to return to District all Documents and Data upon the conclusion of the Term or in the
event of Termination.

11.  Duties of District. In order to permit Consultant to render the services required
hereunder, District shall, at its expense and in a timely manner:

A. Provide such information as Consultant may reasonably require to undertake or
perform the Services;

B. Promptly review any and all documents and materials submitted to District by
Consultant in order to avoid unreasonable delays in Consultant’s performance of the Services; and

C. Promptly notify Consultant of any fault or defect in the performance of
Consultant’s services hereunder.

12.  Representations of Consultant. District relies upon the following representations by
Consultant in entering into this Agreement:

A. Qualifications. Consultant represents that it is qualified to perform the Services
and that it possesses the necessary licenses, permits and registrations required to perform the Services
or will obtain such licenses or permits prior to the time such licenses or permits are required. Consultant
represents and warrants to District that Consultant shall, at Consultant’s sole cost and expense, keep in
effect or obtain at all times during the Term of this Agreement, any licenses, permits, and registrations
that are legally required for Consultant to practice Consultant's profession at the time the Services are
rendered.

B. Consultant Performance. Consultant represents and warrants that all Services
under this Agreement shall be performed in a professional manner and shall conform to the customs
and standards of practice observed on similar, successfully completed projects by specialists in the
Services to be provided. Consultant shall adhere to accepted professional standards as set forth by
relevant professional associations and shall perform all Services required under this Agreement in a
manner consistent with generally accepted professional customs, procedures and standards for such

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 3 of 8



Services. All work or products completed by Consultant shall be completed using the best practices
available for the profession and shall be free from any defects. Consultant agrees that, if a Service is
not so performed, in addition to all of its obligations under this Agreement and at law, Consultant shall
re-perform or replace unsatisfactory Service at no additional expense to District.

13.  Compliance with Laws and Standards. Consultant shall insure compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, regulations and permits, including but not limited
to federal, state, and county safety and health regulations. Consultant shall perform all work according
to generally accepted standards within the industry. Consultant shall comply with all ordinances, laws,
orders, rules, and regulations, including the administrative policies and guidelines of District pertaining
to the work.

14.  Independent Contractor; Subcontracting. Consultant will employ, at its own
expense, all personnel reasonably necessary to perform the Services. All acts of Consultant, its agents,
officers, employees and all others acting on behalf of Consultant relating to this Agreement will be
performed as independent contractors. Consultant, its agents and employees will represent and conduct
themselves as independent contractors and not as employees of District. Consultant has no authority
to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of District. Except as District may specify in writing,
Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of District in any capacity
whatsoever as an agent. Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this
Agreement to bind District to any obligation whatsoever. Consultant is prohibited from subcontracting
this Agreement or any part of it unless such subcontracting is expressly approved by District in writing.

15.  Insurance. Consultant and all of Consultant’s contractors and subcontractors shall
obtain and maintain insurance of the types and in the amounts described in this paragraph and its
subparagraphs with carriers reasonably satisfactory to District.

A. General Liability Insurance. Consultant shall maintain occurrence version
commercial general liability insurance or an equivalent form with a limit of not less than Two Million
Dollars ($2,000,000) per claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) for each occurrence.

B. Workers> Compensation Insurance. Consultant shall carry workers’
compensation insurance as required by the State of California under the Labor Code. Consultant shall
also carry employer’s liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per
accident, with a One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) policy limit for bodily injury by disease, and a
One Million Dollar ($1,000,000.00) limit for each employee’s bodily injury by disease.

C. Other Insurance Requirements. Within five (5) days of the Effective Date,
Consultant shall provide District with certificates of insurance for all of the policies required under this
Agreement (“Certificates”), excluding the required worker’s compensation insurance. Such
Certificates shall be kept current for the Term of the Agreement and Consultant shall be responsible
for providing updated copies and notifying District if a policy is cancelled, suspended, reduced, or
voided. With the exception of the worker’s compensation insurance, all of the insurance policies
required in this Agreement shall: (a) provide that the policy will not be cancelled, allowed to expire, or
materially reduced in coverage without at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to District of such
cancellation, expiration, or reduction and each policy shall be endorsed to state such; (b) name District,

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 4 of 8



and District’s Agents as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of Services, work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Consultant; products and completed operations of the
Consultant; premises owned, occupied, or used by the Consultant, or automobiles owned, leased, or
hired or borrowed by the Consultant. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of
protection afforded to the District; (c) be primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance
programs covering District or District’s Agents and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
District or District’s Agents shall be in excess of Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute to it;
(d) contain standard separation of insured provisions; and (e) state that any failure to comply with
reporting or other provisions of the policy including breaches of warranties shall not affect the coverage
provided to the District.

16.  Indemnification. Consultant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless District,
its agents, officers, employees and volunteers, against all liability, obligations, claims, loss, and
expense (a) caused or created by Consultant, its subcontractors, or the agents or employees of either,
whether negligent or not, pertaining to or related to acts or omissions of Consultant in connection with
the Services, or (b) arising out of injuries suffered or allegedly suffered by employees of Consultant or
its subcontractors (i) in the course of their employment, (ii) in the performance of work hereunder, or
(iii) upon premises owned or controlled by District. Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify and
hold District and its agents, officers, employees and volunteers harmless is not terminated by any
requirement in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance.

17.  Consequential Damages. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, in
no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based on contract or tort, for any
special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, but not limited to, lost profits or
revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or the Services performed in connection
with this Agreement.

18.  Litigation. In the event that either Party brings an action under this Agreement for the
breach or enforcement hereof, or must incur any collection expenses for any amounts due hereunder
the prevailing Party in such action shall be entitled to its costs including reasonable attorney’s fees,
whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment.

19.  Notices. Any notice or communication required hereunder between District or
Consultant must be in writing, and may be given either personally, by registered or certified mail (return
receipt requested), or by Federal Express, UPS or other similar couriers providing overnight delivery.
If personally delivered, a notice shall be deemed to have been given when delivered to the Party to
whom it is addressed.  Notices given by registered or certified mail shall be deemed to have been
given and received on the first to occur of (a) actual receipt by any of the addressees designated below
as the party to whom notices are to be sent, (b) on the date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by
the courier, or (c) five (5) days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly
addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If given by Federal Express or
similar courier, a notice or communication shall be deemed to have been given and received on the
date delivered as shown on a receipt issued by the courier. Any Party hereto may at any time, by giving
ten (10) days written notice to the other Party hereto, designate any other address in substitution of the
address to which such notice or communication shall be given. Such notices or communications shall

be given to the Parties at the addresses in this paragraph set forth below:
{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 5 of 8



If to District: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
P.O. Box 4240
6425 Main Street
Georgetown, CA 95634
Attention: General Manager

With courtesy copies to: Churchwell White LLP
1414 K Street, 3rd Floor
Sacramento, California 95814
Attention: Barbara A. Brenner, Esq.

If to Consultant: Siren & Associates
P.O. Box 631
Cool, CA 95614
Attention: Rebecca Siren

20. General Provisions.

A. Modification. No alteration, modification, or termination of this Agreement
shall be valid unless made in writing and executed by all Parties.

B. Waiver. The waiver by any Party of a breach of any provision hereof shall be in
writing and shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach hereof
unless specifically stated in writing.

C. Assignment. No Party shall assign, transfer, or otherwise dispose of this
Agreement in whole or in part to any individual, firm, or corporation without the prior written consent
of the other Party. Subject to the forgoing provisions, this Agreement shall be binding upon, and inure
to the benefit of, the respective successors and assigns of the Parties.

D. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of California.

E. Venue. Venue for all legal proceedings shall be in the Superior Court of
California for the County of El Dorado.
F. Partial Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall nevertheless
continue in full force without being impaired or invalidated in any way.

G. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts,
each of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall be deemed a single agreement.

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 6 of 8



H. Severability. If any term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in effect.

I. Audit. District shall have access at all reasonable times to all reports, contract
records, contract documents, contract files, and personnel necessary to audit and verify Consultant’s
charges to District under this Agreement.

J. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between
the Parties as to the subject matter of this Agreement and merges all prior discussions, negotiations,
proposal letters or other promises, whether oral or in writing.

K. Headings Not Controlling. Headings used in this Agreement are for reference
purposes only and shall not be considered in construing this Agreement.

L. Time is of the Essence. Time is of the essence in this Agreement for each
covenant and term of a condition herein.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the last day and date below
written.
DISTRICT: CONSULTANT:
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITIES SIREN & ASSOCIATES, an

DISTRICT, a California Public Utilities District Environmental Consultant

By: By:
Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager Rebecca Siren, Principal

Date: Date:

Approved as to Form:

Barbara A. Brenner, General Counsel

{CW021899.1}
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Georgetown Divide Public Utilities District and Siren & Associates
Page 7 of 8



EXHIBIT A
Services and Rates

SIREN & ASSOCIATES
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANTS

January 30, 2017

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
P.O. Box 4240
Georgetown, CA 95634

Dear Darrell,

In response to your request, I am happy to provide the following scope of services to continue to assist
the District in regulatory compliance and other professional consulting services as needed for the next
12 months from February 12, 2017 to February 12, 2018.

Project 1: Regulatory Compliance Scope of Services:

The Consultant will assist District management in the completion of the following reports and associated
data spreadsheets from February 12, 2017 to February 12, 2018

Public Water: 228 hours (19 hours/month average)

Maintain all associated spreadsheets used in completion of the EAR, CCR, UWMP and ASDR.
Complete the State Electronic Annual Report (EAR usually due May 1) (estimated at 40 hours)
Review the State’s 2015 Guidance Document and complete the Consumer Confidence Report (CCR
due July 1, 2016) for distribution by the District. (Estimated at 32 hours)

Assist staff as necessary to complete the Annual Supply Demand Report (usually due to the County
in March/April)

Assist staff in the preparation of the required Annual Water Audit

Assist staff as necessary to complete the State mandated monthly reports

nsite Wastewater Zone: 120 hours (10 hours/per month average)
Imput data from monthly Zone report and monitoring data into the fourteen (14) spreadsheets
required for Annual Zone report
Quarterly CRWQCB Zone reports (February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1)
Quarterly CRWQCB Groundwater Report- complete the six spreadsheets for inclusion in the report
and review H&K report (February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1)
Annual Zone Report (due February 1, 2017)
Review of onsite septic testing and designs required for County building permit.

VV VV VO VV VY VYVVV

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT EXHIBIT A
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District and Siren & Associates Page 1 of 2



Costs for Professional Consulting Services:

Services will be billed on a time and material basis. My hourly rate is $105.00 per hour plus mileage at
$0.575/mile or the Federal rate, whichever is higher. The estimated not to exceed cost is $34,440 in
labor and $138 in mileage (estimated at two office visits per month) for a total of $34,906.

Timeline:
Consulting services can be initiated immediately as directed by District management.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please feel free to contact me at 530-305-7399. I
look forward to my continuing working relationship with the District.

Respectively submitted,
Rebecca Siren

Rebecca Siren
Registered Environmental Health Specialist #4303

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT EXHIBIT A
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District and Siren & Associates Page 2 of 2



O
Memo [ coPup ]
O

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

RE: CalPERS NOTIFICATION REGARDING DISCOUNT RATE CHANGE

Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #13

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND:

The District is in receipt of a Circular Letter from the CalPERS to inform of recent changes to the
CalPERS discount rate assumption and the impact these changes are expected to have on
required employer and PEPRA member contributions. The Letter is included with this report as
Attachment A.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
It is Staff's recommendation that the Board acknowledge receipt of this notification and direct

Staff to provide the Board with analysis of this discount rate change, as well as financial impacts
to the District.






GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #13, ATTACHMENT A

Aw////,, CalPERS Actuarial

Circular Letter

California Public Employees’ Retirement System

P.O. Box 942715

Sacramento, CA 94229-2715

(888) CalPERS (or 888-225-7377)

TTY: (877) 249-7442 Distribution: Vi
www.calpers.ca.gov

To: All Public Agency Employers
Subject: Discount Rate Change

The purpose of this Circular Letter is to inform you of recent changes to the CalPERS discount
rate assumption and the impact these changes are expected to have on required employer and
PEPRA member contributions. This Circular Letter will assist you in calculating projected pension
cost increases in future years. The June 30, 2016, annual valuations will provide updated
projections of expected future year pension contributions. These reports will be available this
summer.

At the December 21, 2016, meeting, the CalPERS Board of Administration approved lowering the
CalPERS discount rate assumption, the long-term rate of return, from 7.50 percent to 7.00
percent over the next three years. This will increase public agency employer contribution costs
beginning in Fiscal Year 2018-19.

The phase-in of the discount rate change approved by the Board for the next three Fiscal Years
is as follows:

Fiscal Year
Valuation Date for Required Contribution Discount Rate
June 30, 2016 2018-19 7.375%
June 30, 2017 2019-20 7.25%
June 30, 2018 2020-21 7.00%

Lowering the discount rate means plans will see increases in both the normal costs (the cost of
pension benefits accruing in one year for active members) and the accrued liabilities. These
increases will result in higher required employer contributions.

In addition, active members hired after January 1, 2013, under the Public Employees' Pension
Reform Act (PEPRA) may also see their contribution rates rise.



Circular Letter No.: 200-XXX-17
January 13, 2017

The benefits of reducing the discount rate include:
* Strengthening long-term sustainability of the fund
* Reducing negative cash flows; additional contributions will help to offset the cost to pay
pensions
* Reducing the long-term probability of funded ratios falling below undesirable levels
* Improving the likelihood of CalPERS investments earning our assumed rate of return
* Reducing the risk of contribution increases in the future from volatile investment markets

Results

Employer contribution increases as a result of the discount rate changes are estimated below by
Normal Cost and required Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) payment. The Total Employer
Contribution is the sum of the Normal Cost Rate applied to reported payroll plus the Unfunded
Accrued Liability payment. The Normal Cost portion of the Employer Contribution is expected to
increase by the listed percentages of payroll. Increases to the UAL payments are provided as
relative increases to be applied to the projected UAL payments in the June 30, 2015, valuation
report.

Normal Cost UAL Payments
Fiscal Year Misc. Safety Misc. Safety
Valuation Date Impact Plans Plans Plans Plans
6/30/2016 2018-19 0.25% - 0.75% 0.5% - 1.25% 2% - 3% 2%-3%
6/30/2017 2019-20 0.5%-1.5% 1.0% - 2.5% 4% - 6% 4% - 6%
6/30/2018 2020-21 1.0% - 3.0% 2.0% - 5.0% 10% - 15% 10% - 15%
6/30/2019 2021-22 1.0% - 3.0% 2.0% - 5.0% 15% - 20% 15% - 20%
6/30/2020 2022-23 1.0% - 3.0% 2.0% - 5.0% 20% - 25% 20% - 25%
6/30/2021 2023-24 1.0% - 3.0% 2.0% - 5.0% 25% - 30% 25% - 30%
6/30/2022 2024-25 1.0% - 3.0% 2.0% - 5.0% 30% - 40% 30% - 40%

The changes to the Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL) due to changes of actuarial assumptions are
amortized over a fixed 20-year period with a 5-year ramp up at the beginning and a 5-year ramp
down at the end of the amortization period. The 5-year ramp up means that the payments in the
first four years of the amortization schedule are 20 percent, 40 percent, 60 percent and 80
percent of the ultimate payment, which begins in year five. The 5-year ramp down means that
the reverse is true and the payments in the final four years are ramped down by the above
percentages. A new ramp is established with each change to the discount rate. There will be
three ramps established in the first three years. As a result of the 5-year ramp up and effective
date of the increase, it will be seven years until the full impact of the discount rate change is
completely phased in. The shaded rows above are the expected increases beyond the five year
projection quoted in your June 30, 2015, valuation report.

Page 2 of 3



Circular Letter No.: 200-XXX-17
January 13, 2017

To illustrate how this table can be used as a guide to include the change in the discount rate in
the calculation of pension contributions, a Miscellaneous plan with a current normal cost of 15
percent of payroll can expect an increase to 15.25 percent to 15.75 percent of payroll in the first
year (Fiscal Year 2018-19), and 16 percent to 18 percent in the fifth year (Fiscal Year 2022-23).
For the UAL payment, a plan with a projected payment of $500,000 in Fiscal Year 2018-19 and
$600,000 in Fiscal Year 2022-23 can expect the revised payment to be $510,000 - $515,000
($500,000%2.00%/$500,000x3.00%) for Fiscal Year 2018-19, and $720,000 - $750,000
(5$600,000%x20%/$600,000x25%) for Fiscal Year 2022-23. These estimated increases incorporate
both the impact of the discount rate change and the ramp up.

Please keep in mind the above table is a tool for you to calculate broad estimates and should only
be used as a general guide. The annual valuation report that will be released this summer will
provide updated projections for your specific plan. If you have any questions about the
information provided or how to apply it to your current valuations, please call our CalPERS
Customer Contact Center at 888 CalPERS (or 888-225-7377) and ask for your plan actuary.

Scott Terando,
Chief Actuary

Page 3 0of 3



Memo

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager

DATE: February 9, 2017

RE: BOARD MEMBER TRAINING ON BEST PRACTICES IN PENSION AND

BENEFITS ADMINISTRATION
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #14

DISCUSSION / BACKGROUND

Director Wadle requested the Board’s approval of his attendance at the Pension and Benefit
Administration Best Practices training offered by the Government Finance Officers Association,
on March 21-22, 2017, in Reno, Nevada.

Attachment A of this report provides an outline of the course. Director Wadle pointed out the
relevance of this training given the pension challenges the District faces. Office Manager Diane
Schroeder is also interested in this training.

Staff has learned that this class has been cancelled.
RECOMMENDATION
It is Staff's recommendation that the Board direct Staff to identify similar training opportunities

on the subject of Pension and Benefit Administration for interested Board Members and Staff to
attend.



G Government Finance Officers Association

-

Pension and Benefit Administration Best Practices

Developing a Policy for Retirement Plan Design Options
What the plan is intended to do
Overview: the types of retirement plans
Overview: risk
Principal features of defined benefit plans
Principal features of defined contribution plans
Learn what a policy statement should include to guide the plan’s
on-going plan design decisions
Responsible Management and Design Practices for DB Plans

e Regular and sufficient contributions

¢ Spiking, retroactive benefits increases, deferred retirement
2 hours option plans, and ad hoc COLAs

e Realistic investment assumptions

¢ Contributory versus non-contributory plans

e Prior service credits
Design Elements of DB Plans

1.5’hours

e Key plan design considerations
1.5 hour e Funding considerations
e Board governance.
e Risk management
e The role of legal counsel and consultants
More DB Administrative Elements
1 hour e  Preparing an effective summary plan description
e  Procuring actuarial services
e Developing a policy for retirement plan design options
Defined Contribution Plans
1 hour e  Monitoring and disclosing fees
e Participant education
Hybrid Plans
1 hour ¢ Plan structures

e  Hybrids and pension sustainabilit

© 2016 by the Government Finance Officers Association



OPEB and Health-Care Plans

OPEB Governance and Administration
¢ Fiduciary duties

30 minutes ¢ Roles and responsibilities
¢  Creating a clear, well documented structure
® Quantifying your organization’s OPEB exposure
Establishing and Administering an OPEB Trust
1 hour ®  Creating a qualified trust fund to prefund OPER
e IRS and GASB issues
e Single versus multiple employer trusts
The Affordable Care Act
e Overview
¢ Compliance policy and monitoring
*  What you need to know right now
2 hours * How to adapt your strategy to comply and prosper
*  Consider cost-containment measures
*  Working with other departments to ensure that the long-term
strategic design is taken into consideration during labor
negotiations
Strategic Health Plan Design
e The plan’s purpose
¢  Cost objectives
1 hour *  Measuring the cost drivers and health risk factors of plan
participants
* How OPEB affects the costs and sustainability of the overall
health-care benefit package
Health-Care Cost Containment
e  Self-funded versus fully funded
1.5 hours ¢ Your employees’ needs
*  Specific cost-containment strategies
¢ Influencing consumer decisions
Wellness Plan ROI
1 hour e The ACA and Wellness
¢ What works and what doesn’t
e Legal issues
Communicating Health-Care Benefits to Employees and Retirees
 Strategies for educating elected officials, employees, retirees,
labor groups, and the public
1 hour e Explaining changes

*  Sharing information on the impact of rising health-care costs
* Creating an atmosphere of responsible health-care
consumerism




TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: WATER RIGHTS

Board Meeting of February 14, 2017, Agenda Item #15

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

During the meeting of January 10, 2017, the Board directed Staff to include an item relating to

Water Rights on this month’s agenda for discussion.

The following table is a summary of the current water rights, as provided by the Water Board,
as of September 2015. The water rights of greatest significance are those within the Pilot
Creek watershed that feed Stumpy Meadows Reservoir together with that section of Pilot
Creek, approximately two miles in length, between the dam and the diversion structure. Staff
is prepared to provide additional information on each of these rights during the course of the

meeting.

A005644A 215 Pilot Creek

A005644A 216 Pilot Creek
A016212 289 Branch of Third Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 290 Branch of Third Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 291 Branch of Third Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 292 Branch of Third Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 11946 Deep Canyon
A016212 17516 Bacon Canyon
A016212 17517 UNXX (2)
A016212 17518 UNXX
A016212 17519 UNXX
A016212 17520 UNXX
A016212 23140 Pilot Creek
A016212 28905 Branch of Second Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 28906 Branch of Second Canyon Otter Creek
A016212 34732 Mutton Canyon
A01688 17593 Onion Creek
A027174 21289 Pilot Creek




Board Meeting of February 14, 2017 Page 2
AGENDA ITEM #15

Documents on file with the District relating to this topic are significant. A presentation, relating
to the History of Water Rights and Pre-1914 Entitlements, was made at the regular board
meeting of August 2015. A copy of the same is attached for reference.

Due to the volume of materials on file and the overall importance of Water Rights, this topic
might be best served under a workshop. The workshop would provide a venue for open
discussion amongst Staff, the Board and members of the Public on this topic.

RECOMMENDATION

It is Staff’'s recommendation that the Board direct Staff to schedule a Workshop centered around
the topic of Water Rights.



Sroz Sny
[IEM TI°PPUSM\

SyuauwrdInuy viéi-aig

pue

SITULIDJ SIYSTY 19IBAA JO AIOISTH




T PsIg AN d1qnd ap1arg umozaioan Liot/L)T

(oroz 1) du] ‘SunNsuU0) NYODT WOIJ [TeId(] PIYSIaIep| [euoISdy =
sjuawe[Inuy Y161-31d — T 9[qe, «
SNuLId pue suonedijddy s1ysny 121ep\ ANdAD - T9[qRL <«
(L661 1dag) 1roday yoajoapAY eriarg wioly 3dIdxy s
dmpeg O
SSuI(I] a3e3S JO JUdWUSISSY [
103(01d smopedj Adwnig
uonewiod ANddd O
sjuauwdpInuy Y161-a1d O

VAN3IDV
SIUBWIUT YTET-9.d pue sHwIdd s1ysiy J91ep andao




PLsI(] Annn d1qnd apialq umo3a8iosn Lioz/lfz

Abpo3 fo suonpiado gNda» 1uaLind ay3 o7 Juauiniad a.p Yyoym 333D uoup
pup SaLIDINGLL] UIDJL3D 931D 10]1d 07 s1ybui ¥161-a4d pjay Aupdwio)) 1a3DAq UMO3Iab.102D)

sasodind >nsawop 10j
Pasn os[e ‘9pIAL(J um03a3103n) a3y} uore axmymouSe pue Sururw 10§ pasn Ajuewnid 19ep) -

(TI0AI9S3I B 30U pUR UIl} 3] 18 mOopeaw &) smopesy Adunig
Ul $ }10Mpesy P[o 3Y3 Je 31 SUNISAIP-21 pue aFeurel(] Y331 10[IJ OJUI IIATY UODIGIY
104 YInog wioyy 31 SUILISAIP ‘9] uo0T woly 191em SurSuniq waishs souefaauod y »

(€g8r ur pato[duwiod) I e UOOT Je II0AIISII AFeIoIS Y -

Surpnpur ‘ap1al(q umo1agioan 3y} 03 193eM
3urpraoxd 03 pajepi sansadoxd pue saniey 01 s3I} pj3Y pue pawrep Auedwod ay], O

‘SpaysIajem Jourw IYJ0 [BIDAIS PUP SUIBIIIS ISOY) JO SISJEM 03 SN
pue uonismboe Aq s1g8u1 F161-91d pawred Aueduio)) 11ep| UM03I3EI0DE) 9] JO SIPUMO) =

¢$gr1 sp A}upa sp paysiqpisa sem 191em SIY) Jo suontod Joasn .

ISATY UBDLIDWY 3Y] JO IO
S[PPIA 243 03 ArenqLi} e SI WInj ul YoIym I9ARY UodIqNy Y3 Jo AreInqiy e s139a1) 10[id =

35T 10[J pU® IoATy UODIqIY (IN0g 97 JO SI91EM
OF SIYSITUTeYIS) Pay s10ssadadpaid snosownu pue Aueduro) 131ep\ UM0331095) 3y [, [

Y31y 1918 ANddD-34d
SJUSWIIHIUT HTET-34d Pue s}wIad sy 191ep dNddO




v PsIg A1 d11qng apiaIg umolagioan LiotjLjT

6561 ur NdaD Aq paxmboe syusurapInUL pue san e

BIIR IDTAIDS ) UT 3)IS POOMUIIIL) SB [[9M S ‘PIYSIIILM ML) 10[Id
ur xeak 1ad 3395 - 210® 000¢07 Jo SIYT1a 3FeI101S pUE SPD 0S JO IYSLI UOTSISAI( 10y1sanbay <«

(197eM JO S9DINOS Io(eUr SIDLNSIP 3D
pue Auedwo)) 1a1ep| UM0398109D) 33e U007 01 Jusuniad syySir aferors PU® UOISISAL(] <«

SPIAIP 911 10§ A[ddns 13yem arminy e 193701d pue 10§ apraoxd 03 paxmbax siySry <

9zITeurroj 03 gi61 ur payy 1zber uonediddy .
9b61 ur uoneurIoy ANdAdO O

uoieuwno4 1013s1g ANjiiN 21jgnd apIAIg umola3i099
SJUBW3IIIUT YTET-34d pue Sslwiad S1ysiy 191ep dNdao




LIS Armn o1qnd apiarg umoiadioan Lioz/LjT

A1ddns 1a7em juswadejdar sanjeuIa)fe 33 10§ SIYSLI UOISIDAIP
Aressadau [euonippe Sunsanbai zigry sty and@o ‘uonrenofau jo pouad a3 Suung O

oD
10]1d UO SUOIS.LaAIp puD 410A.13531 3Y] 0] pajpja.l uoydyddp ay3 fo uon.iod sdaay Inq NIAS JO 10Ae)
ul 1zhzry 19pun spaysiajem uodiqny 2ddn a1 ut s3ySur 10§ uonesyjdde smerpyim qndgo -

anda» Aq pasodoxd
TIOAI9531 J00J 3Id® 000°‘0T Furpnidul 31 1071 ut A[ddns 131em [euonippe Aressadau a3

Surrmboe ur 3sisse 03 uondnnsuod pue Suruued 10§ dueysisse [epueuly sapaoird NS -

JuswRaISe qNdAD Pue ANINS Jo SIYSIYSIH O
reber uonediddy qndao yam spIjuo)  «
I9ATY uodIqmy 3y} woy Aiddns 1o1em 21NNy 9 pue e UCOT SIPNPU] =

109(01g
ANIAS "13[01d d11393[201pAH I9ATy uedLUry 1addp) 3y Jo UOPNIISUOD Y} 10§ UISeq
uodiqny 1addn ay3 ur senoey pue s3ySur armboe 03 axrsap sassaxdxa (NS ‘0S6T Ul O

109f0ud smopea\ Adwnis ay|
SIUBWIB|MIUT HyTET-24d pue sHwIdd sIysiy 191ep\ ANdAdD




9 IS Arnn o1qng ap1arg umoladioan Lioz/LjT
I3[qe], Ul pI3sI| se 93eI10)s pue UOISIIAIP 1P ANIAD s2r0xddy

gotiig pue ‘Sotug ‘Votrd syrurrod ur sjnsay -«
931D 10[Id PUE I9ARY UO0DIGMY] Y} UT SINI[IIL] I91eM JO 3FURYIXD 3() 01 JUIWIAITY  »
ANINS Pue qNddo 03 1SaI21UI JO SI191em 33 SuIpnour pays
I91BM I9ATY UBDLIIUIY 9Y) JO SI9JeM SNOLIPA Y} PAILIO[[Y (8561 ‘QT Yorepy ) €6 oIS M

ITOAIDSY SMOpeIA Adurnig
ur 53LI03S WIBAIIS JJO 10J PILISAIP 3q 03 SeM I9TeM }IIID) UOTU() Y3 JO SUIOS dUIS pasnbal uoneoiddy <«

(UOISISAIP 12311Ip 10§ SyuduIRRnUY Y161
— 914 P[PY OYMm s1055309paird 1193 pey SB) Y93I UOTU() WO I3JeM LISAIP O} §89OTV SI[Ij IDLISI(] =

P21oNISU0D ‘UNPUO)) OPRIO(] [4 Y3 ‘UISISAS 2DURAIAUOD MIN] =

pauopueqe [[IH [puun], pue smopedjA Adunig usamiaq Yol SpIAI] umolaSIoan p|O =

931D 10[d WIOLJ UOISISAIPAI JI0J JIOAIISIY SMOPEIA AdUInig WOl pases[a1 3q 03 1Jepy =
193(01d pasmay M

TIOAIRSIY SMOPEIJ Adwnig Je 3991 J0[Iq WOy SUOISIDAIP
10311p (M TI0AIDSIY SMOPEIIA Adumig e sroarasar a8e101g - 1zbzry Iapun [esodoxd feuiSug O

(p,1u02) 193l0ud smopea\ Adwnis ay |
SIUBWIIIUT HTET-3.d pue SHWIDd SIy3iy J91ep ANddD




L PLISIq A 21[qngd pIAl( Umo3a8103n) Lroz/Ljz

SD OOI 0} 0S WOIJ MO[J UOISIIAI(] IIII(] YIII) J0[IJ IY) SOSLIDU] »
SIYSLI 1I0TUS dI0W (JNJ D) SIALD) =
Sotrid/rzbery 1apjo sadefdoy
Lezgeid g/ yiroSy uonenrddy O
€101 UOISIA(J JO SuLIz) YIm dduerduwrod ur pansst sem jruwsad siyy, =

abp.01s 322 - 240D 000°‘OT
pup uois.LoA1p sf5 001 3y3 y30q sanouddp Lzgzid "ON IULID{ - 1961 ‘0€ sunf O

(IMH Ire) juelnsuod Aq paredard y1odax Ayfiqrseaj 10alo1g smopeajy
Adwinig 3y ur paqLIdSIP SB) YIAL)) J0[IJ U0 28e101S 193] ~ IIDE 000°0T =

931D 10[1d WO} UOISIIAIP IDMIP SJO 00T  «

dunsanbax
(393[o14 smopes|y Adwmig a3 jo suoraod urelsad 10§ 33ep Sulfy 191Ies ue
ureyqo o31) Y¥9Sy Suriy ayeig jo yuswruBIsse 10§ S (ANJIJD - 8561 ‘Sz aun( O

dui|i4 91e1s Jo Juawudissy
SJUBWIdIIUT #TET-94d pue sHWIdd sysiy Ja1ep\ dNddo




8 PsIg AN dqng ap1alg umoladioan Lioz/LiT

dMIovd




6 PIsIg Armn oqng Spialg umoladioasn Lioz/lje
WP UOISIRAN] ¥R 01
© pum weq SMopRo Kdumag 18 pansaAlpos puv (3938 pedojaasp 3q 0F .
9feicns QN BY0 20} NoARSTY SMopRaly Aduwmig w patoisagey /g
SOE11d PUe $0ET [ d 1opun SIUMOIKIS S SUng T
W] VOISIOAK] oD 107 I8 PAARAIPAIQ 0L /]

£ BE000Y |° 2810y Wreans Fo
50 0¢ 01 BOIS AL 1D UoUG | ¢
50 52 (ary smp Supnpup | |
uolssAl ;nog | g
2 59 001 59 06 50 08 UOSIALY | |
| | | P RUDIONL | T |
~'n ¥ 000'0Z 2 2% 000'07 | Smogmosmssy| |
. : smopeay Adumgg | 1 |
s 90£11d SPETId | ¥OENd |
Vibosv 83991V 17921V oIV

SLIAAF MY SNOLLYINIAAY SLHOTY FUYM
JOTYLSIQ AL JFTRNG SCBAI NMOLELHOED
19718Y1

T 9jqel —1d132x3 110doy cumwo.,_?:._ m:m_m ‘66T 1d9S
12143S1@ AMlj1aN 21|gnd 3PIAIQ UMO0128.1095)




ot 1PLsI Aruan o1qng apIAI(J Um01981035) Lioz/Llt

Bunerode Apmameep | B 6y %9317 .aw_c u
GOA137) GOTMA MOJRQ N9317) 1071 7 STURwAImbal o
oFseras Yty 39ows digy 1 posn Apussesg | s b uofues) USNIA °¢
| ) ‘ | (uofue) dasg)
sog Z# SIONNS JORVOS
S°E | 1zempung patos €
we | uokue:) uodeg 'z
ure(] MOISISAL(] J23I] J0ld O3 SYICADESE] SMOPRAJY | ..
Adumig pj0 WOg pasou UOISISAIPJO JUIOJ | 530 DE FRID 0N 1
| SjuSUNLC?) | Aoede) |
SINANETIUNT $16T-28d
TOMISICT ALTILL) DTN SAXAIT NAMO13IDE0TD

cTIgv.L

¢ 9|qe] — 1dJa3x3] 11oday Yd9104pAH eIIDIS /66T 1daS
1214351 A11j13N 21|gNnd 9PIAIQ UMO1D81095)




43 PLISI Eﬂb% \74| :.Soﬁwhomw swons 2w anfrerelfL. | T

it 48— i . - sk ST TR T ‘EM

—_G«OD paysiolep (sucifey | e 1~

L i-.zi

SSN Hoo oc_

.c;_:mcoo n_m_oom_ 1 Ie190] POUSISIEN [eUoIBoYN

Jousia Annn 2lignd apialgq umolebioss




Lioz/LjT

P10sIq Ann d1qng dp1arq umo3asiodn

(41

Sierra Hydroteck
Georgetown Divide Pubiic Utility Districr's
Septembex 2, 1957 Waler Rights Pemnits & Pre-1914 Entitiernents P_g_g‘e_ 6
TABIE

GEORGETOW DIVIDE SURLIC UTILITY [heTRICY
WATER RIGHTS APVLICATIONS AND PERMITS

Al6212 Al242) A16688 AS6444
P11304 P1I3GS P11306 PI2827
Stumpy Meadows 5
Reservoir Storage 20,000 afa ¥ 20,000 afa V¥
Pilot Creek Direct ‘
Diversion 50 cfs 50 cfs 100 cfs ¥
Earowtz Diversion
(Including Oftter Creek) 25 cly
Onion Cresk Diversion to 1 30cls
Off stream Storage | 4,000afa ¥

i/

¥

To be rediveried at Pitot Creek Diversion Dam.

Same a5 emounts under 11304 and P11305

To be stored at Stumpy Meadows Reservoir (or sther GDPUD storage
to be developad later) and rediverted at Stumpy Meadows Dam and
Pilot Creek: Diversion dam,

TABLE2
(GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
PRE-1914 ENTITLEMENTS

Capacity Comments
1. Pilot Creek 30 cfs | Point of diversion moved from Old Stumpy
Meadows Headworks to Pilot Creek Diversion Dam

2. Bacon Canyon Scfs

3. Control Structure 51 Jofs

4. Control Structure #2 3efs

{Deep Canyon)
5. Mutton Canyon 4 is | Pressatly used io help moet fish release

requirements a8 Pilsi Creek below Mution Canyon

6. Onion Creck 155y | Bot currently operating




TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: CONSIDER REQUEST TO SPLIT IRRIGATION WATER SERVICE
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #16

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At the regular meeting of January 10, 2017, the Board deferred action on the request from
Dean Lacey, an irrigation customer, for approval to split water service on his parcel at
5200 Andy Wolf Road, to allow for a review of the current Ordinance.

In separate emails, each Board member was provided with a copy of the Irrigation
Ordinance (Attachment A of this report).

POSSIBLE BOARD ACTION:

District Staff is neutral on this matter and awaits further direction from the Board.



GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #16
ATTACHMENT A

ORDINANCE 2005-01

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS
FOR IRRIGATION SERVICE IN THE GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

BE IT ENACTED by the Board of Directors of the GEORGETOWN DIVIDE
PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT, County of El Dorado, State of California, as
follows:

The rules and regulations for irrigation service within the GEORGETOWN
DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT (“District”) are adopted by the Board of
Directors of said District as hereinafter set forth.

SECTION 1. General Conditions:

(@)  Control of System: District Works shall be under exclusive
control and management of District personnel duly appointed by the
Board of Directors.

(b)  The District shall not be liable for interruption, shortage or
insufficiency of irrigation water supply, or for any loss or damage
occasioned thereby.

()  The District shall not be liable for damage to person or
property resulting directly or indirectly from privately owned conduits,
meters or measuring devices.

(d)  Irrigation water is used at the customer’s own risk and the
customer agrees to hold the District, its officers and employees free and
harmless from liability and damages that may occur as the result of
defective water quality, shortages, fluctuation in flow or pressure,
interruptions in service or for failure to deliver water.

()  Pumping of water by the customer is done at the customer’s
risk. The District assumes no liability for damage to pumping equipment
or other damages as a result of turbulent water, shortages, excess of water
or other causes.

() No purchaser of water from the District acquires a
proprietary or vested right by reason of use. No purchaser acquires a
right to resell water or to use for a purpose other than that for which it

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 1 of 8
Final - May 10, 2005



was. applied nor to use it on premises other than indicated on the
application. The terms, conditions, priorities and allocation of irrigation
service may be altered and amended by the Board of Directors. The
District does not guarantee irrigation service customers the right to future
service.

(g) The District expressly asserts the right to recapture, reuse
and resell all waters originating from District Works.

(h)  Ditchtenders and other agents of the District shall have
access to all lands irrigated from its water system and to all conduits for
the purpose of inspection, examination, measurements, surveys or other
necessary purposes of the District with the right of installation,
maintenance, control and regulation of all meters and other measuring
devices, gates, turnouts and other structures necessary or proper for the
measurement and distribution of water.

()] No bridges, crossing, pipe or other structures shall be placed
in or over a canal without written permission of the District. Maintenance
of the canal crossings shall not be the District’s responsibility but shall rest
with the owner of the crossing. Where the owner fails to maintain the
crossing, the District may perform the necessary repairs or removal at the
expense of the owner. Notice of the District’s intent will be given, if
possible, to the owner prior to the work commencing.

G No rubbish, garbage, refuse, chemicals or animal matter
from any source may be placed in or allowed to be emptied into any ditch,
canal or reservoir of the District.

(k)  District canals or reservoirs shall not be used for swimming
or bathing.

M Livestock shall not be permitted to contaminate the water
supply nor destroy or damage the canal system or use thereof. Property
owners are liable for any damage due to livestock.

(m) No conveyance system shall cause a cross connection with
the District’s water system with any other source of water.

(n)  No buildings, corrals or other structures, fences, trees, lines
or bushes shall be permitted upon rights-of-way or use thereof be made in
any way except by written authority of the District. Construction of

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 2 of 8
Final — May 10, 2005



fences and/or gates is not permitted without written approval of the
specifications by the General Manager.

(o)  Violation of Rules and Regulations: Failure to comply with
rules and regulations of the District shall be sufficient cause for
terminating irrigation service as determined by the Board of Directors.

(p) Any person dissatisfied with any determination of the
District management shall have the right to appeal to the Board of
Directors.

(9 Amendments: The Board of Directors of the District may at
their discretion alter, amend or add to these rules and regulations. The
Board of Directors will follow applicable laws during this process.

SECTION 2. Application for an Irrigation Service Account:

(@ No irrigation service will be rendered until a complete
application for an Irrigation Service Account has been approved and is on
file at the office of the District. Applications will be accepted between
January 1t and March 1%t for the impending irrigation season.  The
application for service shall state that the customer agrees to abide by the
terms and conditions for service as established in the Irrigation Ordinance.

(b)  Applications will be approved where the District Works
have sufficient capacity to meet service requested. Applications will be
considered for approval utilizing the following priority system:

Priority 1. Applications for Irrigation Service to parcels
that received irrigation service during the
immediate past irrigation season.

Priority 2. Applications for Irrigation Service to parcels
with the most recent active Irrigation Service
Account during the previous ten (10) irrigation
seasons

Priority 3. New applications for irrigation service to
parcels that have been made after the 2003
irrigation season with priority established by
the earliest season applied for. Applications
and priority are specific to the section of ditch
the parcel is located near.

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 3 of 8
Final — May 10, 2005



Competing applications within the same priority level, will
be determined by public lottery.

(©)  Applications for an increase to service will receive Priority 3
status for the requested increase.

(d)  Applications must in all cases be signed by the holder of title
to the property requesting irrigation service. If the property requesting
irrigation service is leased, two months of charges must be paid in
advance. The landowner of leased property shall be responsible for all
charges or assessments.

() Applications for an Irrigation Service Account to benefit a
parcel of land that is not adjacent to the District Works must be
accompanied by a legally recorded easement that allows the conveyance
of water to the parcel requesting irrigation service. The easement shall
grant the District the right of ingress and egress for inspection, installation
and maintenance purposes.

() New applications for Out-of-District Irrigation Service
Accounts will not be approved by the Board of Directors. An existing
Out-of-District Irrigation Service Account that is inactive for two or more
years will be deleted from the District’s accounts and the service will be
permanently removed.

SECTION 3. Distribution of Water:

(@)  The irrigation season shall generally be from May 1 through
October 1 of each year. The Board of Directors shall consider changes to
the irrigation season to respond to climactic conditions and may
implement such changes by a majority vote.

(b) The District does not guarantee irrigation water under
pressure from the District Works. Pressure requirements of the customer
are the sole responsibility of the customer and the District shall not be
liable for any damage to equipment used to provide pressure to the
customer.

()  Water is distributed under continuous flow. Water must be
used continuously during all days and nights including holidays and
Sundays and no allowances shall be made for failure to use water when it
is made available. Failure to use water on schedule shall not entitle the
customer to any rebate.

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 4 of 8
Final — May 10, 2005



(d)  Irrigation service is provided for the entire irrigation season.
Customers shall pay for irrigation service for the entire irrigation season
regardless of their interest or ability to use water.

(6)  When interruptions to irrigation service due to failure of the
District Works extend beyond five (5) days, proportionate adjustments for
such water loss will be made.

()  Irigation customers shall pay a proportionate amount for
irrigation service when the irrigation season is extended or shortened by
the Board of Directors.

(8) Unauthorized connections or the taking of water in an
amount greater than applied and paid for, by any means, is a
misdemeanor under California Penal Code Section 498 and shall be
subject to criminal prosecution under Section 498 and any other applicable
laws. In addition, the District may bring a civil action for damages and
may refuse future service to the parcel.

(h)  Irrigation customers shall prevent any unnecessary or
wasteful use of water. Should a customer permit wasteful use of water,
the District may discontinue service if such condition is not corrected
within five (5) days after giving the parcel owner written notice of
intention to terminate service.

(@) No more than one parcel shall be served through each
Irrigation Service Account except with the prior written approval of the
Board of Directors. Any such approval shall be recorded against each
parcel with the caveat that the agreement expires upon any change of
ownership. Each Irrigation Service Account shall have independent
service lines and sumps.

G The minimum irrigation service for each Irrigation Service
Account shall be one miner’s inch, from the open ditch system, and one-
half miner’s inch from the irrigation pipeline system. In the future, the
District may consider reducing the minimum irrigation service to one-half
miner’s inch from the open ditch system and one-quarter miner’s inch
from the irrigation pipeline system.

(k)  All pumped services shall utilize a sump provided by the
customer and acceptable to the District.

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 5 of 8
Final — May 10, 2005




1 All Irrigation Service Accounts must have an appropriate
measuring device which shall be installed by the District. The customer
shall pay the cost thereof including costs of installation. The District shall
approve the location of the measuring device. .

(m) Customers receiving irrigation service who request a change
in flow rate during the season shall be charged a fee set by the Board of
Directors for the adjustment.

(n)  Replacement of measuring devices shall be at the expense of
the customer if the replacement is necessary due to abnormal wear or
abuse.

(0)  Alternate Boxes ~The Board of Directors shall not approve
any new applications for Alternate Boxes.

(p) Unusual costs incurred by the District to provide irrigation
service shall be paid in full by the applicant or customer. An estimate of
the expense shall be approved by the property owner prior to work
commencing.

SECTION 4. Charges, Rates and Billings:

(@)  The District will maintain a uniform rate schedule which
may be changed from time to time upon action of the Board of Directors.
The rate schedule, by reference, is attached hereto and made a part of
these rules and regulations.

(b)  Irrigation billings are made bi-monthly (every two months)
in advance.

()  All penalties shall be charged as outlined on the billings

(d)  Disconnected irrigation service accounts shall pay a fee to re-
establish service

(¢)  Irrigation service accounts requesting verification of flow
will pay a fee if the delivered flow is within 10% of the contracted amount

SECTION 5. REPEAL

(a) Upon the effective date of this Ordinance 2005-__ all
previously adopted Ordinances pertinent to the Rules and Regulations for

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 6 of §
Final —~ May 10, 2005



Irrigation Service will be superceded and repealed, including, but not
limited to, Ordinance 79-2, 79-8, 87-1, and 04-01.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regularly held meeting of the Board of
Directors of the GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT this tenth

day of May, 2005.

AYES: Bob Diekon, Norman Krizl, Doug Pickell, JoAnn Shepherd
and Hy Vitcov

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

Bob Diekon, President

Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

ATTEST:

2L s

f{eﬂry N.'White, Clerk and ex officio
Secretary, Board of Directors
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT

kohkhdh ok khk ok ok kK

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 7 of 8
Final — May 10, 2005



I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of
Ordinance 2005-01 duly and regularly adopted by the Board of Directors
of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, El Dorado County,
California, at a meeting duly held on the tenth day of May, 2005.

Henry N. White, Clerk and ex officio Secretary of the
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District

Irrigation Ordinance 2005-01 Page 8 of 8
Final - May 10, 2005



Memo

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 7, 2017

SUBJECT: ACWA SPRING CONFERENCES
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #17

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION

Directors and Staff have traditionally attended the ACWA Spring Conferences. This year is set for
May 9-12, 2017, at the Monterey Marriott and Portola Hotel & Spa in Monterey, California.

Registration begins on February 27 and the deadline to register is April 14, 2017, at 4:30 PM. The
cost for a full registration packet, which includes several of the meals, is $699. Registration
without meal tickets is $555. The Conference Flyer is included as Attachment A.

The required Ethics Training will be offered on Thursday, May 11, at 9:30 until 11:45 AM, with
limited seating. A listing of classes will be available prior to the conference.

The funding for expenses related to this conference will come from Fund Account 5042 Travel —
Conference.

RECOMMENDATION

Itis Staff's recommendation that the Board determine who will be attending the Spring Conference
and direct Staff to make necessary arrangements.



Click here if you are having trouble viewing this message.

ACWA 2017 SPRING
CONFERENCE & EXHIBITION
MAY 9-12, 2017
MONTEREY, CALIFORNIA

Dear Londres Uso,

Join us for ACWA's 2017 Spring Conference &
Exhibition!

This event is set to take place May 9-12 at the Monterey Marriott
and Portola Hotel in Monterey, California.

Why Attend?

> Connect with the California water community all in one place!

> Hear from top officials and industry experts on increasing
regulatory, environmental, and economic challenges.

> Join fellow water leaders to show the importance of California
water issues.

> Learn about new products and services to better manage your
water agency.

> Continuing education credits offered in the legal, financial, energy,
and drinking water areas for professionals seeking contact hours.

What Can You Expect?

> Important discussions on water conservation, storage, and
drinking water.

> Programs impacting the Agriculture community and Bay-Delta
solutions along with GSA formation and new financing options.

> Over 70 meeting and program sessions to help you stay informed
and updated on a variety of local, statewide, and federal issues and
policies - important and critical information that you can take back to
your agencies and organizations.

Online registration is NOW OPEN!

>> REGISTER TODAY

GDPUD Board Meeting, 2/14/2017
AGENDA ITEM #17, ATTACHMENT A

ACWAZL

www.acwa.com

UPCOMING EVENTS
2017 Legislative Symposium
March 8, 2017

Sacramento Convention
Center

>> REGISTER TODAY

Energy Storage Summit in
partnership with CESA
March 30, 2017

Sacramento

>> REGISTER TODAY

IMPORTANT
CONFERENCE
INFORMATION

+ Pricing Reference
Sheet
» Registration Terms

and Conditions

+ Sponsorship
Information

+ Preliminary Agenda

http://elink.clickdimensions.com/m/1/20601492/02-b17034-1205671d9f40439d874574037... 2/10/2017



O
Memo [corup_]
O

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Darrell Creeks, Interim General Manager
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: ASSISTANCE FOR CUSTOMERS WITH FINANCIAL HARDSHIP
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #18

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND:

During the regular Board Meeting of January 10, 2017, the Board directed Staff to add this item
to the agenda.

Staff is researching options for the District to create a program to assist customers who are
unable to pay their water bill due to financial hardships.

One option is to create a Fund through the El Dorado County Community Foundation
(EDCCF), a local public charity that helps the community with charitable giving. (Attachment
A is a schematic drawing from the Foundation’s Annual Report that describes the partnership
between EDCCF and the community’s philanthropic goals.)

The EI Dorado Irrigation District (EID) has established a program to assist customers in
hardship cases through a partnership with the El Dorado County Community Foundation
(EDCCF), a local public charity that helps the community with charitable giving.

EID utilizes the EDCCF “Helping Hands” Program, a designated fund whereby the donor
specifics fund beneficiaries, to assist in financial hardship cases.

Staff has been in direct contact with Bill Roby, ECCF Executive Director, and is awaiting
additional information.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Direct Staff to identify other options for assisting customers in financial hardship cases.



Any Donor
can Gift

Individuals, Corporations,
Charitable Organizations

Gifts Come in
Different Forms

Cash, Appreciated Securities,
Real Estate, Closely-held Securities,

Personal Property, Life Insurance,
D onors Retirement Assets, Wills and Bequests,

Choose or Businesses/Corporations
Create a Fund

Unrestricted, Donor Advised,
Field of Interest, Designated,
Scholarship, Agency,
Operating

Investments

Gifts become Endowed
Funds and are Invested.

Payouts &
Distributions

Grants for charitable activities : L5 _
are made to fulfil Through this activity, the Community
donor wishes. Foundation gains connections, visibility,
knowledge, credibility, influence and
resources to share with community leaders

Annual Report 2015-2016 | 9




O
Memo [corup_]
O

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: George Sanders, Engineering Consultant

DATE: February 9, 2017

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON ALT WATER TREATMENT PLANT
Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #19

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND:

With the elevated rainfall, field construction activities on the ALT Project continue to be delayed.
Based on current field conditions, it is likely construction at the site will begin on or around March 1.

30" Diameter Raw Water Siphon (TECHITE material): The first item of work will address the

replacement of the 30” diameter raw water siphon that provides raw water to the holding pond/plant
as well as irrigation customers for the period of 5 months beginning in May. This was an item of
discussion in the meeting of January. At that time, the District was waiting for a proposal from
Myers & Sons Construction (Myers) that included a change in material type as well as added work
to replace the entire line, not just a portion as identified on the plans. On Feb 3, the District
received the Myers proposal which identified an added cost of $156,746. That proposal was
rejected and the current plan is to replace a portion of the 30” diameter raw water siphon per the
plan.

Engineering Support Services during Construction: This work activity was identified in the project
update of last month. As identified in the January meeting, these services are normally provided by

the project design firm, PSOMAS. At that time the District shared a proposal from PSOMAS to
provide the services at an estimated cost of $398,148. Staff has worked with PSOMAS and is in
receipt of a revised proposal in the amount of $276,226. This is the topic of another agenda item
within this meeting.

Construction Management Services: Staff has an active Request for Proposals (RFP) for
construction management services that will close on Feb. 10. The results of that solicitation are
currently not available, but elements will be shared at this meeting on Feb 14. Staff continues to
manage this role until a consulting firm is under contract.

Other Support Services during Construction: Foothill Associates will continue to assist the District
with the raptor study, worker awareness training and implementation of the storm water pollution
prevention plan. Youngdahl Consulting will perform the material testing (soils and concrete) for the
project.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and File.



Memo

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: George Sanders, Engineering Consultant
DATE: February 14, 2017

SUBJECT: AUBURN LAKE TRAILS WATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT — CHANGE
ORDER AUTHORITY

Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #20

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND:

Construction activities are about to begin (March) on the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment

Plant Project (“ALT”). This project will be constructed by Myers & Sons Construction (“Myers”)

for an award amount of $10,249,000. A project of this magnitude will result in Change Orders.

From a financial standpoint, individual Change Orders will fit one of three categories. They can
result in (1) no cost, (2) and increase or (3) a decrease in the total contract dollar amount. The
District has monies on reserve, identified as contingencies, to fund increases in cost.

This Board conducts regular meetings on a monthly basis. Elements of the project are
expected to move rapidly during construction. District staff, as well as consultants, will function
as a team to address anticipated changes during construction. In an effort to reduce delays,
there is a benefit to the District in allowing staff (General Manager) to approve changes orders,
during construction, that have financial implications to the District. This is a common practice
within the construction industry.

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the General Manager to approve and process Change Orders on the ALT Project,
with Meyers & Sons Construction, for a total amount not to exceed $10,000. This change order
authority shall be limited to a time span (approximately 30 days) between regular meetings of
the Board. All Change Orders, regardless of the amount, will be shared with the Board during
regular meetings. Any Change Orders exceeding this amount will require Board Approval.



Memo [copup ]

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: George Sanders, Engineering Consultant
DATE: February 9, 2017

SUBJECT: PSOMAS CONTRACT - ENGINEERING SUPPORT DURING
CONSTRUCTION FOR ALT WATER TREATMENT PLANT

Board Meeting of February 14, 2017; Agenda Item #21

DISCUSSION/BACKGROUND:

The construction phase of the ALT Water Treatment Plant Project will include support services,
to be provided by outside consultants. The two most significant contracts will be for

Engineering Support Services during construction and Construction Management. The subject
of this agenda item is limited to Engineering Support Services during construction.

Engineering Support is normally provided by the firm that designed the facility. In the case of
this project, that would be PSOMAS. Often times design contracts include an item for
Engineering Support during construction. The contract, plus 4 amendments, between the
District and PSOMAS, entered into in October 2010, did not include an item for this support
during construction. With construction about to begin, there is a need to address this task now.

This item was a topic of discussion, under the ALT Update, at the regular Board Meeting of
January 10. A cost proposal prepared by PSOMAS, dated 12/23/16, was shared at the meeting
which identified an estimated cost at $ 398,148. Staff identified the need to work with PSOMAS
in an effort to reduce costs. This effort yielded a revised proposal, dated February 9, 2017,with
an estimated cost at § 276,226. Services of this nature normally range from 2-3% of the
construction cost. The bid amount for the project, as submitted by Myers & Sons Construction,
is in the amount of $10,249,000. The revised proposal from PSOMAS is 2.7% of the
construction cost. A copy of the two proposals are included with this agenda item for reference.

The District has an existing contract with PSOMAS for the first and second designs of the
facility improvements. This added task, of Engineering Support during construction, is work of a
similar nature and would warrant an Amendment to the existing contract, rather than a new
contract.

The funds for this item of work are on reserve within Funds 24, 35 and 39.



GDPUD Meeting of February 14, 2017 Page 2
AGENDA ITEM #21

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize Staff to enter into a Contract Amendment with PSOMAS, in an amount not to exceed
$276,226, for Engineering Support Services during construction for the ALT Water Treatment
Plant Project.



February 9, 2017

George Sanders

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
P. O. Box 4240

Georgetown, CA 95634

SUBJECT: Proposal to Provide Engineering Services During Construction
Auburn Lake Trails WTP Project

Dear George:

As requested, enclosed is Psomas’ fee estimate for providing engineering services during
construction of the Auburn Lake Trails WTP project. Ernie Leporini, PE, will serve as our
local point of contact for this project. However, we also anticipate providing engineering
assistance from our Santa Ana office as required. Our same subconsultants responsible for
the project design will be utilized for construction phase assistance, including ATEEM
Electrical Engineering for electrical/controls, Anderson Structural Group for structural and
Nece Landscape Architecture for landscape.

Our proposed scope of services includes the following tasks:

1. Project Meetings: Attend meetings, site visits, startup and testing, including:

e Attendance at pre-construction conference.

e Attendance at weekly construction meetings as requested. For purposes of
this proposal, we have included attendance at a maximum of 14 meetings
(20% of 71 estimated meetings) by Ernie Leporini and 4 meetings by
ATEEM. Attendance at additional meetings can be provided on a T&M basis
upon prior authorization by District.

e Startup testing; assumed attendance of 4 days by Ernie Leporini and 2 days
by ATEEM. Attendance at additional startup testing meetings can be
provided on a T&M basis upon prior authorization by District.

¢ Electrical/Control Equipment Factory and Field tests; assumed attendance by
ATEEM of 2 days for factory tests and 2 days for field tests for electrical and
control equipment testing. If attendance at additional
factory/field testing meetings is required, this service will be

provided on a T&M basis upon prior authorization by District. 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive
Suite 200
Roseville, CA 95678-3502
916.788.8122
Fax 916.788.0600

Www.psomas.com



PSOMAS

George Sanders Page 2 of 3
Auburn Lake Trails WTP Project, Engineering Services During Construction February 9, 2017

e Electrical/Control Inspection and Punch-list; 4 days have been included for
final inspection and punch-list visits by ATEEM. Attendance at additional
site meetings/inspections can be provided on a T&M basis upon prior
authorization by District.

e Maximum of 6 site visits by Anderson Structural. Additional site visits can be
provided on a T&M basis upon prior authorization by District.

e Landscape walk-through (assume one day)

2. Material Submittals and Shop Drawing Review: Review of material, equipment,
and supply submittals, including shop drawings. For purposes of this proposal we
have budgeted for review of 120 submittals/shop drawings, assuming 20% (24) are
re-submittals. In addition, ATEEM will review up to 30 electrical submittals. Please
note that the number of submittals/shop drawings and re-submittals is highly variable
and depends largely on the contractor. If more submittals and/or re-submittals are
received than anticipated, we will inform the District and after receiving authorization
will proceed on a time and materials basis. This proposal does not include review of
construction management submittals, such as project schedules, coordination of work,
partial pay requests, etc.

3. Operation and Maintenance Submittals: Review of operation and maintenance
submittals, as required by the contract documents. This proposal does not include
organizing the individual O&M submittals into one package, nor does it include
preparation of an O&M manual.

4. Requests for Information (RFI): Provide response to contractor requests for
information. Note that the number of RFI’s received for a project is highly variable
and is dependent on the type of project and the contractor working on the project. For
purposes of this proposal we have assumed 30 RFI’s.

5. As-Builts: As-built drawings will be prepared based on redline markups as provided
by the contractor and/or construction manager.

6. Change Order Support: Provide assistance the District in implementing up to 3
change orders. This is another item that is highly variable, depending on the nature
and scope of the change.



PSOMAS

George Sanders Page 3 of 3
Auburn Lake Trails WTP Project, Engineering Services During Construction February 9, 2017

Table 1, attached, summarizes our estimate of labor hours/fees by task to provide engineering
services during the construction phase. These services do not include construction
management or inspection (except for electrical as noted). Travel time and expenses related
to meetings are included in the hourly rates.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have questions about this proposal at (714) 481-
8060 or at joeboyle@psomas.com.

Very truly yours,
PSOMAS

&F

Joseph L. Boyle, PE
Senior Project Manager/Vice President

Enclosures:

Psomas Fee Estimate

ATEEM Scope of Work and Fee
ASG Scope of Work and Fee



92T'9LTS

= ajews3 994 [e}jo]

006'TS 0SLT$ 00t'STS 9£9'78% ovr'Ts 095'TZ$ 00€E‘TSS 055'98$ 059°71$  1s0D
06S 011$ SETS 0S1S 0€TS sajey
9T 961 08¢ LLs SS SINOH jejoL
00'99'76$ Sjuepnsuodgns |e301
000$ (anoge papnjoul qns Buideospue)
00'00'STS 00¥'STS (Jusosad g} snid 1509) JUBYNSUCIGNS [RINJONLS
00'v9Z'LLS v9T'LLS (3ueosad g} snid 3s09) JueyNsucogng [esuyRala
SUeYNSUOD-qNS|
00°0ST‘TZS uoddns Japap aduey) [ejoy
00'0S€Z$ v 6 z UoHeuIpIoo)
00'008°LS 00TS ov 8 )3 suonesiipow Bumelq
00'0828% 8 14 uonjos pasodold pue Uyoleasay
00'024T8 T 4 (09 € swnssy) 3senbay JapiQ abueyD Jo MaIASY lefiu|
(s4apaQ ebBueys ¢) poddng JepiO abueysn
00°098°9Z% syINg-sy |e3o)
00'009'T$ 009'T$ (3os sod 00¥$ @ ) SHING-SV Jo slog ueld
00041°2$ 14 [ T SHING-SY |BOLJO8|3 8jeuIpJood)
00°041'2S v o1 1 S)INg-sY [BINONNS djeuIploo)
00°0Z6°02S 8Y1 0z v (193ys/noy z @ sjeays p/) sjing-sy
s}ing-sy
00°0VL'€2S uonewuoju| Joy bay jejoL
00'020°'T$ 4 S (14429 6°0 @ 01) 14 [BINPNYS BjEUIPI00T
00'0£€E$ 3 ST {19524 §°0 ® 0€) |94 [BOU3]3 8J8UIPIoOD
00'06£'6TS [ 06 8 (14¥/s1noy ¢ @ 0¢) |4 0} puodsay
uopeuLioju| Joj sysanbay
00'09Z°0T$ W20 |ejol
00°09Z°0T$ 00z$ | [re I SIEWANS W30
sjepiwqns B0
00'0T9€L$ s|leniwqng |eyo)
00'00E‘TS 14 4 z sleplugng [BINIONNS 3JBUIPIOOD
00°0v0'ES 8 ot z S|enpiwgng |eoUI0a|] 2JeUIPI00D
00°0ST'vS [iY4 S {waysinoy ¢ @ sbumelp doys g) sBumesq doys
00°0¥8'61S (1748 B (wayysinoy g @ swajl Jofew G| ) sleRiugng Jofeyy
00'08Z'S¥S 00T°TS 00€ 9T (wayysiy ¢ @ swall pJepueys 0p}) Slepiwgng
sbuimesq doys pue sjepiuqng [euajey
00'0St'TZS s3upaapy |elo)
00°006$ 9 uonoadsu| |euld puany
00°002°TS 8 1ISI/\ @S [BUI4-95d PUSHY|
00°00¥'SS o¢ (sAep y swnssy) bugsa| dnuelg
00°00£2S 059°TS L ybnoypiiep buideospue
. ‘ (| Jo sbupssw
00°005°0T$ 0L 12 10 %0Z awnssy) palinbay se sbunssiy APlasps pusiy|
00°0S.S S 392UaIaJU0D UOKONIISUOD-Bid puany
sBujjeey 3oefoid
06$ 01T$ SETS 0STS 0€T$
|eoL ysel 5150) Jay30 | uidesspue | feandonang [eo33|3 iy = o oy R 5

uonanssuon bung sedialeg Bueauibul - ajewnnsy 994 | ajqel

109(04d d1M siieiL a)eT uingny

101810 AN 211And 9piAIg umolaBioan




3841 NORTH FREEWAY BOULEVARD, SUITE 145
A T.E.EM. ELECTRICAL SACRAMENTO, CA 95834

ENGINEERING Inc. TEL: (916) 457-8144

INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL DESIGN FAX: (916) 457-7876

TE.Em\
February 8, 2017

Joe Boyle, P.E.

Psomas

3 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 200

Santa Ana, CA 92707

E-mail: JoeBoyle@psomas.com
ernie.leporini@gmail.com

Location: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Subject: Electrical Engineering Construction Services Quotation & Scope of Work
Project: Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Improvements — Revised 2

The following lists the revised A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering Construction Services
for the project.

A. Construction Services
1. Attend four (4) project meetings.

2. Review electrical, instrumentation and control shop drawings and submittals/ resubmittals.
(~30 combined total).

3. Answer construction questions and provide clarifications.
4. Respond to “Request for Information” regarding electrical and instrumentation items.
5. Witness and Verify:

a. Factory Tests (2 Days)
b. Field Tests (2 Days)
c. Start-up (2 Days)

6. Provide electrical inspection and generate punch-list. (4 Days)
7. Prepare as-built Contract drawings.

A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering Construction Services fee proposal is on the attached

spreadsheet.
Note:
1. Budget from one task may be used at our discretion to cover the overage of another task

that has exceeded its estimated budget. ATEEM will stop work when our total not-to-exceed cost
has been met, regardless of if a task has been completed or started. Any additional time, outside
our total not-to-exceed cost, requested of us, will be billed on a Time and Material basis.

File:pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev3-cs.docx Page 1 of 2 02/08/17



2. We do not believe that two days are enough for the factory test. For a factory test that
includes the switchboard, two MCCs and two PLC control panels with the program and screen
checks, a four day factory test is typically budgeted. Extra time spent at the factory test will be
deducted from effort on other tasks.

All prices include overhead, profit, insurance, and travel expenses for site visits to the
jobsite. Currently A T.E.E.M. has $2,000,000 general liability and $2,000,000 professional
liability insurance in force.

A T.E.E.M. is dedicated to meet your needs by providing specialized design, consultant
and management services. Please give us a call if you have any questions or require further
information.

Sincerely,

Erik Burns, P.E.
A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering

File:pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev3-cs.docx Page 2 of 2 02/08/17



A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering

2/8/2017

Type of Service: Electrical Construction Services
Customer Name: Psomas

Location: GD PUD

Project Name: Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Improvements - Revised 2

Project No.: Work Order No.: Task No.:
Field Eng=FE Office Eng=0E Technical = TA
Hourly Rate: $190 $180 $110
Task Description FE  OE TA
Construction Services
1 Attend project meetings (4) 24 6 4 = 6,080
2 Review submittals/resubmittals (~30 total) 0 120 60 = 28,200
3  Answer questions and issue clarifications 0 30 16 = 7,160
4  Respond to RFls 0 20 16 = 5,360
5 Factory test (2 Days) 16 5 5 = 4,490
6 Field tests (2 Days) 16 5 5 = 4,490
7 Start-up (2 Days) 16 5 2 = 4,160
8 Inspection and punch-list (4 Days) 32 4 2 = 7,020
9  As-built drawings 8 20 28 = 8,200
112 215 138 $75,160

Total not-to-exceed cost:

$75,160

Notes: Budget from one task may be used at our discretion to cover the overage of another task that has exceeded
its estimated budget. ATEEM will stop work when our total not-to-exceed cost has been met, regardiess of
if a task has been completed or started. Any additional time, outside our total not-to-exceed cost, requested
of us, will be billed on a Time and Material basis

Date
Signature : Sharon M. Kimizuka, P.E.
Approval
Date
Signature
CHARGE NO.:

pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev3-cs.xlsx cs



A|nderson

S|tructural

G|roup Agreement
Anderson Structural Group, inc. Client: PSOMAS

650 University Avenue, Suite 110 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95825 Roseville, CA 9595678

(916) 514-9109 (916) 788-8122

Date: December 21, 2016 ASG Project No. 12084.05

Project Name/Location: Auburn Lake Trails WTP Construction Review - Georgetown Divide PUD
Project Description: Structural engineering services for:
Construction review services for structural drawings signed March 2, 2016 and sheets S14 and
S15 signed May 27, 2016 for following structures:
o Raw Water Pump Station
o Filter Building
o Sludge Drying Beds
Scope of Services:

e Provide construction review and support services including
o Construction consultation, review metal building submittals, review structural shop
drawings, respond to RFI's and up to six site visits.

Structural Fee:

Construction Review and Support Services $14,000
Limitation of Liability: $1,000,000
Special Conditions:

» Fee does not include any construction phase revisions to approved drawings.
e Any revisions to approved drawings will be billed at hourly rates.

Offered by: Accepted by:
S {2/ u/te

signature date signature date

John D. Anderson, President S$2910

nameftitle CA License namefftitle

Anderson Structural Group, Inc.

Client

The Terms and Conditions attached and the initials required are a part of this Agreement.
Fees are based on receiving authorization within 60 days.

Page 1 of 2



A|nderson
S|tructural
G|roup

Terms and Conditions

Anderson Structural Group, Inc. shall perform the services outlined in this Agreement for the stated
fee arrangement.

Dispute Resolution:
Any claims or disputes betwsen the Client and Anderson Structural Group, Inc. shall be submitted
to non-binding mediation.

Billings/Payments:

Invoices will be submitted either upon completion of services or on a monthly basis. If the invoice is
not paid within 30 days, Anderson Structural Group, Inc. may terminate the performance of the
service.

Late Payments:

Invoices unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5%
(or the legal rate) on the unpaid balance. Client agrees to pay all costs of collection, including
reasonable attorney's fees.

Indemnification:

The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless Anderson
Structural Group, Inc., its officers, employees and subconsultants from all damage, liability and
cost, including reasonable attomey's fees, arising out of the performance of the services under this
Agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or costs attributable to the sole negligence or
willful misconduct of Anderson Structural Group, Inc.

Limitation of Liability:

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both parties, the Client
agrees that Anderson Structural Group, Inc. total liability for all injuries, claims, loses, expenses,
damages or claim expenses arising out of this Agreement shall not exceed the Limitation of Liability
amount indicated in the Agreement. Such causes include, Anderson Structural Group, Inc.
negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty.

Termination of Services:

Either party may terminate this Agreement should the other fail to perform its obligations. In the
event of termination, the Client agrees to pay Anderson Structural Group, Inc. for all services
rendered to the date of termination.

Field Representatives

Anderson Structural Group, Inc. field personnel are for the purpose of providing project
administration, construction observation and investigation of specific aspects of the project.
Observation of the work by Anderson Structural Group, Inc. personnel does not relieve the Client of
the responsibility for performing the work in accordance with the plans and specifications.
Anderson Structural Group, Inc. responsibilities do not include supervision or direction of the
means, methods or actual work of the Client or responsibility for jobsite safety.

Hourly Rates:
Principal Engineer $170 per hour Associate Engineer $140 per hour
Design Engineer $110 per hour Drafter $ 85 per hour
JoA
initial initial

Page 2 of 2



December 23, 2016

George Sanders

GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT
P. O. Box 4240

Georgetown, CA 95634

Re: Proposal to Provide Engineering Services During Construction
Auburn Lake Trails WTP Project

Dear George:

As requested, enclosed is Psomas’ fee estimate for providing engineering services during
construction of the Auburn Lake Trails WTP project. Emie Leporini, PE, will serve as our
local point of contact for this project. However, we also anticipate providing engineering
assistance from our Santa Ana office as required.

Our proposed scope of services includes the following tasks:

1.

Project Meetings: Site visits and meetings during construction phase, including pre-
construction conference, weekly meetings as necessary (we have included attendance
at 18 meetings), walk-throughs and startup meetings, and final inspection site visits.
This proposal does not include daily inspection or construction management activites.
Note that witnessing factory tests and project startup is included for electrical and
control equipment.

Material Submittals and Shop Drawing Review: Review of all material,
equipment, and supply submittals, including shop drawings. This proposal does not
include review of construction management submittals, such as project schedules,
coordination of work, partial pay requests, etc.

Operation and Maintenance Submittals: Review of operation and maintenance
submittals, as required by the contract documents. This proposal does not include
organizing the individual O&M submittals into one package, nor does it include
preparation of an O&M manual.

Requests for Information: Provide response to contractor requests for 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive

information. Note that the number of RFI’s received for a project is Suite 200
Roseville, CA 95678-3502

916.788.8122
Fax 916.788.0600

WwWWw.psomas.com



PSOMAS

George Sanders Page 2 of 2
Auburn Lake Trails WTP Project, Engineering Services During Construction December 23, 2016

highly variable — depending on the type of project and the contractor that is working
on the project.

5. As-Builts: Preparation of as-built drawings based on redline markups from the
contractor and/or construction manager.

6. Change Order Support: Provide assistance the District in implementing three
change orders. This is another item that is highly variable, depending on the nature
and scope of the change.

Table 1, attached, summarizes our estimate of labor hours/fees by task to provide engineering
services during the construction phase. Please review the attached information and let me
know if it meets your requirements for Psomas’ role during construction of the improvements
to the Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you
have questions about this proposal at (714) 481-8060 or at joeboyle@psomas.com.

Very truly yours,
PSOMAS

&

Joseph L. Boyle, PE
Senior Project Manager/Vice President

Enclosures:

Psomas Fee Estimate

ATEEM Scope of Work and Fee
ASG Scope of Work and Fee



8r1‘86€$

= ojewysy 994 [ejoL

006°CS 0SL2$ 00v'sTS 8¢8'LSTS orr'Ts ove'es 0LL'L9S 0S6‘v2TS 00°0£8'STS 150D
06$ oTTS SETS 0STS 0£TS sajey
9T 8 208 £E8 69 SINnoH |ejol
00°8TTELTS SjUB}|NSUCIQNS [€301
00°0$ (enoqe papnjour gns Buideaspue)
00'00t'STS 00t'STS (usosad o} snid 1s00) JueyNSUCIGNS [BINJONIS
00'878'/STS 878LSTS (yusosad g} sn|d }s00) JuelNSUCONS [EoUP8|T
sueynNsuo)-qng
00'05€'€2$ uoddng JapaQ aSuey) |eyo1
00°0SE'CS 2 6 [ uopeulpIoo)
00'000°0T$ 00T$ 8 09 8 o1 suoneoyipow bumelq
00°08Z'8S 8 sy uonnjos pesodold pue yoleasay
00'02£'2$ [43 I 1sanbay Jo Malnay |elu|
({s19pa0 sbuey? ¢) Woddng 1epiQ sbueys
00°0vS‘TES SHIng-sy [eyoL
00°009'T$ 009'TS (19s Jad 00v$ @ ¥) SHING-SY JO S}ag ueld
00'0£12$ v 01 1 SJINg-SY [eo1}08[3 2jeLIpI00D)
00'04T°CS V2 0T 1 S}INg-sy [e4NjonulS 9)BUIPJOOD
00°'009'52$ 8 9T 8VT 14 (1o8ys/Iinoy Z @ s199ys p/) SHING-sY/|
Sing-sv|
00'0vL‘€Z$ uoneuwuoyul 1oy sysanbay |ejo)
00'0Z0'1$ 7 S (14444 6°0 @ 01) |3y [BINPNNS SjEUIPI0o]
00'0€E'ES 8 ST (144/04 6°0 @ 08) 14 [BOU}OR[T 8)BUIPI00D
00'06€°6T$ o€ 06 3 (144/s1n0y ¢ @ 0€) |4 0} puodsay
uonewJoyu Joj sjsenbey
00°090°ST$ W80 |ejoL
00'090STS 00Z$ | | | [8 IE3 [z S[ERILANS W20
slepwqns W0
00°0TS20T$ slenuqns jejoL
00°0v8'TS 8 4 F4 S[eRIWang [eJnpnng sjeulpioosd)
00°099'7$ 0t 3 2 S[eRIwqnS [eoU}oa|3 3jeulpioo)
00'08L'STS 96 9 (wayysinoy 94 @ sbumelp doys g) sbumelq doys
00°0St'TZS 0zt ST (wajysinoy g @ sway Jofew G|) spepiwiang Jofely
00°08£'8S$ 00T°T$ 3 9T (wayysiy z ® swajl pIepuels 00Z) SIERIWANS
sbuimesq doys pue sjepiwgns jeuaiey
00°0¥9'22$ s3unaay [eloL
00'006S 9 uoloadsu| [euld puapy|
00'00T°TS [ JISIA 2}S [Bulg-ald puapy|
00'00t°SS 9¢ sAep ¢ ‘Bunse] dnueis
00°00LTS 059'TS L ybBnoiuypiiepn buidesspue
00'00SETS 06 (81 awnssy) pasnbay se sbugasyy ANoap pualy|
00'0v6°S 000°TS 9 S 9 0UBIBJUOYD UOONIISUCD-81d PUBY|
sbupealy 10efoid
06 011 SET 0sT 0€T
|eloy ysel 53500 1930 | Suidesspueq | |eanponns 122143293 :_Ew.< ._u:u_mam_ SRR ) —M.E R M..o_o.:_ E.“_w

uononsuo) Buung seoialag Buusauibul - sjewnysy 994 | sjgel
109f04d dLM sites] aye] uingny
101s1a AN anand epiaig umolebiosg







3841 NORTH FREEWAY BOULEVARD, SUITE 145
A T.E.EM. ELECTRICAL SACRAMENTO, CA 95834

ENGINEERING Inc. TEL: (916) 457-8144

INDUSTRIAL & COMMERCIAL DESIGN FAX: (916) 457-7876

TEEm

December 19, 2016

Joe Boyle, P.E.

Psomas

3 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 200

Santa Ana, CA 92707

E-mail: JoeBoyle@psomas.com
ernie.leporini@gmail.com

Location: Georgetown Divide Public Utility District
Subject: Electrical Engineering Construction Services Quotation & Scope of Work
Project: Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Improvements - Revised

The following lists the revised A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering Construction Services
for the project.

A. Construction Services
1. Attend ten (10) project meetings.
2. Review electrical, instrumentation and control shop drawings and submittals. (~60).
3. Answer construction questions and provide clarifications.
4. Respond to “Request for Information” regarding electrical and instrumentation items.
5. Witness and Verify:

a. Factory Tests (4 Days)
b. Field Tests (5 Days)
c. Start-up (10 Days)

6. Provide electrical inspection and generate punch-list. (5 Days)
7. Prepare as-built Contract drawings.

A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering Construction Services fee proposal is on the attached
spreadsheet.

All prices include overhead, profit, insurance, and travel expenses for site visits to the
jobsite. Currently A T.E.E.M. has $2,000,000 general liability and $2,000,000 professional
liability insurance in force.

File:pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev2-cs.doc Page 1 0f2 12/19/16



A T.E.E.M. is dedicated to meet your needs by providing specialized design, consultant
and management services. Please give us a call if you have any questions or require further
information.

Sincerely,

Erik Burns, P.E.
A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering

File:pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev2-cs.doc Page 2 of 2 12/19/16



A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering
12/19/2016

Type of Service: Electrical Construction Services

Customer Name: Psomas

Location: GD PUD

Project Name: Auburn Lake Trails Water Treatment Plant Improvements - Revised

Project No.: Work Order No.: Task No.:

Field Eng=FE Officc Eng=OE Technical = TA
Hourly Rate: $190 $180 $110

Task Description FE OE TA
Construction Services
1 Attend project meetings (10) 60 16 8 = 15,160
2 Review submittals (~60) 0 240 120 = 56,400
3 Answer questions and issue clarifications 0 45 20 = 10,300
4  Respond to RFls 0 30 20 = 7,600
5  Factory test (4 Days) 32 10 10 = 8,980
6  Field tests (5 Days) 40 10 8 = 10,280
7  Start-up (10 Days) 80 8 4 = 17,080
8 Inspection and punch-list (5 Days) 40 8 4 = 9,480
9  As-built drawings 8 20 28 = 8,200

260 387 222 $143,480

Total not-to-exceed cost: $143,480

Signature : Sharon M. Kimizuka, P.E.

Approval
Date

Signature
CHARGE NO.:

pso-GDPUD-altwtp-rev2-cs.xls cs



A|nderson

S|tructural

G|roup Agreement
Anderson Structural Group, Inc. Client: PSOMAS

650 University Avenue, Suite 110 1075 Creekside Ridge Drive, Suite 200
Sacramento, CA 95825 Roseville, CA 9595678

(916) 514-9109 (916) 788-8122

Date: December 21, 2016 ASG Project No. 12084.05

Project Name/Location: Auburn Lake Trails WTP Construction Review - Georgetown Divide PUD
Project Description: Structural engineering services for:
Construction review services for structural drawings signed March 2, 2016 and sheets S14 and
$15 signed May 27, 2016 for following structures:
¢ Raw Water Pump Station
e Filter Building
¢ Sludge Drying Beds
Scope of Services:

e Provide construction review and support services including
o Construction consultation, review metal building submittals, review structural shop
drawings, respond to RFI's and up to six site visits.

Structural Fee:

Construction Review and Support Services
Limitation of Liability: $1,000,000
Speclal Conditions:

» Fee does not include any construction phase revisions to approved drawings.
e Any revisions to approved drawings will be billed at hourly rates.

_ $14,000

Offered by: Accepted by:
T lz/u/te

signature date signature date

John D. Anderson, President S$2910

nameftitle CA License namefiitle

Anderson Structural Group, Inc.

Client

The Terms and Conditions attached and the initials required are a part of this Agreement.
Fees are based on receiving authorization within 60 days.

Page 1 of 2



A|nderson
S|tructural
G|roup

Terms and Conditions

Anderson Structural Group, Inc. shall perform the services outlined in this Agreement for the stated
fee arrangement.

Dispute Resolution:
Any claims or disputes between the Client and Anderson Structural Group, Inc. shall be submitted
to non-binding mediation.

Billings/Payments:

Invoices will be submitted either upon completion of services or on a monthly basis. If the invoice is
not paid within 30 days, Anderson Structural Group, Inc. may terminate the performance of the
service.

Late Payments:

Invoices unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5%
(or the legal rate) on the unpaid balance. Client agrees to pay all costs of collection, including
reasonable attorney's fees.

Indemnification:

The Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless Anderson
Structural Group, Inc., its officers, employees and subconsultants from all damage, liability and
cost, including reasonable attorney's fees, arising out of the performance of the services under this
Agreement, excepting only those damages, liabilities or costs atiributable to the sole negligence or
willfu! misconduct of Anderson Structural Group, Inc.

Limitation of Liability:

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both parties, the Client
agrees that Anderson Structural Group, Inc. total liability for all injuries, claims, loses, expenses,
damages or claim expenses arising out of this Agreement shall not exceed the Limitation of Liability
amount indicated in the Agreement. Such causes include, Anderson Structural Group, inc.
negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warranty.

Termination of Services:

Either party may terminate this Agreement should the other fail to perform its obligations. In the
event of termination, the Client agrees to pay Anderson Structural Group, Inc. for all services
rendered to the date of termination.

Field Representatives

Anderson Structural Group, Inc. field personnel are for the purpose of providing project
administration, construction observation and investigation of specific aspects of the project.
Observation of the work by Anderson Structural Group, Inc. personnel does not relieve the Client of
the responsibility for performing the work in accordance with the plans and specifications.
Anderson Structural Group, Inc. responsibilities do not include supervision or direction of the
means, methods or actual work of the Client or responsibility for jobsite safety.

Hourly Rates:
Principal Engineer $170 per hour Associate Engineer $140 per hour
Design Engineer $110 per hour Drafter $ 85 per hour
Joh
initial initial

Page 2 of 2



	2017.02.14_Agenda-Packet_FINAL_PART 1.pdf
	2017.02.14_Agenda-Packet_FINAL_PART 2

